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The attention of the investors is in particular drawn to the following: Investors who have already
agreed to purchase or subscribe for the Securities before the Supplement is published have,
pursuant to § 16 (3) of the German Securities Prospectus Act, the right, exercisable within a time
limit of two working days after the publication of the Supplement, to withdraw their
acceptances, provided that the Securities have not been settled yet. A withdrawal, if any, of an
order must be communicated in writing to the relevant Issuer at its registered office specified in
the address list hereof.

1) In the section entitled “SUMMARY", the bullet points ‘Who is the Issuer’, ‘Corporate
Information’, ‘Organisational Structure of the Issuer’, ‘Trend Information’, ‘Administrative,
Management and Supervisory Bodies of the Issuer’ and ‘Auditors’ in relation to the Base
Prospecuts dated 21 October 2009 are completely replaced as follows:

“Who is the Issuer?

UBS AG (also the “Issuer” or the "Company") with its subsidiaries is a client-focused financial services
firm that offers a combination of wealth management, asset management and investment banking services
on a global and regional basis. By delivering a full range of advice, products and services to its private,
corporate and institutional clients, UBS aims to generate sustainable earnings, create value for its
shareholders, and be economically profitable in every segment, market and business in which it operates.
With headquarters in Zurich and Basel, Switzerland, UBS is present in all major financial centers and has
offices in over 50 countries. On 31 December 2009, UBS employed 65,233 people’.

On 31 December 2009 UBS's BIS Tier12 ratio was 15.4%, invested assets stood at CHF 2,233 billion, equity
attributable to UBS shareholders was CHF 41,013 million and market capitalization was CHF 57,108
million.

The rating agencies Standard & Poor’s Inc. ("Standard & Poor’s"), Fitch Ratings ("Fitch") and Moody's
Investors Service Inc. ("Moody’s") have assessed the creditworthiness of UBS, i.e. the ability of UBS to
fulfill payment obligations, such as principal or interest payments on long-term loans, also known as debt
servicing, in a timely manner. The ratings from Fitch and Standard & Poor’s may be attributed a plus or
minus sign, and those from Moody's a number. These supplementary attributes indicate the relative
position within the respective rating class. UBS currently has long-term senior debt ratings of A+ (outlook
stable) from Standard & Poor’s, Aa3 (outlook negative) from Moody’s and A+ (outlook stable) from Fitch.

Corporate Information

The legal and commercial name of the Company is UBS AG. The Company was incorporated under the
name SBC AG on 28 February 1978 for an unlimited duration and entered in the Commercial Register of
Canton Basel-City on that day. On 8 December 1997, the Company changed its name to UBS AG. The
Company in its present form was created on 29 June 1998 by the merger of Union Bank of Switzerland
(founded 1862) and Swiss Bank Corporation (founded 1872). UBS AG is entered in the Commercial
Registers of Canton Zurich and Canton Basel-City. The registration number is CH-270.3.004.646-4.

UBS AG is incorporated and domiciled in Switzerland and operates under Swiss Code of Obligations and
Swiss Federal Banking Law as an Aktiengesellschaft, a corporation that has issued shares of common
stock to investors.

According to Article 2 of the Articles of Association of UBS AG ("Articles of Association") the purpose
of UBS AG is the operation of a bank. Its scope of operations extends to all types of banking, financial,
advisory, service and trading activities in Switzerland and abroad.

UBS AG shares are listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, the New York Stock Exchange and the Tokyo Stock
Exchange3.

' Full-time equivalents.

2 BIS Tier 1 ratio is the ratio of eligible Tier 1 capital to BIS risk-weighted assets. Eligible Tier 1 capital comprises paid-in share capital,
share premium, retained earnings including current year profit, foreign currency translation and minority interests less certain
deduction items, mainly comprising accrued dividends, net long positions in own shares and goodwill.
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The addresses and telephone numbers of UBS AG's two registered offices and principal places of business
are: Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8001 Zurich, Switzerland, telephone +41 44 234 1111; and Aeschenvorstadt
1, CH-4051 Basel, Switzerland, telephone +41 61 288 5050.

Organisational Structure of the Issuer

UBS AG is the parent company of the UBS Group. The objective of UBS's group structure is to support the
business activities of the Company within an efficient legal, tax, regulatory and funding framework. None
of the individual business divisions of UBS or the Corporate Center are legally independent entities;
instead, they primarily perform their activities through the domestic and foreign offices of the parent
bank.

Settlement of transactions through the parent bank allows UBS to fully exploit the advantages generated
for all business divisions through the use of a single legal entity. In cases where it is impossible or
inefficient to process transactions via the parent, due to local legal, tax or regulatory provisions, or where
additional legal entities join the Group through acquisition, these tasks are performed on location by
legally independent Group companies.

Trend Information

In 2010, UBS expects to see the full effects of the progress it has made in improving operating efficiency,
reducing risk and rebuilding and re-focusing its businesses. UBS is confident the steps it is taking to reduce
client outflows in its wealth and asset management business divisions will be effective, but in the
immediate future UBS still expects to report net outflows with some pressure on margins. UBS expects that
the Investment Bank's performance for the year as a whole will improve, in part because its residual risk
positions will have a much reduced effect on results. UBS Group results are heavily dependent on market
vitality, and more favorable market conditions in January and February 2010 have benefited most of its
businesses.

Administrativ, Management and Supervisory Bodies of the Issuer

UBS AG operates under a strict dual board structure, as mandated by Swiss banking law. This structure
establishes checks and balances and creates an institutional independence of the Board of Directors
("BoD") from the day-to-day management of the firm, for which responsibility is delegated to the Group
Executive Board ("GEB"). No member of one Board may be a member of the other.

The supervision and control of the executive management remains with the BoD. The Articles of
Association and the Organization Regulations of UBS AG with their annexes govern all details as to
authorities and responsibilities of the two bodies.

Auditors

On 15 April 2009, the AGM of UBS AG re-elected Ernst & Young Ltd, Aeschengraben 9, 4002 Basel,
Switzerland ("Ernst & Young") as auditors for the Financial Statements of UBS AG and the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the UBS Group for a further one-year term. Ernst & Young Ltd., Basel, is a
member of the Swiss Institute of Certified Accountants and Tax Consultants based in Zurich,
Switzerland.”

3 UBS expects to de-list its shares from the Tokyo Stock Exchange in the near future.
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2) In the section entitled “ZUSAMMENFASSUNG”, the bullet points ‘Wer ist die Emittentin?’,
‘Unternehmensinformationen’, ‘Organisationsstruktur der Emittentin’, ‘Trendinformationen’,
‘Verwaltungs-, Management-, und Aufsichtsorgane der Emittentin’ and ‘Abschlusspriifer'?’ are
completely replaced as follows:

.Wer ist die Emittentin?

Die UBS AG (ebenso die ,Emittentin” oder die , Gesellschaft”) einschlieBlich ihrer Tochtergesellschaften,
eine kundenorientierte Bank. bietet als kundenorientiertes Finanzinstitut auf globaler und regionaler Ebene
eine Kombination von Dienstleistungen im Wealth Management, Asset Management und Investment
Banking an. Dies umfasst die gesamte Palette von Beratung, Produkten und Dienstleistungen fur private,
Firmen- sowie institutionellen Kunden. Damit will UBS AG nachhaltige Ertrage erzielen, Mehrwert fur
Aktiondre schaffen und in jedem Segment, Markt und Geschéft, in dem sie tatig sind, profitabel sein. Mit
Hauptsitz in ZUrich und Basel, Schweiz, ist die UBS AG in mehr als 50 Landern und an den wichtigsten
internationalen Finanzplatzen vertreten. Zum 31. Dezember 2009 beschéaftigte UBS AG 65.233 Mitarbeiter
(auf Vollzeitbasis).

Am 31. Dezember 2010 betrug die BIZ-Kernkapitalquote (Tier 1)* 15,4 %, das investierte Kapital belief sich
auf CHF 2.233 Mrd., und das UBS-Aktiondren zurechenbare Eigenkapital lag bei CHF 41.013 Mio. Die
Marktkapitalisierung betrug CHF 57.108 Mio.

Die Rating-Agenturen Standard & Poor’s Inc. (,,Standard & Poor's”), Fitch Ratings (,Fitch”) und Moody’s
Investors Service Inc. (,Moody’s”) haben die Bonitdt von UBS und damit ihre Fahigkeit,
Zahlungsverpflichtungen, beispielsweise Tilgungs- und Zinszahlungen (Kapitaldienst) bei langfristigen
Krediten, punktlich nachzukommen, beurteilt und bewertet. Bei Fitch und Standard & Poor’s kann die
Beurteilung mit Plus- oder Minus-Zeichen, bei Moody's mit Ziffern versehen sein. Diese Zusdtze geben
Aufschluss Uber die Beurteilung innerhalb einer Bewertungsstufe. Dabei beurteilt Standard & Poor’s die UBS
hinsichtlich des Long-Term senior debt ratings aktuell mit A+ (Ausblick stabil), Moody’s mit Aa3 (Ausblick
stabil), und Fitch mit A+ (Ausblick stabil).

Unternehmensinformationen

Firma und Name der Emittentin im Geschaftsverkehr ist UBS AG. Die Emittentin wurde am
28. Februar 1978 unter dem Namen SBC AG flur unbestimmte Zeit gegriindet und an diesem Tag in das
Handelsregister des Kantons Basel Stadt eingetragen. Am 8. Dezember 1997 erfolgte die Umfirmierung zu
UBS AG. UBS in ihrer jetzigen Form entstand am 29. Juni 1998 durch die Fusion der Schweizerischen
Bankgesellschaft (gegriindet 1862) und des Schweizerischen Bankvereins (gegriindet 1872). UBS ist im
Handelsregister des Kantons Zurich und des Kantons Basel Stadt eingetragen. Die Handelsregisternummer
lautet CH-270.3.004.646-4.

UBS AG ist in der Schweiz gegriindet und ansassig und unterliegt als Aktiengesellschaft, d.h. als eine
Gesellschaft, die Aktien fur Investoren begeben hat, dem schweizerischem Obligationenrecht und den
schweizerischen bankenrechtlichen Bestimmungen.

Die Adressen und Telefonnummern der beiden Satzungs- und Verwaltungssitze von UBS AG lauten:
BahnhofstraBe 45, 8001 Zurich, Schweiz, Tel. +41-44-234 11 11; und Aeschenvorstadt 1, 4051 Basel,
Schweiz, Tel. +41-61-288 20 20.

Die Aktien von UBS sind an der SWX Swiss Exchange und den Bérsen in New York und Tokio notiert.>
GemaB Artikel 2 der Statuten der UBS AG (die ,Statuten”) ist Geschaftszweck von UBS AG der Betrieb

einer Bank. Ihr Geschaftsportfolio umfasst alle Arten von Bank-, Finanz-, Beratungs-, Dienstleistungs- und
Handelsgeschaften im In- und Ausland.

4 Die BIZ-Kernkapitalquote (Tier 1) ist das Verhaltnis von anrechenbaren eigenen Mitteln zu den BIZ risikogewichteten Aktiven. Tier 1-
Kapital setzt sich zusammen aus Aktienkapital, Kapitalrticklagen, Gewinnriicklagen einschlieBlich Gewinn des laufenden Jahres,
Wahrungsumrechnung und Minderheitsanteilen abzlglich aufgelaufene Dividende, Nettolongpositionen in eigenen Aktien und
Goodwill.

> UBS geht davon aus, die Notierungseinstellung der Aktien an der Tokyo Stock Exchange in nachster Zeit zu beantragen.
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Organisationsstrukturen der Emittentin

Die Konzernstruktur von UBS ist darauf ausgelegt, der Geschdftstatigkeit des Unternehmens einen
effizienten rechtlichen, steuerlichen, regulatorischen und finanziellen Rahmen zu geben. Weder die
einzelnen Unternehmensbereiche noch das Corporate Center sind rechtlich selbststandige Einheiten;
vielmehr agieren sie hauptsachlich Uber die Niederlassungen des Stammhauses, der UBS AG, im In- und
Ausland.

Die Abwicklung von Transaktionen Uber das Stammhaus ermdglicht es UBS, die Vorteile, die sich aus der
Bindelung aller Unternehmensbereiche unter einem Dach ergeben, voll auszuschdpfen. Wo es aber
aufgrund lokaler rechtlicher, steuerlicher oder regulatorischer Vorschriften oder, wo weitere rechtlich
selbstandige Einheiten aufgrund von Aquistitionen in die Gruppe eingegliedert wurden, nicht moglich oder
nicht effizient ist, Transaktionen Uber das Stammhaus abzuwickeln, werden diese Aufgaben von rechtlich
selbststandigen Konzerngesellschaften vor Ort wahrgenommen.

Trendinformationen

Die UBS AG erwartet, dass 2010 die Fortschritte, die bei der Verbesserung der operativen Effizienz, der
Risikominderung sowie im Neuaufbau und in der Neuausrichtung von Geschafte, gemacht wurden,
vollumfanglich zum Tragen kommen. Auch ist die UBS AG zuversichtlich, dass die Massnahmen erfolgreich
sein werden, die zur Bekdmpfung von Vermogensabflissen im Wealth Management und im Asset
Management ergriffen worden sind, obwohl fir die unmittelbare Zukunft weiterhin mit einer negativen
Nettoneugeldentwicklung gerechnet werden muss, verbunden mit einem gewissen Margendruck. Die
UBS AG geht davon aus, dass sich die Performance der Investment Bank im Jahr 2010 insgesamt verbessern
wird, unter anderem weil die verbleibenden Risikopositionen die Ergebnisse weit weniger stark beeinflussen
durften. Das Konzernergebnis der UBS AG hangt stark von der Verfassung der Markte ab, und die Mehrheit
der Geschaftseinheiten hat im Januar und Februar 2010 vom ginstigeren Marktumfeld profitiert.

Verwaltungs-, Management-, und Aufsichtsorgane der Emittentin

UBS AG agiert unter einer strikten dualen Fuhrungsgremiumsstruktur, wie dies von der schweizerischen
Bankengesetzgebung vorgeschrieben ist. Diese Struktur schafft gegenseitige Kontrolle und macht den
Verwaltungsrat (der ,,VR") unabhdngig vom Tagesgeschaft der Bank, fir das die Konzernleitung (die
.KL") die Verantwortung tragt. Niemand kann Mitglied beider Gremien sein.

Aufsicht und Kontrolle der operativen Unternehmensfiihrung liegen beim VR. Samtliche Einzelheiten zu
den Kompetenzen und Verantwortlichkeiten der beiden Gremien sind in den UBS-Statuten, dem
Organisationsreglement der UBS AG und den entsprechenden Anhangen geregelt.

Abschlussprifer

Am 15. April 2009 wurde die Ernst & Young AG, Aeschengraben 9, 4002 Basel, Schweiz, auf der
Generalversammlung der UBS AG Generalversammlung als Abschlusspriferin der Emittentin und der
UBS Gruppe in Ubereinstimmung mit den gesellschaftsrechtlichen und bankengesetzlichen Vorgaben fir
den Zeitraum eines weiteren Jahres wiedergewahlt. Ernst & Young AG, Basel, ist Mitglied der Treuhand-
Kammer der Schweiz mit Sitz in Zurich, Schweiz.”



3) In the Base Prospctus dated 21 October 2009 the section entitled ‘Description of the Issuer’ is
completely replaced as follows:

"DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER

The following description contains general information on UBS AG, Bahnhofstrasse 45, 8001 Zurich,
Switzerland, and Aeschenvorstadt 1, 4051 Basel, Switzerland.

OVERVIEW

UBS AG (also the “Issuer” or the "Company") with its subsidiaries is a client-focused financial services
firm that offers a combination of wealth management, asset management and investment banking services
on a global and regional basis. By delivering a full range of advice, products and services to its private,
corporate and institutional clients, UBS aims to generate sustainable earnings, create value for its
shareholders, and be economically profitable in every segment, market and business in which it operates.
With headquarters in Zurich and Basel, Switzerland, UBS is present in all major financial centers and has
offices in over 50 countries. On 31 December 2009, UBS employed 65,233 people®.

On 31 December 2009, UBS's BIS Tier17 ratio was 15.4 %, invested assets stood at CHF 2,233 billion,
equity attributable to UBS shareholders was CHF 41,013 million and market capitalization was CHF 57,108
million.

The rating agencies Standard & Poor’s Inc. (“Standard & Poor’s”), Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) and Moody’s
Investors Service Inc. (“Moody’s”) have assessed the creditworthiness of UBS, i.e. the ability of UBS to fulfill
payment obligations, such as principal or interest payments on long-term loans, also known as debt
servicing, in a timely manner. The ratings from Fitch and Standard & Poor’s may be attributed a plus or
minus sign, and those from Moody’s a number. These supplementary attributes indicate the relative
position within the respective rating class. UBS currently has long-term senior debt ratings of A+ (outlook
stable) from Standard & Poor’s, Aa3 (outlook negative) from Moody’s and A+ (outlook stable) from Fitch.

. Corporate Information

The legal and commercial name of the Company is UBS AG. The Company was incorporated under the
name SBC AG on 28 February 1978 for an unlimited duration and entered in the Commercial Register of
Canton Basel-City on that day. On 8 December 1997, the Company changed its name to UBS AG. The
Company in its present form was created on 29 June 1998 by the merger of Union Bank of Switzerland
(founded 1862) and Swiss Bank Corporation (founded 1872). UBS AG is entered in the Commercial
Registers of Canton Zurich and Canton Basel-City. The registration number is CH-270.3.004.646-4.

UBS AG is incorporated and domiciled in Switzerland and operates under Swiss Code of Obligations and
Swiss Federal Banking Law as an Aktiengesellschaft, a corporation that has issued shares of common stock
to investors.

According to Article 2 of the Articles of Association of UBS AG (”Articles of Association”) the purpose of
UBS AG is the operation of a bank. Its scope of operations extends to all types of banking, financial,
advisory, service and trading activities in Switzerland and abroad.

UBS AG shares are listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, the New York Stock Exchange and the Tokyo Stock
Exchange?.

The addresses and telephone numbers of UBS AG's two registered offices and principal places of business
are: Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8001 Zurich, Switzerland, telephone +41 44 234 1111; and Aeschenvorstadt 1,
CH-4051 Basel, Switzerland, telephone +41 61 288 5050.

& Full-time equivalents.

7 BIS Tier 1 ratio is the ratio of eligible Tier 1 capital to BIS risk-weighted assets. Eligible Tier 1 capital comprises paid-in share capital,
share premium, retained earnings including current year profit, foreign currency translation and minority interests less certain
deduction items, mainly comprising accrued dividends, net long positions in own shares and goodwill.

8 UBS expects to de-list its shares from the Tokyo Stock Exchange in the near future.
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Il. BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Business divisions and Corporate Center

Organizationally, UBS AG and its subsidiaries have operated throughout 2009 as a group ("UBS Group",
"Group”, or "UBS") with four business divisions (Wealth Management & Swiss Bank, Wealth
Management Americas, Global Asset Management and the Investment Bank) and a Corporate Center. Each
of the business divisions and the Corporate Center are described below. A full description of their
strategies, organization, products, services, markets and performance can be found in the Annual Report
2009 of UBS AG published on 15 March 2010 (the "Annual Report 2009"), in the English version on
pages 71-107 (inclusive).

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank caters to high net worth and ultra high net worth individuals around the
world (except those served by Wealth Management Americas) whether they are investing internationally or
in their home country. UBS offers these clients a complete range of tailored advice and investment services.
Its Swiss Bank business provides a complete set of banking services for Swiss individual and corporate clients.

Wealth Management Americas

Wealth Management Americas provides advice-based relationships through financial advisors who deliver a
fully integrated set of products and services specifically designed to address the needs of core affluent high
net worth and ultra high net worth individuals and families. It includes the former Wealth Management US
business unit, as well as the domestic Canadian business and the international business booked in the
United States.

Global Asset Management

Global Asset Management is, in its own opinion, a large-scale asset manager with well diversified
businesses across regions, capabilities and distribution channels. It offers investment capabilities and
investment styles across all major traditional and alternative asset classes. These include equities, fixed
income, currency, hedge fund, real estate, infrastructure and private equity investment capabilities that can
also be combined in multi-asset strategies.

Investment Bank

The Investment Bank provides securities and other financial products and research in equities, fixed income,
rates, foreign exchange and precious metals. It also provides advisory services and access to the world’s
capital markets for corporate, institutional, intermediary and alternative asset management clients.

Corporate Center

The Corporate Center seeks to ensure that the business divisions operate as a coherent and effective whole
by providing and managing support and control functions for the business divisions and the Group in such
areas as risk control, finance, legal and compliance, funding, capital and balance sheet management,
management of foreign currencies, communication and branding, human resources, information
technology, real estate, procurement and service centers.

M. Organisational Structure of the Issuer

UBS AG is the parent company of the UBS Group. The objective of UBS' group structure is to support the
business activities of the Company within an efficient legal, tax, regulatory and funding framework. None
of the individual business divisions of UBS or the Corporate Center are legally independent entities; instead,
they primarily perform their activities through the domestic and foreign offices of the parent bank.

Settlement of transactions through the parent bank allows UBS to fully exploit the advantages generated
for all business divisions through the use of a single legal entity. In cases where it is impossible or inefficient
to process transactions via the parent, due to local legal, tax or regulatory provisions, or where additional
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legal entities join the Group through acquisition, these tasks are performed on location by legally
independent Group companies. UBS AG's significant subsidiaries are listed in the Annual Report 2009, in
English, on pages 350-352 (inclusive).

Competition

UBS faces stiff competition in all business areas. Both in Switzerland and abroad, the Bank competes with
asset management companies, commercial, investment and private banks, brokerages and other financial
services providers. Competitors include not only local banks, but also global financial institutions, which are
similar to UBS in terms of both size and services offered.

In addition, the consolidation trend in the global financial services sector is introducing new competition,
which may have a greater impact on prices, as a result of an expanded range of products and services and
increased access to capital and growing efficiency.

Iv. Trend Information
Recent Developments:

On 17 November 2009, at its 2009 Investor Day in Zurich, UBS AG's Group Executive Board has provided
an update on the ongoing transformation of the firm, and the strategy and medium-term targets that will
characterize UBS's return to sustainable profitability. The continuing transformation of UBS and the
execution of the business strategies presented to investors will enable UBS to meet specific goals over the
medium-term (3-5 years). At a Group level, UBS aims to achieve: approximately CHF 15 billion of annual
profit before tax; a cost-to-income ratio of 65-70%; and a return-on-equity of 15-20%. The objectives will
be subject to market movements and regulatory changes.

On 29 September 2009, UBS announced that Sergio Marchionne, Senior Independent Director of the Board
of Directors of UBS AG, and Peter Voser will not stand for re-election to the Board at the annual general
meeting which will take place on 14 April 2010. Further, on 7 December 2009, UBS announced that it has
nominated Wolfang Mayrhuber, the Chairman of the Executive Board and CEO of Deutsche Lufthansa AG,
for election to the Board of Directors of UBS AG.

On 15 March 2010, UBS published its Annual Report 2009 and reported a net loss attributable to UBS
shareholders for 2009 of CHF 2,736 million, compared to a net loss of CHF 21,292 million for 2008. This
improvement was due to much lower losses on residual risk positions in the Investment Bank and reduced
operating expenses for the Group. The result for 2009 included a number of significant items, namely an
own credit loss of CHF 2.0 billion which occurred as a result of the markets’ perception of UBS" improved
creditworthiness, charges relating to the sale of UBS Pactual of CHF 1.4 billion, restructuring charges of
CHF 0.8 billion, and a CHF 0.3 billion gain on the mandatory convertible notes converted in August 2009.
The Group's net profit attributable to shareholders for the fourth quarter was CHF 1.2 billion, including a
positive contribution from each of UBS' business divisions. The year-end 2009 BIS tier 1 ratio was 15.4 %,
up from 11.0 % on 31 December 2008. UBS's total assets stood at CHF 1,341 billion on 31 December
2009, down CHF 674 billion (33 %) from CHF 2,015 billion on 31 December 2008. This decline was due
primarily to significant market driven reductions in replacement values (RVs) on both sides of the balance
sheet. UBS' FINMA leverage ratio was 3.93 % on 31 December 2009 compared with 2.45 % on
31 December 2008. Net new money outflows in 2009 were CHF 89.8 billion for Wealth Management &
Swiss Bank, compared with CHF 107.1 billion in 2008; CHF 11.6 billion for Wealth Management Americas,
compared with CHF 15.9 billion; and CHF 45.8 billion for Global Asset Management, compared with
CHF 103.0 billion.

Outlook

In 2010, UBS expects to see the full effects of the progress it has made in improving operating efficiency,
reducing risk and rebuilding and re-focusing its businesses. UBS is confident the steps it is taking to reduce
client outflows in its wealth and asset management business divisions will be effective, but in the
immediate future UBS still expects to report net outflows with some pressure on margins. UBS expects that
the Investment Bank's performance for the year as a whole will improve, in part because its residual risk
positions will have a much reduced effect on results. UBS Group results are heavily dependent on market
vitality, and more favorable market conditions in January and February 2010 have benefited most of its
businesses.



V. Administrative, Management and Supervisory Bodies of the Issuer

Details of the Executive Bodies of the Company

UBS AG operates under a strict dual board structure, as mandated by Swiss banking law. This structure
establishes checks and balances and creates an institutional independence of the Board of Directors
("BoD") from the day-to-day management of the firm, for which responsibility is delegated to the Group
Executive Board (“GEB"). No member of one Board may be a member of the other.

The supervision and control of the executive management remains with the BoD. The Articles of Association
and the Organization Regulations of UBS AG with their annexes govern all details as to authorities and
responsibilities of the two bodies.

Board of Directors

The BoD is the most senior body of UBS AG. The BoD consists of at least six and a maximum of 12
members. All the members of the BoD are elected individually by the Annual General Meeting (“AGM") for
a term of office of one year®. The BoD constitutes itself at its first meeting following the AGM. In this
meeting the Chairman, the Vice Chairman/Vice Chairmen, the Senior Independent Director, the committee
Chairmen and the committee members are elected among and by the BoD members. The BoD committees
comprise the Audit Committee, the Corporate Responsibility Committee, the Governance and Nominating
Committee, the Human Resources and Compensation Committee and the Risk Committee.

The BoD has ultimate responsibility for the success of the UBS Group and for delivering sustainable
shareholder value within a framework of prudent and effective controls. It decides on UBS’ strategic aims
and the necessary financial and human resources upon recommendation of the Group Chief Executive
Officer ("Group CEO") and sets the UBS Group's values and standards to ensure that its obligations to its
shareholders and others are met. The BoD's proposal for election must be such that three quarters of the
BoD members will be independent. While the Chairman does not need to be independent, at least one of
the Vice Chairmen must be. The BoD meets as often as business requires, and at least six times a year.

The business address of the members of the BoD is UBS AG, Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8001 Zurich,
Switzerland.

Board of Directors of UBS AG
The BoD consiss of twelve members:

Title Term of office | Position outside UBS AG
Kaspar Villiger Chairman 2010 None
Sergio Marchionne Independent 2010 CEO and member of the board of Fiat
Vice S.p.A.; CEO of Fiat Group Automobiles;
Chairman / CEO of Chrysler Group LLC; Chairman
Senior of Société Générale de Surveillance
Independent Group of Geneva (SGS); member of
Director the BoD of Philip Morris International
Inc., New York; member of European
Automobile Manufacturers' Association
(ACEA); Chairman of CNH Case New
Holland.

9 At the Annual General Meeting on 23 April 2008 the shareholders reduced the term of office for the members of the BoD from
three years to one year. As a result, the new members were elected for one year. For existing members the one-year term starts
from the point at which they are re-elected.
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Sally Bott

Member

2010

Group HR Director and member of the
Group Executive Committee of BP plc;
member of the board of the Royal
College of Music in London; member of
the board of the Carter Burden Center
for the Aging in New York City.

Michel Demaré

Member

2010

CFO and member of the Group
Executive Committee of ABB; President
Global Markets at ABB; member of the
IMD Foundation Board, Lausanne.

Rainer-Marc Frey

Member

2010

Founder and Chairman of Horizon21;
member of the BoD of DKSH Group,
Zurich; member of the Advisory Board
of Invision Private Equity AG, Zug;
member of the BoD of the Frey
Charitable Foundation, Freienbach.

Bruno Gehrig

Member

2010

Vice Chairman of the BoD of Roche
Holding Ltd., Basel; Chairman of the
Swiss Air Transport Foundation, Zug.

Ann F. Godbehere

Member

2010

Board member of Prudential plc, Rio
Tinto plc and Rio Tinto Limited, the
Lloyd’s managing agency, Atrium
Underwriters Ltd. and Atrium
Underwriting Group Ltd., as well as
member of the board of Ariel Holdings.

Axel P. Lehmann

Member

2010

Group Chief Risk Officer of Zurich
Financial Services (Zurich); responsible
for Group IT at Zurich; Chairman of the
Board of the Institute of Insurance
Economics at the University of
St. Gallen and Vice Chairman of the
Chief Risk Officer Forum.

Helmut Panke

Member

2010

Member of the BoD of Microsoft
Corporation, Redmond, USA, and
Singapore Airlines Ltd.; member of the
Supervisory Board of Bayer AG,
Germany.

William G. Parrett

Member

2010

Independent Director of the Eastman
Kodak Company, the Blackstone Group
LP and Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc.,
USA; Chairman of the BoD of the
United States Council for International
Business and of United Way Worldwide;
member of the Board of Trustees of
Carnegie Hall; member of the Executive
Committee  of the International
Chamber of Commerce.

David Sidwell

Member

2010

Director of the Federal National
Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) and
Senior Advisor at Oliver Wyman; trustee
of the International  Accounting
Standards  Committee  Foundation,
London; Chairman of the BoD of Village
Care of New York; Director of the
National Council on Aging.

Peter R. Voser

Member

2010

CEO and executive BoD member of
Royal Dutch Shell plc; member of the
BoD of the Swiss Federal Audit
Oversight Authority.

11




Group Executive Board

Under the leadership of the Group Chief Executive Officer (“CEO"), the GEB has executive management
responsibility for UBS Group and its business. It assumes overall responsibility for the development and
implementation of the strategies for the Group and the business divisions. All GEB members (with the
exception of the Group CEO) are proposed by the Group CEO and the BoD approves the appointments of
the Group CEO, the Group Chief Operating Officer, the Group Chief Financial Officer, the Group Chief
Risk Officer and the General Counsel; the human resources and compensation committee approves all
other GEB members.

The business address of the members of the GEB is UBS AG, Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8098 Zurich,
Switzerland.

Group Executive Board of UBS AG

The Group Executive Board consists of thirteen members:

Oswald J. Gruebel

Group Chief Executive Officer

John Cryan

Group Chief Financial Officer

Markus U. Diethelm

Group General Counsel

John A. Fraser

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Global Asset Management

Carsten Kengeter

co-CEO Investment Bank

Ulrich Koerner

Group Chief Operating Officer and Chief Executive Officer Corporate Center

Philip J. Lofts

Group Chief Risk Officer

Robert J. McCann

Chief Executive Officer Wealth Management Americas

Lukas Gahwiler

Chief Executive Officer UBS Switzerland, Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

Alexander  Wilmot- co-CEO Investment Bank

Sitwell

Robert Wolf Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, UBS Group Americas / President
Investment Bank

Chi-Won Yoon Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Asia Pacific

Juerg Zeltner

Chief Executive Officer Wealth Management, Wealth Management & Swiss
Bank

No member of the GEB has any significant business interests outside of UBS.

Potential conflicts of interest

Members of the BoD and GEB may act as directors or executive officers of other companies (for current
positions outside of UBS (if any) please see above under “Board of Directors of UBS AG”) and may have
economic or other private interests that differ from those of UBS. Potential conflicts of interest may arise
from these positions or interests. UBS is confident that its internal corporate governance practices and its
compliance with relevant legal and regulatory provisions reasonably ensure that any conflicts of interest of
the type described above are appropriately managed, including disclosure when appropriate.

VL. Auditors

On 15 April 2009, the AGM of UBS AG re-elected Ernst & Young Ltd, Aeschengraben 9, 4002 Basel,
Switzerland ("Ernst & Young") as auditors for the Financial Statements of UBS AG and the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the UBS Group for a further one-year term. Ernst & Young Ltd., Basel, is a member
of the Swiss Institute of Certified Accountants and Tax Consultants based in Zurich, Switzerland.
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VIL. Major Shareholders of the Issuer
The ownership of UBS AG shares is broadly dispersed.

On 16 March 2010, The Capital Group Companies, Inc., Los Angeles, disclosed under the Swiss Stock
Exchange Act a holding of 4.75 % of the total share capital of UBS AG.

On 12 March 2010, Government of Singapore disclosed under the Swiss Stock Exchange Act a holding of
6.45 % of the total share capital of UBS AG.

On 17 December 2009, BlackRock Inc., New York, disclosed under the Swiss Stock Exchange Act a holding
of 3.45 % of the total share capital of UBS AG.

As of 31 December 2009, the following shareholders, acting in their capacity as nominees for other
investors or beneficial owners, were registered in the share register with 3 % or more of the total share
capital of UBS AG: Chase Nominees Ltd., London (11.63%); the US securities clearing organization DTC
(Cede & Co.) New York, “The Depository Trust Company” (8.42 %); Mellon Bank N.A., Everett (3.21 %)
and Nortrust Nominees Ltd, London (3.07 %). Pursuant to UBS’ provisions on registration of shares, voting
rights of nominees are limited to 5 %. This regulation does not apply to securities clearing and settlement
organizations. Only shareholders registered in UBS AG's share register as shareholders with voting rights
are entitled to exercise voting rights.

As of 31 December 2009, UBS held a stake of UBS AG's registered shares, which corresponded to less than
3.00 % of its total share capital. On 11 March 2010, UBS AG disclosed disposal positions relating to
558,512,499 of its shares, corresponding to 14.58 % of the total share capital. These positions included
the number of shares that may be issued, upon certain conditions, out of conditional capital to the Swiss
National Bank (“SNB") in connection with the transfer of certain illiquid and other positions to a fund
owned and controlled by the SNB.

Further details on the distribution of UBS AG's shares, the number of registered and non-registered
securities, voting rights as well as distribution by shareholder categories and geographical regions can be
found in the Annual Report 2009, in English, on pages 187-190 (inclusive).

VIII. Financial Information concerning the Issuer's Assets and Liabilities; Financial Position and
Profits and Losses

A description of the Issuer’s assets and liabilities, financial position and profits and losses is available for
financial year 2008 in the Annual Report 2008, published as a restatement on 20 May 2009, Financial
Information, in English, and for financial year 2009 in the Annual Report 2009, in English. The Issuer’s
financial year is the calendar year.

In the case of financial year 2008 reference is made to

(i) the Consolidated Financial Statements of UBS Group, in particular to the Income
Statement on page 256, the Balance Sheet on page 257, the Statement of Cash Flows on pages
261-262 (inclusive) and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 263-370
(inclusive), and

(i) the Financial Statements of UBS AG (Parent Bank), in particular to the Income Statement
on page 372, the Balance Sheet on page 373, the Statement of Appropriation of Retained Earnings
on page 373, the Notes to the Parent Bank Financial Statements on pages 374-389 (inclusive) and
to the Parent Bank Review on page 371, and

(iii) the sections entitled "Accounting Principles” on page 245 and “Critical Accounting
Policies” on pages 246-250 (inclusive) in the Annual Report 2008 of UBS AG, as restated on
20 May 2009, Financial Information, in English.

In the case of financial year 2009 reference is made to

(i) the Consolidated Financial Statements of UBS Group, in particular to the Income
Statement on page 255, the Balance Sheet on page 257, the Statement of Cash Flows on pages
261-262 (inclusive) and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 263-370
(inclusive), and

(i) the Financial Statements of UBS AG (Parent Bank), in particular to the Income Statement
on page 372, the Balance Sheet on page 373, the Statement of Appropriation of Retained Earnings
on page 373, the Notes to the Parent Bank Financial Statements on pages 374-392 (inclusive) and
to the Parent Bank Review on page 371, and
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(iii) the sections entitled "Introduction and accounting principles” on page 244 and “Critical
accounting policies” on pages 245-248 (inclusive) in the Annual Report 2009 of UBS AG, in
English.

The annual financial reports form an essential part of UBS’ reporting. They include the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of UBS Group, prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the audited Financial Statements of UBS AG (Parent Bank), prepared according to
Swiss banking law provisions. The financial statements also include certain additional disclosures required
under Swiss and US regulations. The annual reports also include discussions and analysis of the financial
and business results of UBS, its business divisions and the Corporate Center.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of UBS Group and the Financial Statements of UBS AG (Parent Bank)
for financial years 2008 and 2009 were audited by Ernst & Young. The reports of the auditors on the
Consolidated Financial Statements can be found on pages 254-255 (inclusive) of the Annual Report 2008,
Financial Information, in English, and on pages 252-253 (inclusive) of the Annual Report 2009, in English.
The reports of the auditors on the Financial Statements of UBS AG (Parent Bank) can be found on pages
390-391 (inclusive) of the Annual Report 2008, Financial Information, in English, and on pages 393-394 of
the Annual Report 2009, in English.

UBS’ restated Annual Report 2008 and the Annual Report 2009 form an integral component of this
document, and are therefore fully incorporated in this document.

1. Legal and Arbitration Proceedings

The UBS Group operates in a legal and regulatory environment that exposes it to significant litigation risks.
As a result, UBS is involved in various disputes and legal proceedings, including litigation, arbitration, and
regulatory and criminal investigations. Such cases are subject to many uncertainties, and their outcome is
often difficult to predict, including the impact on operations or on the financial statements, particularly in
the earlier stages of a case. In certain circumstances, to avoid the expense and distraction of legal
proceedings, UBS may, based on a cost-benefit analysis, enter into a settlement even though UBS denies
any wrongdoing. The Group makes provisions for cases brought against it when, in the opinion of
management after seeking legal advice, it is probable that a liability exists, and the amount can be
reasonably estimated.

Certain potentially significant legal proceedings within the last twelve months until the date of this
document are described below:

a) Tax shelter investigation: UBS continues to cooperate with the US Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) in civil
litigation relating to various tax-oriented transactions in which UBS and others engaged between 1996 and
2000.

b) HealthSouth: With respect to two securities class actions brought in the United States District Court for
the Northern District of Alabama, UBS and its insurers have reached an agreement in principle settling those
actions with lead plaintiffs representing the stockholder and bondholder classes. This settlement is subject
to notice to the classes and court approval, and is not expected to have any material impact on UBS's
results.

€) Municipal Bonds: In November 2006, UBS and others received subpoenas from the US Department of
Justice, Antitrust Division, and the US Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC") seeking information
relating to the investment of proceeds of municipal bond issuances and associated derivative transactions.
Both investigations are ongoing, and UBS is cooperating. In addition, various state Attorneys General have
issued subpoenas seeking similar information. In the SEC investigation, on 4 February 2008, UBS received a
“Wells notice” advising that the SEC staff is considering recommending that the SEC bring a civil action
against UBS AG in connection with the bidding of various financial instruments associated with municipal
securities. The discussions with the SEC are ongoing.

d) Auction Rate Securities: UBS was the subject of an SEC investigation and state regulatory actions
relating to the marketing and sale of auction rate securities (“ARS") to clients, and to UBS’ role and
participation in ARS auctions and underwriting of ARSs. UBS was also named in several putative class
actions and individual civil suits and arbitrations. The regulatory actions and investigations and the civil
proceedings followed the disruption in the markets for these securities and related auction failures since
mid-February 2008. At the end of 2008 UBS entered into settlements with the SEC, the New York Attorney
General (“NYAG") and the Massachusetts Securities Division whereby UBS agreed to offer to buy back
ARSs from eligible customers within certain time periods, the last of which begins on 30 June 2010, and to
pay penalties of USD 150 million (USD 75 million to the NYAG, USD 75 million to the other states). UBS’
settlement is largely in line with similar industry regulatory settlements. UBS is continuing to finalize
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agreements with other state regulators. The SEC continues to investigate individuals affiliated with UBS
who traded in ARSs or who had responsibility for disclosures.

e) US Cross-Border: UBS AG has been the subject of a number of governmental inquiries and investigations
relating to its cross-border private banking services to US private clients during the years 2000-2007. On 18
February 2009, UBS AG announced that it had entered into a Deferred Prosecution Agreement (DPA) with
the US Department of Justice Tax Division (“D0OJ") and the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern
District of Florida, and a Consent Order with the SEC relating to these investigations. As part of the
settlement agreements UBS agreed to, among other things, (i) pay a total of USD 780 million to the United
States, (ii) complete the exit of the US cross-border business out of non-SEC registered entities, and (iii)
implement and maintain an effective program of internal controls with respect to compliance with its
obligations under the Qualified Intermediary "Ql1") Agreement with the
IRS, as well as a revised legal and compliance governance structure in order to strengthen independent
legal and compliance controls. Pursuant to the DPA, the DOJ agreed that any further prosecution of UBS
will be deferred for a period of at least 18 months, subject to extension under certain circumstances such as
UBS needing more time to complete the implementation of the exit of its US cross-border business. If UBS
satisfies all of its obligations under the DPA, the DOJ will refrain permanently from pursuing charges against
UBS relating to the investigation of its US cross-border business. As part of the resolution of an SEC claim
that UBS acted as an unregulated broker dealer and investment advisor in connection with its US cross-
border business, UBS consented to a settlement that provides, among other things, that: (i) UBS will pay
USD 200 million to the SEC (included in the USD 780 million payment described above); and (i) UBS will
complete its exit of the US cross-border business and will be permanently enjoined from violating certain
SEC registration requirements.

The agreements with the DOJ and SEC did not resolve the “John Doe” summons which the IRS served on
UBS in July 2008. In this regard, on 19 February 2009, the Civil Tax Division of the DOJ filed a civil petition
for enforcement of this summons in the US Federal District Court for the Southern District of Florida,
through which it sought an order directing UBS to produce information located in Switzerland regarding US
clients who have maintained accounts with UBS in Switzerland without providing a Form W-9.

On 19 August 2009, UBS executed a settlement agreement with the IRS and the DOJ, to resolve the “John
Doe” summons litigation (UBS-US Settlement Agreement). At the same time, the United States and
Switzerland entered into a separate but related agreement (Swiss-US Agreement). Among other things,
these agreements provide that: (i) UBS and the IRS would promptly file a stipulation dismissing the "John
Doe" summons enforcement action then pending in federal court in Miami, which occurred the same day;
(i) the IRS would submit a request for information regarding accounts of US clients maintained at UBS in
Switzerland, on the basis that such clients appear to have committed tax fraud or the like within the
meaning of the existing 1996 Swiss-US Double Taxation Treaty, to the Swiss Federal Tax Administration
("SFTA"), which it did on 31 August 2009; (iii) UBS would send a notice to US accountholders that appear
to be within the scope of the treaty request and produce to the SFTA information on the corresponding
accounts both in accordance with a specified schedule, which UBS has done in compliance with an order
issued by the SFTA on 1 September 2009; and (iv) UBS and the IRS would agree to amend UBS' QI
Agreement, whereupon the IRS would withdraw the previously disclosed QI Notice of Default dated
15 May 2008. The UBS-US Settlement Agreement does not call for any monetary payment by UBS.

Because UBS has complied with all of its obligations set forth in the UBS-US Settlement Agreement required
to be completed by 31 December 2009, the IRS has withdrawn the summons with prejudice as to all
accounts not covered by the treaty request.

Subject to UBS's compliance with its further notification and information processing obligations set forth in
the UBS-US Settlement Agreement, the IRS will withdraw the “John Doe” summons with prejudice as to
the remaining accounts - i.e. those subject to the treaty request - no later than 24 August 2010 upon the
actual or anticipated delivery to the IRS of information relating to accounts covered by the treaty request
that does not differ significantly from the expected results. Alternatively, the summons will be withdrawn
with prejudice as to the remaining accounts if at any time on or after 1 January 2010 the IRS has received
information from any source relating to at least 10,000 accounts of US persons maintained at UBS in
Switzerland.

On 21 January 2010, the Swiss Federal Administrative Court ruled that the SFTA did not have a proper legal
basis to grant the IRS request for information with respect to accounts of US persons who had failed to
report substantial amounts of income over an extended period, but had not engaged in fraudulent activity
within the meaning of Swiss law. The decision does not invalidate the UBS-US Settlement Agreement or the
Swiss-US Agreement and it does not affect the treaty request to the extent it is directed at accounts in
relation to which such fraudulent activity occurred. Following consultations with the US Government about
measures to ensure the further implementation of the Swiss-US Settlement Agreement, the Swiss
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Government decided on 24 February 2010 that it will seek to amend the Swiss-US Agreement and submit it
to Parliament for approval.

UBS continues, as in the past, to fulfill all of its obligations under the settlements, including, among other
things, the exit of the US cross-border business out of non-SEC registered entities and the provision of
relevant account information to the SFTA under the treaty process.

f) Inquiries Regarding Non-US Cross-Border Businesses: Following the disclosure of the US cross-border
matter and the settlements with the DOJ and the SEC, tax and regulatory authorities in a number of
countries have requested information relating to the cross-border wealth management services provided by
UBS and other financial institutions. In particular, the revenue services of Canada, the UK and Australia
have served requests upon, or made inquiries of, UBS and other Swiss and non-Swiss financial institutions
providing cross-border wealth management services for information relating to such services that is located
in their respective jurisdictions. UBS is cooperating with these requests strictly within the limits of financial
privacy obligations under Swiss and other applicable laws. It is premature to speculate on the outcome of
any such inquiries.

g) Matters Related to the Credit Crisis: UBS is responding to a number of governmental inquiries and
investigations, and is involved in a number of litigations, arbitrations and disputes, related to the credit crisis
and in particular mortgage-related securities and other structured transactions and derivatives. These
matters concern, among other things, UBS’s valuations, accounting classifications, disclosures, writedowns,
and contractual obligations, as well as its role as underwriter in securities offerings for other issuers. In
particular, UBS has communicated with and has responded to inquiries by FINMA, its home country
consolidated regulator, as well as the SEC, the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority and the United States
Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of New York, regarding some of these issues and others, including
the role of internal control units, governance and processes around risk control and valuation of mortgage-
related instruments, compliance with public disclosure rules, and the business rationales for the launching
and the reintegration of Dillon Read Capital Management. FINMA concluded its investigation in October
2008.

h) Claims Related to UBS Disclosure: A putative consolidated class action has been filed against UBS and a
number of current and former directors and senior officers in the Southern District of New York alleging
securities fraud in connection with the firm’s disclosures relating to its losses in the subprime mortgage
markets, its losses and positions in auction rate securities, and its US cross-border business. Defendants
have moved to dismiss the complaint for lack of jurisdiction and for failure to state a claim. UBS and a
number of senior officers and directors have also been sued in a putative consolidated class action brought
on behalf of holders of UBS Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA") retirement plans in which
there were purchases of UBS stock. UBS has moved to dismiss the ERISA complaint for failure to state a
claim.

i) Madoff: In relation to the Madoff investment fraud, UBS, UBS (Luxembourg) SA and certain other
UBS subsidiaries have been subject to inquiries by a number of regulators, including FINMA and the
Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (“CSSF”). Those inquiries concerned two
third-party funds established under Luxembourg law substantially all assets of which were with Bernard L.
Madoff Investment Securities LLC (“BMIS"), as well as certain funds established under offshore jurisdictions
with either direct or indirect exposure to BMIS. These funds now face severe losses. The last reported net
asset value of the two Luxembourg funds before revelation of the Madoff scheme was approximately USD
1.7 billion in the aggregate. The documentation establishing both funds identifies UBS entities in various
roles including custodian, administrator, manager, distributor and promoter, and indicates that UBS
employees serve as board members. On 25 February 2009, the CSSF issued a communiqué with respect to
the larger of the two funds, stating that UBS (Luxembourg) SA had failed to comply with its due diligence
responsibilities as custodian bank. The CSSF ordered UBS (Luxembourg) SA to review its infrastructure and
procedures relating to its supervisory obligations as custodian bank, but did not order it to compensate
investors. On 25 May 2009, UBS (Luxembourg) SA submitted a comprehensive final report to the CSSF,
which resulted in the CSSF publishing a new communiqué saying that UBS (Luxembourg) SA has provided
evidence demonstrating that it has the infrastructure and internal organization in place in accordance with
professional standards applicable to custodian banks in Luxembourg. In addition, on 17 December 2009, a
claim in the amount of EUR 890 million was filed on behalf of the larger of the two Luxembourg funds by
the liquidators of that fund against 15 defendants, including UBS entities, Access Management
Luxembourg SA, Ernst & Young, the CSSF and various individuals. A large number of alleged beneficiaries
have filed claims against UBS entities (and non-UBS entities) for purported losses relating to the Madoff
scheme. Further, certain clients of UBS in Germany are exposed to Madoff-managed positions through
third-party funds and funds administered by UBS entities in Germany.
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j) City of Milan Transactions: In January 2009, the City of Milan filed civil proceedings against UBS Limited,
UBS Italia SIM Spa and three other international banks in relation to a 2005 bond issue and associated
derivatives transactions entered into with the City of Milan between 2005 and 2007. The claim is to recover
alleged damages in an amount which will compensate for terms of the related derivatives which the City
claims to be objectionable. In the alternative, the City seeks to recover alleged hidden profits alleged to
have been made by the banks in the amount of EUR 88 million (of which UBS Limited is alleged to have
received EUR 16 million) together with further damages of not less than EUR 150 million. The claims are
made against all of the banks on a joint and several basis. UBS is vigorously defending the claim. In
addition, a criminal investigation by a Prosecutor in Milan has been ongoing in relation to the same
transactions. In November 2009, the Prosecutor filed a request for committal for trial of two current UBS
employees and one former UBS employee, together with employees from other banking institutions. The
request alleges that the banks’ employees engaged in criminal conduct in order to allow the banks to earn
allegedly concealed profits on the June 2005 bond issue and related derivative transactions. The Prosecutor
also requested committal for trial of UBS Limited and the other banks in relation to the administrative
charge of failing to have in place a business organization model to prevent crime. Preliminary court hearings
are taking place through March 2010.

Besides the proceedings specified above under (a) through (j) no governmental, legal or arbitration
proceedings, which may significantly affect the Issuer’s financial position, are or have been pending during
the last twelve months until the date of this document, nor is the Issuer aware that any such governmental,
legal or arbitration proceedings are threatened.

2. Significant changes in the Financial Situation of the Issuer

On 17 November 2009, at its 2009 Investor Day in Zurich, UBS AG’s Group Executive Board has provided
an update on the ongoing transformation of the firm, and the strategy and medium-term targets that will
characterize UBS’ return to sustainable profitability. The continuing transformation of UBS and the
execution of the business strategies presented to investors will enable UBS to meet specific goals over the
medium-term (3-5 years). At a Group level, UBS aims to achieve: approximately CHF 15 billion of annual
profit before tax; a cost-to-income ratio of 65-70%; and a return-on-equity of
15-20 %. The objectives will be subject to market movements and regulatory changes.

On 29 September 2009, UBS announced that Sergio Marchionne, Senior Independent Director of the
Board of Directors of UBS AG, and Peter Voser will not stand for re-election to the Board at the annual
general meeting which will take place on 14 April 2010. Further, on 7 December 2009, UBS announced
that it has nominated Wolfang Mayrhuber, the Chairman of the Executive Board and CEO of Deutsche
Lufthansa AG, for election to the Board of Directors of UBS AG.

On 15 March 2010, UBS published its Annual Report 2009 and reported a net loss attributable to UBS
shareholders for 2009 of CHF 2,736 million, compared to a net loss of CHF 21,292 million for 2008. This
improvement was due to much lower losses on residual risk positions in the Investment Bank and reduced
operating expenses for the Group. The result for 2009 included a number of significant items, namely an
own credit loss of CHF 2.0 billion which occurred as a result of the markets’ perception of UBS" improved
creditworthiness, charges relating to the sale of UBS Pactual of CHF 1.4 billion, restructuring charges of
CHF 0.8 billion, and a CHF 0.3 billion gain on the mandatory convertible notes converted in August 2009.
The Group's net profit attributable to shareholders for the fourth quarter was CHF 1.2 billion, including a
positive contribution from each of UBS's business divisions. The year-end 2009 BIS tier 1 ratio was 15.4 %,
up from 11.0 % on 31 December 2008. UBS’ total assets stood at CHF 1,341 billion on 31 December
2009, down CHF 674 billion (33 %) from CHF 2,015 billion on 31 December 2008. This decline was due
primarily to significant market driven reductions in replacement values (“RVs") on both sides of the balance
sheet. UBS" FINMA leverage ratio was 3.93 % on 31 December 2009 compared with 2.45 % on 31
December 2008. Net new money outflows in 2009 were CHF 89.8 billion for Wealth Management & Swiss
Bank, compared with CHF 107.1 billion in 2008; CHF 11.6 billion for Wealth Management Americas,
compared with CHF 15.9 billion; and CHF 45.8 billion for Global Asset Management, compared with
CHF 103.0 billion.

Apart from the above-mentioned, there has been no material change in the financial position of the Issuer
since the publication of UBS" Annual Report 2009 (audited) for the period ending on 31 December 2009.
IX. Material Contracts

No material agreements have been concluded outside of the normal course of business which could lead to
UBS being subjected to an obligation or obtaining a right, which would be of key significance to the
Issuer’s ability to meet its obligations to the investors in relation to the issued securities.
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X. Documents on Display

o The restated Annual Report of UBS AG as of 31 December 2008, comprising (i) Strategy,
performance and responsibility, (ii) UBS business divisions and Corporate Center (iii) Risk and treasury
management, (iv) Corporate governance and compensation, (v) Financial information (including the
“Report of the Statutory Auditor and the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on the
Consolidated Financial Statements” and the “Report of the Statutory Auditor on the Financial
Statements”);

o The Annual Report of UBS AG as of 31 December 2009, comprising (i) Strategy, performance and
responsibility, (i) UBS business divisions and Corporate Center (iii) Risk and treasury management,
(iv) Corporate governance and compensation, (v) Financial information (including the “Report of the
Statutory Auditor and the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on the Consolidated Financial
Statements” and the “Report of the Statutory Auditor on the Financial Statements”);

o the Review 2008 and 2009 and the Compensation Report 2008 and 2009;
o The Articles of Association of UBS AG, as the Issuer,

shall be maintained in printed format, for free distribution, at the offices of the Issuer for a period of twelve
months after the publication of this document. In addition, the annual and quarterly reports of UBS AG
(and related review and compensation report) are published on UBS' website, at www.ubs.com/investors or
a successor address. UBS AG's Articles of Association are also available on UBS’ Corporate Governance
website, at www.ubs.com/governance.”

18



4) In the Base Prospectus, in the section entitled “General Information” the paragraph entitled
“VII. Availability of the Prospectus and Other Documents” is completely replaced as follows:

“VIl.  Availability of the Prospectus and Other Documents

So long as any of the Warrants are outstanding copies of the following documents will be available, during
usual business hours on any weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excepted), at the office of [the Fiscal
Agent] [the Issuer]:

[(a)the Agency Agreement (as amended and supplemented from time to time);]

[(b)the Master Subscription Agreement;]

[([c][*]) the Articles of Association of UBS AG;

([]) a copy of the Base Prospectus (together with any supplement including any Final Terms thereto);
([e]) a copy of the restated Annual Report of UBS AG as at 31 December 2008,

([¢]) a copy of the Annual Report of UBS AG as at 31 December 2009.

Copies of the documents referred to under (a) through (e) above and information which refers to sources
such as Bloomberg shall also be maintained in printed format, for free distribution, at the registered offices
of the Issuer [as well as UBS Deutschland AG, Bockenheimer Landstrasse 2 - 4, 60306 Frankfurt am Main,
Federal Republic of Germany,] for a period of twelve months after the publication of the Base Prospectus. In
addition, any annual and quarterly reports of UBS AG are published on the UBS website, at
www.ubs.com/investors or a successor address.”

5) In the Base Prospectus in the section entitled “General Information”, the paragraph entitled
“VIIl. Documents incorporated by reference” is completely replaced as follows:

“VIIl. Documents incorporated by Reference

The following documents shall be incorporated in, and form part of, this Base Prospectus and may be
obtained free of charge at the registered offices of the Issuer [as well as UBS Deutschland AG,
Bockenheimer Landstrasse 2 - 4, 60306 Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany,] for a period of
twelve months after the publication of this Base Prospectus:

Incorporated document Referred to in Information

- UBS Annual Report 2009, in - Business Overview - Description of the Issuer’s
English; pages 71 -107 (inclusive) business groups

- UBS Annual Report 2009, in - Organisational Structure of the | - lllustration of the key subsidiaries
English; pages 350 — 352 Issuer
(inclusive)

- UBS Annual Report 2009, in - Major Shareholders of the Issuer | - Further details on UBS shares
English; pages 187 — 190
(inclusive)

- UBS Annual Report 2008 - Financial Information - Financial Statements of UBS AG
(restated), Financial Information, concerning the lIssuer’s Assets (Group) for the financial year
in English: and Liabilities, Financial Position 2008 (restated):

and Profits and Losses
(i) page 256, (i) Income Statement,
(i) page 257, (i) Balance Sheet,
(i) pages 261 - 262 (inclusive), (iii) Statement of Cash Flows,
(iv) pages 263 - 370 (inclusive), (iv) Notes to the Financial
Statements,
(v) pages 245 - 250 (inclusive), (v) Accounting Standards and
Policies,

(vi) pages 254 - 255 (inclusive). (vi) Report of the Group Auditors

(Parent Bank) for the financial
year 2008 (restated):

(i) page 372, (i) Income Statement,
(i) page 373, (i) Balance Sheet,
(i) page 373, (iii) Statement of Appropriation of

Retained Earnings,
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(iv) pages 374 - 389 (inclusive),

(iv) Notes to the Financial
Statements,

(v) page 371,

(v) Parent Bank Review,

(vi) pages 245 - 250 (inclusive),

(vi) Accounting Standards and
Policies,

(vii) pages 390 - 391 (inclusive).

(vii) Report of the Statutory
Auditors.

UBS Annual Report 2009, in
English:

Financial Information
concerning the lIssuer's Assets
and Liabilities, Financial Position
and Profits and Losses

Financial Statements of UBS AG
(Group) for the financial year
2009:

i) page 255,

i) Income Statement,

iii) pages 261 - 262 (inclusive),

(
(i) Balance Sheet,
(iii) Statement of Cash Flows,

(
(ii) page 257,
(
(

iv) pages 263 - 370 (inclusive),

(iv) Notes to the Financial
Statements,

(v) pages 244 — 248 (inclusive),

(v) Accounting Standards and
Policies,

(vi) pages 252 - 253 (inclusive).

(vi) Report of the Group Auditors.

Financial Statements of UBS AG
(Parent Bank) for the financial
year 2009:

(i) page 372, (i) Income Statement,
(i) page 373, (i) Balance Sheet,
(iii) page 373, (iii) Statement of Appropriation of

Retained Earnings,

(iv) pages 374 — 392 (inclusive),

(iv) Notes to the Financial
Statements,

(v) page 371,

(v) Parent Bank Review,

(vi) pages 244 - 248 (inclusive),

(vi) Accounting Standards and
Policies,

(vii) pages 393 — 394 (inclusive).

(vii) Report of the Statutory
Auditors.

(@) the Quarterly Report of UBS AG as of 31 December 2009 has been filed with the BaFin as appendix
to this Supplement dated 7 April 2010;

(b) the Annual Report 2009 of UBS AG has been filed with the BaFin as appendix to this Supplement

dated 7 April 2010;

() the Restated UBS AG Annual Report 2008 has been filed with the BaFin as appendix to the Base

Prospectus dated 15 June 2009.”

20




Appendix 1: Quarterly Report of UBS AG as at 31 December 2009*

* The following report includes the original document with the original paging which may also include blank pages.
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UBS key figures

For the quarter ended Year ended
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Group results
Operating income 6,095 5,766 (4,696) 22,601 796
Operating expenses T g gy 6359 652 1062 28,555
Operating profit before tax (from continuing
and discontinued operations) 888 (593) (11,239) (2,569) (27,560)
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders - 1205 G64) 9563 2736 (21,292)
Diluted earnings per share (CHF)' 0.31 (0.15) (2.99) (0.75) (7.63)
Key performance indicators, balance sheet and capital management?
Performance
I, q ulty .(-R oE) (%) .................................................................................................................. (.7 . 8) ............... | e .).
Return on risk-weighted assets, gross (%) T g g 12
e assetsgross(%) ................................................................................................................... o
Growth
et pro o growth ( %)3 .......................................................... WA TSR TSR TSR e
Netnew money (CHF billon)¢ T 562) @67 (88 (1473 (226.0)
Efficiency
Cost/incomeratio (%) 839 061 na 030 7530

As of

CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08

Capital strength

BIS tier 1 ratio (%)°

FINMA leverage ratio (%)°
Balance sheet and capital management

IVEIESYES

Equity attributable to UBS shareholders

BIS tier 1 capital®

Additional information

Invested assets (CHF billion) 2,233 2,258 2,174

Personnel (ful-time equivalents) 65233 | 69,023 783
Market capitalization® LYA DI 67,497 43,519

Long-term ratings

FltchLondon ................................................................... T R
MoodysNevaork ............................................................. P S R REEEHE U BRI
Standard&PoorsNewYork ..................................................... U

1 Refer to “Note 8 Earnings per share (EPS) and shares outstanding” in the “Financial information” section of this report. 2 For the definitions of UBS's key performance indicators refer to the “Key
performance indicators” section on page 11 of UBS's financial report for first quarter 2009. 3 Not meaningful if either the current period or the comparison period is a loss period. 4 Excludes interest
and dividend income. 5 Refer to the “Capital management” section of this report. 6 Refer to the “UBS registered shares” section of this report.



UBS and its businesses

UBS is a client-focused financial services firm that offers a combi-
nation of wealth management, asset management and invest-
ment banking services on a global and regional basis. By deliver-
ing a full range of advice, products and services to its private,
corporate and institutional clients, UBS aims to generate sustain-
able earnings, create value for its shareholders, and be economi-
cally profitable in every segment, market and business in which it
operates. Under Swiss company law, UBS is organized as an
Aktiengesellschaft, a corporation that has issued shares of
common stock to investors. UBS AG is the parent company of the
UBS Group (Group). The operational structure of the Group
comprises the Corporate Center and four business divisions:
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank, Wealth Management
Americas, Global Asset Management and the Investment Bank.

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank focuses on delivering comprehensive
financial services to high net worth and ultra high net worth individuals
around the world — except those served by Wealth Management
Americas — as well as private and corporate clients in Switzerland. UBS
provides clients in over 40 countries, including Switzerland, with finan-
cial advice, products and tools to fit their individual needs. UBS has a
leading position across all client segments in Switzerland.

Wealth Management Americas

Wealth Management Americas provides advice-based relationships
through financial advisors who deliver a fully integrated set of products
and services specifically designed to address the needs of high net worth
and ultra high net worth individuals and families. It includes the former
Wealth Management US business unit, as well as the domestic Canadian
business and the international business booked in the United States.

Global Asset Management

Global Asset Management is a large-scale asset manager with well
diversified businesses across regions, capabilities and distribution channels.
It offers investment capabilities and investment styles across all major
traditional and alternative asset classes. These include equities, fixed
income, currency, hedge fund, real estate, infrastructure and private equity
investment capabilities that can also be combined in multi-asset strategies.

Investment Bank

The Investment Bank provides securities and other financial products and
research in equities, fixed income, rates, foreign exchange and precious
metals. It also provides advisory services and access to the world's capital
markets for corporate, institutional, intermediary and alternative asset
management clients.

Corporate Center

The Corporate Center seeks to ensure that the business divisions operate
as a coherent and effective whole by providing and managing support
and control functions for the business divisions and the Group in such
areas as risk control, finance, legal and compliance, funding, capital and
balance sheet management, management of foreign currencies, commu-
nication and branding, human resources, information technology, real
estate, procurement and service centers.
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Fourth quarter 2009 report

Dear shareholders,

2009 was a transformative year for UBS. The actions
we took have created a solid foundation that will support
us in rebuilding our reputation, sustainable profitability and
shareholder value. We achieved a significant milestone in
the fourth quarter by returning to profitability. With sub-
stantial change behind us, we have entered 2010 with re-
newed energy and will focus on executing our strategy in
order to further rebuild our profitability.

We entered 2009 at the height of the crisis, and we end-
ed the year well capitalized with a BIS tier 1 ratio of 15.4%
compared with 11.0% one year before. Cost and head-
count targets that were to be met by the end of 2010 have
largely been achieved. Headcount has been reduced by
12,550 personnel and our fixed cost base has been reduced
by over CHF 3 billion in the last year. We have substantially
reduced risk in the business and reduced our assets and
leverage. Risk-weighted assets and our balance sheet are
down more than 30% compared with the prior year-end,
and our FINMA leverage ratio improved to 3.93% from
2.45% one year earlier.

We achieved positive operating performance across all
business divisions. In the fourth quarter, we reported a net
profit attributable to shareholders of CHF 1,205 million,
compared with a loss of CHF 564 million in the previous
quarter. The quarter included reduced own credit charges on
financial liabilities designated at fair value, lower variable
compensation expenses, and a tax credit that is mainly at-
tributable to the revaluation of deferred tax assets.

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank reported a profit of
CHF 1,109 million before tax, an increase of 40% from the
previous quarter, due mostly to reduced accruals for variable
compensation on a revenue base that was broadly flat. Net
new money outflows were disappointing at CHF 33.2 billion
compared with CHF 16.7 billion in the third quarter. Invested
assets of CHF 22.8 billion were affected by the Italian tax

amnesty, of which CHF 14.3 billion were retained within
UBS. At the same time, inflows in the Swiss corporate and
institutional clients business continued, and we also saw in-
flows in the Asia Pacific region.

Wealth Management Americas reported a pre-tax profit
of CHF 178 million, up from CHF 110 million in the third
quarter. This improvement primarily reflects a non-recurring
interest income credit, increased fee income, as well as lower
variable compensation-related accruals. Outflows of net
new money were CHF 12.0 billion compared with CHF 9.9
billion, reflecting limited recruiting of experienced financial
advisors which did not offset financial advisor attrition. We
remain encouraged as invested assets per financial advisor
have increased during the quarter and are amongst the
highest in the industry.

Global Asset Management reported a profit of CHF 284
million before tax, up CHF 154 million from the prior quar-
ter, due mostly to lower accruals for variable compensation
which more than offset reduced performance fees. Net
new money outflows were CHF 11.0 billion compared with
CHF 10.0 billion, and were concentrated mainly in money
market funds.

The Investment Bank reported a pre-tax profit of CHF
297 million compared with a loss of CHF 1,370 million in
the third quarter. While the investment banking department
improved its results compared with the previous quarter, the
sales and trading activities of the Investment Bank'’s equities
and fixed income, currencies and commodities businesses
were affected by sharp declines in trading and client activity,
particularly in the latter part of the quarter, in common with
the broader markets. The fourth quarter result included a
credit due to changes in the calculation of own credit from
prior periods, which led to a reallocation of negative reve-
nues to the Corporate Center from the Investment Bank.

The Corporate Center's pre-tax result from continuing op-
erations was a loss of CHF 956 million compared with a loss
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of CHF 255 million in the prior quarter. The fourth quarter
result was primarily attributable to the abovementioned
changes to the calculation of own credit.

Our BIS tier 1 ratio rose to 15.4%, up from 15.0% at the
end of September. The balance sheet of the Group was
further reduced in the fourth quarter by CHF 136 billion to
CHF 1,341 billion, and risk-weighted assets declined slightly
to CHF 207 billion, compared with CHF 211 billion in the
third quarter.

During the fourth quarter we set a clear strategic di-
rection to build a new UBS. At our Investor Day in Novem-
ber, we outlined our new strategic direction and the targets
we have established for ourselves. Our goals are to strength-
en our position as a leading global wealth management
business, to be a leading client-focused investment bank and
to be economically profitable in every segment, market and
business in which we operate. We aim to substantially im-
prove our operating performance, building toward our me-
dium-term target of CHF 15 billion in annual profits before
tax.

Within the organization, we have also established the vi-
sion and values needed to fully transform our business and
deliver on our strategic plans. These values focus on strength-
ening and safeguarding our reputation, fully integrating the
bank and ensuring excellence in execution.

Our reputation is our most valuable asset and is ultimate-
ly defined by the actions and decisions we make every day.

To safeguard our reputation, we have introduced more disci-
plined and effective governance processes. We have recently
updated our “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics”, which
sets out the principles for our employees to follow when
dealing with stakeholders. It emphasizes the importance of
recognizing personal responsibility for our corporate behav-
ior. Our management team is committed to enforcing these
principles.

Integrating the bank is critical to serve our clients compre-
hensively, to improve sales performance and to drive efficien-
cies across our businesses. As an example, we have formed a
new Investment Products and Services (IPS) unit, which will
enable us to meet client needs rapidly and directly, by bring-
ing together experts from the various businesses and extend-
ing their knowledge from the development stage through to
execution. We will also be aligning our approach across the
equities and fixed income, currencies and commodities busi-
nesses to improve the flow of information, enhance the rela-
tionships we have with our clients, and improve our product
delivery capabilities. We are committed to delivering the
highest standards of execution to our clients. These guiding
principles will be the foundation of our success.

Our efforts to reposition the firm are taking place
alongside ongoing regulatory changes. Proposed
changes with regard to capital and liquidity adequacy, miti-
gation of the “too big to fail” issue, financial products reg-
ulation, compensation rules or the US “Volcker” proposals
may have profound consequences for the industry as a



whole. We will maintain flexibility in our business model to
adjust to future regulatory changes.

We are continuing to meet our obligations under the
settlement with the US Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
relating to the John Doe summons proceeding. As a re-
sult, the IRS has withdrawn the summons with prejudice with
respect to all accounts other than the approximately 4,450
accounts for which the IRS requested information from Swit-
zerland pursuant to the settlement and in accordance with
the Swiss-US Double Taxation Treaty (DTT).

On 21 January 2010, the Swiss Federal Administrative
Court found that the DTT did not provide a basis for turning
over information with respect to one category of the 4,450
accounts. It is important to understand that the agreement
to provide information with respect to all other categories of
accounts is not affected by this decision. Nor does the Court
decision affect the settlement’s requirement that the sum-
mons be immediately withdrawn with prejudice as to all re-
maining accounts covered by it if the IRS receives informa-
tion on 10,000 UBS accounts from various sources. Among
the potential sources are the approximately 15,000 accounts
disclosed pursuant to the IRS's voluntary compliance ini-
tiative, although it is not yet clear how many of these are
UBS account holders. We are confident that the Swiss and
US governments will undertake cooperative discussions, as
required by the settlement, to find alternative mechanisms
for fulfilling the parties’ obligations, and we are fully sup-
portive of these efforts.

Outlook — In the coming quarters, we expect to see the
effects of the progress we have made in improving operat-
ing efficiency, reducing risk, and rebuilding and re-focusing
our businesses. We are confident that the measures we are
taking to address the causes of client asset outflows will be
effective, but in the immediate future we still expect to re-
port outflows, with some pressure on margins. The Invest-
ment Bank’s results always depend heavily on market vital-
ity, and client activity levels have been high in January.
Although we cannot predict how long this attractive trad-
ing environment will continue, we expect that the Invest-
ment Bank’s performance for 2010 as a whole will improve,
in part because its residual risk positions should have a
much reduced impact on results.

9 February 2010

Yours sincerely,

HLVW_“_\.I, %%WM

Kaspar Villiger Oswald J. Gribel
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Group Chief Executive Officer
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Corporate calendar and information sources

Corporate calendar

Publication of annual report 2009

Publication of second quarter 2010 results

Wednesday, 17 March 2010

Tuesday, 27 July 2010

Contacts

Switchboards

Zurich +4144 234 1111 London +44 20 7568 0000
New York +1212 8213000 Hong Kong ~ +852 2971 8888
Investor Relations

UBS AG, Investor Relations Zurich +41 44 234 4100

P.O: Box, CH-80'98 Zurich, Switzerland New York 11212882 5734
sh-investorrelations@ubs.com oo e T
Www.ubs.com/investors Fax (Zurich) ~ +41 44 234 3415

Media Relations

Zurich +41 44 234 8500
london +44.20 7567 4714
NewVYork  +12128213000
HongKong ~ +85229718888

mediarelations@ubs.com

sh-mediarelations-ap@ubs.com

Shareholder Services

UBS AG, Shareholder Services
P.0. Box, CH-8098 Zurich, Switzerland
sh-shareholder-services@ubs.com

Hotline +41 44 2356202

Fax (Zurich)  +4144 2353154

US Transfer Agent

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
480 Washington Boulevard
Jersey City, NJ 07310, USA
sh-relations@melloninvestor.com
www.melloninvestor.com

Calls from the US: +866 541 9689

Fax +1201 680 4675

Reporting publications

Annual publications: Annual report (SAP no. 80531, English
and German). Includes a letter to shareholders and a descrip-
tion of: UBS's strategy, performance and responsibility; the
strategy and performance of the business divisions and the
Corporate Center; risk, treasury and capital management at
UBS; corporate governance and executive compensation;
and financial information, including the financial statements.
Review (SAP no. 80530; English, German, French and Ital-
ian). This booklet contains key information on UBS's strategy
and financials. Compensation report (SAP no. 2307, English
and German). Compensation of senior management and the
Board of Directors.

Quarterly publications: Letter to shareholders (English,
German, French and Italian). The letter provides a quarterly
update from UBS's executive management on the firm’s
strategy and performance. Financial report (SAP no. 80834,
English). This report provides a detailed description of UBS's
strategy and performance for the respective quarter.

How to order reports: The annual and quarterly publications
are available in PDF format on the internet at www.ubs.com/
investors/topics in the reporting section. Printed copies can be
ordered from the investor services section of the website.
Alternatively, they can be ordered by quoting the SAP number
and the language preference, where applicable, from UBS AG,
Information Center, P.O. Box, CH-8098 Zurich, Switzerland.

Other information

The Investor Relations website: www.ubs.com/investors. This
provides the following information on UBS: financial in-
formation (including results-related SEC filings); corporate
information; UBS share price charts and data and dividend
information; the UBS event calendar; and the latest presen-
tations by management for investors and financial analysts.
Available in English and German, with some sections also
available in French and Italian.

Results presentations: UBS’s quarterly results presentations
are webcast live. A playback of the most recent presentation
is downloadable at www.ubs.com/presentations.

Messaging service/UBS news alert: On the www.ubs.com/
newsalert website, it is possible to subscribe to receive news
alerts about UBS via text message (SMS) or e-mail. Messages
are sent in English, German, French and Italian and it is possi-
ble to state preferences for the theme of the alerts received.
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Group results

Group results

Income statement

For the quarter ended % change from Year ended

CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Continuing operations

Interest income 4,681 5,100 11,534 (8) (59) 23,461 65,679
Interestexpense (2932) (445 9879 (15 (700 (17016 (59,687)
Net interest income 1,749 1,654 1,655 6 6 6,446 5,992
Credit loss (expense) frecovery ®) (226) 310 63 %) (1832 (2,996)
Net interest income after credit loss expense 1,667 1,428 (655) 17 4614 2,996

Other income 52 (340) 306 (83) 599 692
Total operating income 6,095 5,766 (4,696) 6 22,601 796
Personnel expenses 3,323 4,678 2,378 (29) 40 16,543 16,262
General and administrative expenses 1547 1367 373 3 58) 6,248 10,498
Depreciation of property and equipment 280 PE N 3 o ) 1,048 1,241
Impalrmentof goodW|II ............................................... o T g g T 1123 ........... ur
Amortization of intangible assets 33 8 6 () 0 00 213
Total operating expenses 5,183 6,359 6,562 (18) (21) 25,162 28,555
Operating profit from continuing operations before tax 912 (593) (11,258) (2,561) (27,758)
o expense ...................................................... (480) .......... (49) ........ (1 798) ......... (880) ........... s (443) ........ (6837) .
Net profit from continuing operations 1,392 (544) (9,460) (2,118) (20,922)

Discontinued operations

Profit from discontinued operations before tax (25) 0 19 (7) 198

Taxexpense .......................................................... R R g oy
Net profit from discontinued operations (25) 0 19 (7) 198

Net profit 1,368 (544) (9,441) (2,125) (20,724)
Net profit attributable to minority interests 163 21 123 676 33 610 568

R contlnumgoperatlons ....................................... > o oy e L oo e
R dlscontlnuedoperatlons ....................................... Lo R G T o e
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders 1,205 (564) (9,563) (2,736) (21,292)
* from continuing operations 121 (564) @2 @719 (21442
e dlscontlnuedoperatlons ..................................... (26) ............ o R (1 7) .......... I

Performance by business division

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank 1,109 792 535 40 107 3,910 6,013
Weatt l\/lanagem A s o (444) ........... o oo (823) .
GIobaIAssetManagement .......................................... vea w0 e e o JEOCE 1333 .
P oy (1370) ........ (8096) .................................... (6081 ) ....... (34300) .
Coporate Center 956) (255 (3489) @) B (860) 19
Operating profit from continuing

operations before tax 912 (593) (11,258) (2,561) (27,758)




Results: 4Q09 vs 3Q09

Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders was CHF 1,205
million compared with a net loss of CHF 564 million.

This improvement reflects positive operating performance
across all business divisions and included reduced own cred-
it charges, lower accruals for variable compensation, and a
tax credit mainly attributable to the revaluation of deferred
tax assets.

Operating income: 4Q09 vs 3Q09

Total operating income increased to CHF 6,095 million from
CHF 5,766 million.

Net interest income and net trading income

Net interest income before credit losses increased to CHF
1,749 million from CHF 1,654 million. Net trading income
was negative CHF 62 million compared with positive CHF
148 million.

Net interest income comprises income from interest mar-
gin-based activities (e.g. loans and deposits), as well as in-
come earned as a result of trading activities (e.g. coupon and
dividend income). The dividend income component of inter-
est income is volatile from period to period, depending on
the composition of the trading portfolio. In order to provide
a better explanation of the movements in net interest in-
come and net trading income, their total is analyzed below
under the relevant business activities.

- Refer to “Note 3 Net interest and trading income” in the

“Financial information” section of this report for more
information

In fourth quarter 2009, UBS reviewed its approach to
calculate and book own credit of derivative liabilities and
financial liabilities designated at fair value. This led to a real-
location of negative revenues from prior periods to the
Corporate Center from the Investment Bank. It resulted in

Net interest and trading income

a CHF 690 million charge to Net income from treasury
activities and other, and a credit of CHF 684 million to Net
income from trading businesses.

Net income from trading businesses

Net income from trading businesses was CHF 1,025 million
compared with CHF 204 million. Significantly lower losses
on own credit on financial liabilities designated at fair value
more than offset a reduction in the trading income from the
Investment Bank’s fixed income, currencies and commodities
(FICC) businesses in a subdued market environment.

The trading results from the FICC business decreased sig-
nificantly, partially driven by lower levels of client volumes
and activity, and by tightening bid-offer spreads. Trading rev-
enues from the Investment Bank'’s equities business were up
compared with the prior quarter.

The Investment Bank recorded a loss on own credit on
financial liabilities designated at fair value of CHF 24 million
in net trading income, compared with a loss of CHF 1,436
million in the prior quarter. This change was partially due to
the abovementioned change in allocation of revenues from
prior periods. The cumulative own credit gain on existing
financial liabilities designated at fair value still held as at
31 December 2009, amounted to approximately CHF 0.9
billion. Own credit charges in future periods can exceed the
cumulative own credit gain on existing financial liabilities
designated at fair value.

- Refer to “Note 11 Fair value of financial instruments” in the

“Financial information” section of this report for more
information on own credit

Net income from interest margin businesses

Net income from interest margin businesses increased 2% to
CHF 1,229 million from CHF 1,201 million. Margins on loans
and other liabilities were lower in the fourth quarter, but the
decrease in related revenues was more than offset by lower
funding-related interest charges to Wealth Management &
Swiss Bank.

For the quarter ended % change from Year ended

CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Net interest income 1,749 1,654 1,655 6 6 6,446 5,992
Net trading income 62 us 9132 9 (324)  (25820)
Total net interest and trading income 1,688 1,802 (7,477) 6) 6,122 (19,828)
Breakdown by businesses

Net income from trading businesses' 1,025 204 (5,617) 402 382 (27,203)
Net income from interest margin businesses 1,229 1201 150 2 Q0 5053 6,160
Net income from treasury activities and other (566) 398 (34000 8 687 1214
Total net interest and trading income 1,688 1,802 (7,477) 6) 6,122 (19,828)

1 Includes lending activities of the Investment Bank.
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Group results

Net income from treasury activities and other
Net income from treasury activities and other was negative
CHF 566 million compared with positive CHF 398 million.
This change was mainly due to the abovementioned realloca-
tion of negative revenues in relation to own credit on finan-
cial liabilities designated at fair value. Fourth quarter 2009
also included a net gain of CHF 121 million from the revalua-
tion of UBS's option to acquire the SNB StabFund’s equity.
Third quarter 2009 included a loss of CHF 305 million on the
mandatory convertible notes (MCNs) issued in December
2008 and converted in August 2009; a CHF 156 million gain
following UBS’s decision to replace US dollar financing relat-
ing to two of its US dollar entities with Swiss franc financing;
gains of CHF 101 million in relation to currency hedging ac-
tivities; and a net gain of CHF 168 million from the revalua-
tion of UBS'’s option to acquire the SNB StabFund’s equity.
- Refer to “Note 15 Capital increases” in the “Financial
information” section of UBS’s financial report for third
quarter 2009 for more information on the MCNs conversion

Credit loss expenses

UBS recorded credit loss expenses of CHF 83 million in fourth
quarter 2009, compared with CHF 226 million in third quar-
ter 2009.

In the Investment Bank, credit loss expenses in fourth quar-
ter 2009 were CHF 70 million, of which CHF 37 million related
to asset-backed securities that were reclassified from Held for
trading to Loans and receivables in previous quarters. The re-
maining credit losses of CHF 33 million related to loans across
a number of sectors. The Investment Bank’s credit loss ex-
penses in the third quarter were CHF 243 million, of which
CHF 63 million related to reclassified securities.

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank reported net credit
loss expenses of CHF 9 million in fourth quarter 2009, com-
pared with net credit recoveries of CHF 16 million in the pri-
or quarter. New provisions for Swiss clients were only par-
tially offset by releases of allowances that were made against
lombard loans in prior periods.

- Refer to the “Risk management and control” section of this

report for more information on credit risk

Net fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income was CHF 4,438 million,

down 2%, from CHF 4,530 million.

— Underwriting fees were down 10% at CHF 600 million.
Equity underwriting fees decreased 13%, while debt un-
derwriting fees were stable.

— Mergers and acquisitions and corporate finance fees in-
creased 19% to CHF 241 million, as mergers and acquisitions
activities indicated some recovery during the fourth quarter.

— Net brokerage fees fell 6% to CHF 1,056 million, mainly
due to lower fees in the Investment Bank’s cash equities
business and lower client transaction volumes in the
wealth management businesses.

10

— Investment fund fees were up 3% at CHF 1,013 million.
The increase was mainly due to higher asset-based fees in
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank, Wealth Management
Americas and Global Asset Management, and to a lesser
extent due to higher sales-based fees.

— Portfolio management and advisory fees decreased 4% to
CHF 1,459 million. The reduction was mainly due to lower
performance fees in Global Asset Management.

— Other commission expenses decreased 4% to CHF 333
million, mainly due to lower commissions paid to distribu-
tion partners.

-> Refer to “Note 4 Net fee and commission income” in the
“Financial information” section of this report for more
information

Other income

Other income was positive CHF 52 million compared with
negative CHF 340 million in the previous quarter. Fourth
quarter 2009 included net gains from the disposal of finan-
cial investments available for sale, the sale of UBS’s India
Service Centre, and included a net gain from the release
of previously deferred foreign exchange gains and losses
due to the deconsolidation and liquidation of subsidiaries.
This was partially offset by valuation adjustments on units
of a property fund held by Wealth Management & Swiss
Bank. Third quarter 2009 included a loss of CHF 498 million
in relation to the closing of the UBS Pactual sale, and a
net gain of CHF 81 million from the release of previously
deferred foreign exchange gains and losses due to the de-
consolidation and liquidation of subsidiaries.

- Refer to “Note 5 Other income” in the “Financial informa-
tion” section of this report for more information

Operating expenses: 4Q09 vs 3Q09

Total operating expenses decreased 18% to CHF 5,183 mil-
lion from CHF 6,359 million.

Personnel expenses

Personnel expenses were CHF 3,323 million compared with
CHF 4,678 million, mainly due to a reduction in variable
compensation. This drop reflects a significant lowering of
the deferral threshold and increase in the share-based defer-
ral component. This reversed some accruals taken in earlier
quarters, including accruals for conditional deferred cash
awards granted for 2008, a portion of which will now not be
paid. Additionally, personnel expenses were impacted by
personnel reductions mainly in the wealth management
businesses. Fourth quarter 2009 results do not include a pro-
vision for bank payroll tax in the UK.

- Refer to “Note 6 Personnel expenses” in the “Financial
information” section of this report for more information



General and administrative expenses
At CHF 1,547 million, general and administrative expenses
increased by CHF 180 million from CHF 1,367 million. This
increase was mainly due to higher legal and restructuring
provisions, professional fees, as well as travel and entertain-
ment expenses, and was partly offset by decreased adminis-
tration and occupancy costs.
- Refer to “Note 7 General and administrative expenses” in
the “Financial information” section of this report for more
information

Depreciation, amortization and goodwill impairment
Depreciation of property and equipment was CHF 280 mil-
lion, up from CHF 231 million in the prior quarter, and was
largely due to increased purchases of equipment and the
impairment of properties. Amortization of intangible assets
was CHF 33 million, down from CHF 84 million in third quar-
ter 2009. This was mainly due to the writedown of intangi-
ble assets in the third quarter related to UBS (Bahamas) Ltd.
Fourth quarter 2009 included no goodwill impairment
charges.

Tax: 4Q09 vs 3Q09

UBS recognized a net income tax benefit in its income state-
ment of CHF 480 million for fourth quarter 2009.

This net benefit reflects a CHF 467 million increase in US
tax loss deferred tax assets, and also a small increase in Swiss
tax loss deferred tax assets, following updated forecast prof-
it assumptions over the five-year horizon used for recogni-

Net new money’

tion purposes. In addition, it reflects tax expenses relating to
operations in locations with taxable earnings, partially offset
by income tax provision releases.

UBS recognized a net income tax benefit in its income state-
ment of CHF 49 million for third quarter 2009, which reflected
a tax expense relating to operations in profitable locations that
was more than offset by additional deferred tax benefits and a
current tax benefit with respect to an anticipated refund.

Invested assets development: 4Q09 vs 3Q09
Net new money

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

Net new money outflows were CHF 33.2 billion compared
with CHF 16.7 billion. Invested assets of CHF 22.8 billion
were affected by the Italian tax amnesty, of which CHF 14.3
billion were retained within UBS. Total net new money out-
flows from Swiss clients were CHF 5.9 billion, up from CHF
3.9 billion, with the corporate and institutional clients busi-
ness recording net new money inflows. Net new money out-
flows for international clients were CHF 27.3 billion com-
pared with CHF 12.9 billion. The Asia Pacific region showed
positive net new money in the fourth quarter.

Wealth Management Americas

Outflows of net new money in Wealth Management Ameri-
cas were CHF 12.0 billion compared with CHF 9.9 billion.
These were affected by financial advisor attrition and limited
recruitment of experienced financial advisors.
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For the quarter ended Year ended

CHF billion 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Swiss clients (5.9) (3.9) (17.4) (20.1) (41.9)
International clents 273) (129 @30 (697 (652
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank (33.2) (16.7) (60.4) (89.8) (107.1)
Wealth Management Americas (12.0) (9.9) 2.2 (11.6) (15.9)
Institutional (3.8) (1.2) (16.7) (12.7) (55.6)
Wholesale intermediary ) 88 (109  (3) (@474
Global Asset Management (11.0) (10.0) (27.6) (45.8) (103.0)
1 Excludes interest and dividend income.

Invested assets

As of % change from

CHF billion 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 30.9.09 31.12.08
Swiss clients 337 341 325 (1) 4
R S T R ( .3) ............ (.1)
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank 960 982 955 (2) 1
Wealth Management Americas 690 694 644 (1) 7
Institutional 346 346 335 0 3
.V'V'h'olesa‘lé‘i.n.té.rr'ﬁédiary‘HumH Bt by e R (.1)
Global Asset Management 583 583 575 0 1
UBS 2,233 2,258 2,174 (1 3




Group results

Global Asset Management
Net new money outflows were CHF 11.0 billion compared
with CHF 10.0 billion. Excluding money market flows, net
new money outflows were CHF 5.7 billion compared with
CHF 2.3 billion. Institutional net new money outflows
were CHF 3.8 billion compared with CHF 1.2 billion. Ex-
cluding money market flows, institutional net new money
outflows were CHF 3.6 billion, compared with net inflows
of CHF 1.4 billion. Outflows of wholesale intermediary
net new money improved to CHF 7.2 billion from CHF 8.8
billion. Excluding money market flows, wholesale inter-
mediary outflows slowed to CHF 2.1 billion from CHF 3.7
billion.
- Refer to the “UBS business divisions and Corporate Center”
section of this report for more information on net new
money flows

Invested assets

Invested assets stood at CHF 2,233 billion on 31 Decem-
ber 2009, compared with CHF 2,258 billion on 30 Sep-
tember 2009. They were impacted by the abovemen-
tioned net new money outflows as well as negative
currency translation effects, and were partially offset by
positive market movements. Of the invested assets, CHF
960 billion were attributable to Wealth Management &
Swiss Bank, CHF 690 billion were attributable to Wealth
Management Americas and CHF 583 billion were attribut-
able to Global Asset Management. Compared with 31 De-

Personnel by region

cember 2008, UBS's invested assets increased 3% from
CHF 2,174 billion.

Results: 2009 vs 2008

Net loss attributable to shareholders decreased to CHF 2,736
million from CHF 21,292 million, due to much lower losses on
residual risk positions in the Investment Bank. Operating ex-
penses were CHF 25,162 million compared with CHF 28,555
million mainly due to decreases in general and administrative
expenses, which were partially offset by higher goodwill im-
pairment charges related to the sale of UBS Pactual and
slightly increased personnel expenses.

Personnel

UBS employed 65,233 personnel on 31 December 2009,
down 3,790, or 5%, from 30 September 2009. Personnel lev-
els decreased by 1,153 in Wealth Management & Swiss Bank
and 752 in Wealth Management Americas in the fourth quar-
ter, mainly due to attrition and restructuring measures initiat-
ed earlier in 2009. Over the same period, Global Asset Man-
agement personnel levels decreased by 56, Investment Bank
personnel decreased by 464, and Corporate Center personnel
decreased by 1,364. The sale of the India Service Centre (ISC)
led to a reduction of 1,618 personnel, of which 1,225 were
from the Corporate Center. Excluding the sale of the ISC, per-
sonnel in the Corporate Center decreased by 139.

As of % change from
Full-time equivalents 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 30.9.09 31.12.08
Switzerland 24,050 24,925 26,406 (4) (9)
G e e o I )
RestofEurope 4145 4337 4817 @ (14)
Mo bt e e g s W @
o wa sae g R W)
Restof Americas B R R 1130 198 o (43)
M bt Ceses e goss oy G
Total 65,233 69,023 77,783 (5 (16)
Personnel by business division'
As of % change from

Full-time equivalents 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 30.9.09 31.12.08
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank 27,548 28,701 31,016 (4) (11)
Wealth Management Americas 16925 17677 2063 w (18)
Global Asset Management o34 357 3914 @ (11)
Investment Bank 15666 16130 19132 e (18)
Corporate Center 1624 2088 3007 “e) (48)
Total 65,233 69,023 71,783 (5 (16)
o which: personnel managed centrally 19909 22182 23940 a) (17)

1 Prior periods have been adjusted to reflect the amended presentation methodology of ITI and Group Offshoring (excluding the India Service Centre). The respective costs of those two functions have
been moved from the Services (to)/from business divisions line to direct cost lines in divisional income statements, and their headcount has been allocated to the business divisions.
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UBS business divisions and
Corporate Center

Management report



Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

Business division reporting

As of or for the quarter ended % change from Year ended

CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Swiss clients income 1,567 1,476 1,927
R 1211 ......... 1323 ......... 1579 .......................................................
Income 2,778 2,799 3,507
CredltIoss(expense)/recovery(9) .......... e (354) ......................................................
Total operating income 2,769 2,814 3,153

Personnel expenses 1,059 1,438 997

Amortization of intangible assets 5 53 24

Total operating expenses 2,023 2,617

Business division performance before tax 792 535

i mpact o US cross border settommeny e (977) .......................................................

R 'pé}fdrh‘véh'c'é botore oy B
before impact from US cross-border settlement 1,109 792 1,452 40 (24) 3910 6,930

Key performance indicators’

Pre-tax profit growth (%) 40.0 (15.0) (67.8) (35.0) (29.6)

Contineome matio (%) ........................................... os oy Jhe io e

et now r‘ﬁéh'ey'('c'l'-llF X bil‘li'o'n')'z ..................................... (332) ......... (i & .) ......... ( 604) .................................... ( 898) R ( 1 0.7...1.).

'Ifribéilr‘e‘d‘ ‘Iéhdih'g'bblrt‘f‘dli‘d s ot ol I'e'ridi'n'g' .............................................................................................................

portfolio, gross (Swiss clients) 1.0 0.9 1.0

Gross margin on invested assets (bps) (international clients)® 82 8 8 @ ® 8 9%

Additional information

Average attributed equity (CHF billion)* 9.0 9.0 9.0 0 0

Goodwill and intangible assets (CHF billion) 1.6 1.7 1.7 (6) (6)

Recurring income 2,149 2,161 2,551 (1) (16) 8,830 11,613
Invested assets (CHF billion) 960 982 955 (2) 1

Clent ‘a‘s‘s‘ét's'('C'H'F'bi'Iiib‘h) .......................................... isaa 1;847 ......... 1;7.1.1 ............ g g
Personnel (full-time equivalents) 27,548 28701 31,06 @ an
Swiss clients

Net new money (CHF billion)? (5.9) (3.9) (17.4) (20.1) (41.9)
Iestod acsets (CHF \ ‘iI‘Ii‘dh)' ........................................ sy o s (.1 ) ........... ST
International clients

Net new money (CHF billion)? (27.3) (12.9) (43.0) (69.7) (65.2)
estod acsets (CHF il |on) ........................................ o PO G (3) ........... (1 ) ...........................
Client advisors (full-time equivalents) 3,182 338 4236 6 @)

2 Excludes interest and dividend
4 Refer to the “Capital management” section of this report for more

1 For the definitions of UBS's key performance indicators, refer to the “Key performance indicators” section on page 11 of UBS's financial report for first quarter 2009.
income. 3 Excludes valuation adjustments on a property fund (4Q09: CHF 88 million, 3Q09: CHF 31 million, 4Q08: CHF 9 million).
information about the equity attribution framework.

Results: 4Q09 vs 3Q09

Pre-tax profit increased 40% to CHF 1,109 million from CHF
792 million due mostly to changes in variable compensation
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for 2009, which is now oriented more towards share-based
awards that will vest in future periods. Wealth Management
& Swiss Bank financial performance in the quarter reflects
the result of management actions to offset the continuous



pressure on operating income with efficiency gains, in par-
ticular, the impact of headcount reductions.

Operating income
Total operating income was broadly flat at CHF 2,769 million
compared with CHF 2,814 million in the previous quarter.
Recurring income was essentially unchanged at CHF 2,149
million compared with CHF 2,161 million. Asset-based fees
slightly increased, while interest margins particularly re-
mained under pressure. Non-recurring income was CHF 629
million, similar to results reported in the prior quarter. Lower
funding-related interest charges were partially offset by low-
er brokerage and sales commissions, due to reduced client
activities, particularly towards the end of the year. In addi-
tion, the fourth quarter was impacted by a further revalua-
tion adjustment of CHF 88 million on a property fund.
Credit loss expenses were CHF 9 million compared with
net recoveries of CHF 16 million in the previous quarter. New
provisions for Swiss clients were partially offset by releases of
allowances made against lombard loans in prior periods.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses decreased 18% to CHF 1,660 million
from CHF 2,023 million. Personnel expenses decreased 26%
to CHF 1,059 million. During the fourth quarter, it was de-
cided to increase the proportion of share-based awards in-
cluded in variable compensation for 2009, which will be am-
ortized over the vesting period of the awards, leading to
reduced year-end compensation accruals. In contrast, the
third quarter saw increased accruals for variable compensa-
tion, reflecting a larger proportion of variable compensation
for the year 2009 to be paid in cash. Continuous cost and
resource management efforts during 2009 led to reduced
personnel levels in the fourth quarter, positively impacting
the business division’s cost base.

General and administrative expenses increased by CHF 11
million, or 2%, to CHF 510 million. Net charges to other
businesses decreased by CHF 15 million to CHF 10 million.
Depreciation increased by CHF 38 million reflecting writeoffs
for IT equipment. Amortization of intangible assets was
down, as the impairment of intangible assets related to in-
vested asset outflows in UBS (Bahamas) Ltd. was much lower
compared with the third quarter.

Invested assets development: 4Q09 vs. 3Q09

Net new money

Net new money outflows were CHF 33.2 billion compared
with CHF 16.7 billion. Invested assets of CHF 22.8 billion
were affected by the Italian tax amnesty, of which CHF 14.3
billion were retained within UBS. Net new money levels were
also negatively affected by current discussions regarding
Switzerland's banking secrecy and further proposed tax trea-
ties, as well as by further client advisor attrition. Total net

new money outflows from Swiss clients were CHF 5.9 bil-
lion, up from CHF 3.9 billion, with the corporate and institu-
tional clients business recording net new money inflows. Net
new money outflows for international clients were CHF 27.3
billion compared with CHF 12.9 billion. The Asia Pacific re-
gion showed positive net new money in the fourth quarter.

Invested assets

Invested assets stood at CHF 960 million on 31 December
2009, a decrease of CHF 22 billion, or 2%, from 30 Septem-
ber 2009, as net new money outflows during the fourth
quarter were partially offset by higher equity markets.

Gross margin on invested assets (only international clients)
The gross margin on invested assets for international clients
stood at 82 basis points, down from 85 basis points in the
third quarter. This excludes the abovementioned valuation
adjustments on a property fund. The recurring income mar-
gin decreased 1 basis point to 61 basis points, mainly as in-
terest income was slightly down. The non-recurring income
margin was down 2 basis points to 21 basis points, due to
reduced client activity towards the end of the year.

Results: FY09 vs FY08

Pre-tax profit decreased 35% to CHF 3,910 million from CHF
6,013 million. The decline in profit was driven by a 24% drop
in operating income, resulting from lower asset-based fees
and lower transaction income. This was combined with de-
creased interest income, resulting from margin pressure as
well as increased internal funding-related interest charges.

Operating expenses were reduced 17% as a result of cost-
saving measures in place. Excluding the restructuring charges
of CHF 322 million booked in 2009, and the provision of CHF
917 million booked in fourth quarter 2008 in connection
with the US cross-border case, operating expenses declined
12%. Personnel expenses decreased 9% excluding restruc-
turing charges due to an 11% reduction in personnel levels
which was weighted towards the end of the year. Excluding
the abovementioned provision in connection with the US
cross-border case as well as restructuring charges, non-per-
sonnel expenses declined 17%, mainly due to lower expens-
es for travel and entertainment, advertising and IT costs.

Personnel

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank employed 27,548 per-
sonnel on 31 December 2009, down 1,153 from 28,701 on
30 September 2009, due to attrition and the abovemen-
tioned restructuring measures.

The number of client advisors in the international clients
business was down by 204, or 6%, to 3,182 as the business
division further adjusted its client-facing capacity to the current
market environment, and some client advisors left voluntarily.
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Wealth Management Americas

Wealth Management Americas

Business division reporting

As of or for the quarter ended % change from Year ended

CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Income 1,394 1,377 1,455 1 (4) 5,546 6,278
s /mpact ............................................................ (772) .................................................... (772)
CredltIoss(expense)/recovery ......................................... g G (16) ........................................ g (29)
Total operating income 1,395 1,378 1,439 1 (3) 5,550 6,249
Personnel expenses 946 1,001 909 (5) 4 4,231 4,271
General and administrative expenses 26 08 902 9 (13 1007 2,558
ofwh/chARSsett/ement/mpact .............................................................. 5457464
Serwces(to)/fromotherbu5|nessd|V|5|ons(6) ............ g /EREEE RIS e
Depreuatlonof propertyandeqmpment ............................... 5 o o s (27) .......... e e
Impalrmentof goodW|II ................................................ o G G T woy
Amortization of intangible assets u % 7 (13 1y 62 65
Total operating expenses 1,217 1,268 1,883 (4) (35) 5,518 7,072
Business division performance before tax 178 110 (444) 62 32 (823)
i ARS settloment /mpact ............................................................ (777) ................................................... (7 636)
o diior perfor e belora

excluding ARS settlement impact 178 110 273 62 (35) 32 813
Key performance indicators’
Pre-tax profit growth (%)? 61.8 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Contlicoma it (%) ............................................. es o g g5 6
et new money(CHF bil‘li'o'n')é ...................................... (1 5 .0.) .......... (.9. 9) RNy ( e '6') ......... (‘1.5. 9)
o margm o ested st (bps) ................................ o g P g (2) ........... g s
Additional information
Average attributed equity (CHF billion)* 8.0 9.0 9.0 (1) (11)
Returnonattnbutedeqwty(Ran)("/u)04 ......... (‘1'0”6)'
as nskwelghted assets(CHFblIIlon) ................................ e g g PR (1 5) .............................
et o nskwelghted o g e (%) ..................................................................................................... e g
Goodwill and intangible assets (CHF billon) 42 a2 45 o o
Recurring income 812 834 1,009 (3) (20) 3,256 4,076
Invested assets (CHF billion) 690 694 644 (1) 7
Cion assets(CHFblIIlon) ........................................... T e w g
Personnel (full-time equivalents) 16,925 17,677 20,623 (4) (18)
Finandial advisors (full-time equivalents) 7084 7286 8607 | @ ay
Additional information (only Wealth Management US)
Net new money (CHF billion)* (11.0) (8.6) 4.1 (7.6) (10.6)
et newr moneyln cIudmg R
and dividend income (CHF billion)® (6.1) (4.2) 9.9 1.5 1.7

Business division reporting excluding PaineWebber acquisition costs®

Business division performance before tax 207 W o (@09 AT 155 (689)
Cost/income ratio (%) el 85 8.9 1266 a3 1o4
Average attributed equity (CHF billion)* 4.6 5.5 5.3 (16) (13)

1 For the definitions of UBS's key performance indicators, refer to the “Key performance indicators” section on page 11 of UBS's financial report for first quarter 2009. 2 Not meaningful if either the
current period or the comparison period is a loss period. 3 Excludes interest and dividend income. 4 Refer to the “Capital management” section of this report for more information about the equity
attribution framework. 5 For purposes of comparison with US peers. 6 Acquisition costs represent goodwill and intangible assets funding costs and intangible asset amortization costs related to UBS's
2000 acquisition of the PaineWebber retail brokerage business.
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Results: 4Q09 vs 3Q09

Pre-tax profit for Wealth Management Americas increased
62% to CHF 178 million from CHF 110 million. This in-
crease was mainly due to higher operating income, includ-
ing a significant non-recurring interest income credit and
lower operating expenses.

Operating income

Total operating income increased 1%, or CHF 17 million, to
CHF 1,395 million. Excluding the impact of currency transla-
tion, operating income would have increased 5%.

Recurring income decreased 3% from the third quarter
due to lower interest income resulting from lower interest
spreads, and was partially offset by higher fees from managed
accounts. Recurring income was 58% of total operating in-
come, down from 61% from the prior quarter. Non-recurring
income increased 7%, due to a CHF 35 million interest credit
from the Investment Bank, resulting from a change in the UBS
Bank USA investment portfolio strategy, and higher transac-
tional revenue. This was partly offset by lower municipal trad-
ing income.

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses decreased 4% to CHF 1,217 mil-
lion from CHF 1,268 million due mainly to lower personnel
costs. Excluding the impact of currency translation, operat-
ing expenses would have been relatively flat from the prior
quarter.

Personnel expenses decreased 5% to CHF 946 million
from CHF 1,001 million in the previous quarter. In US dollar
terms, personnel expenses were down 2% due to lower ac-
cruals for variable compensation, and lower salary expenses
related to a 5% reduction of non-financial-advisor personnel
during the quarter which were partly offset by increased fi-
nancial advisor compensation related to higher revenue.
Non-personnel expenses were CHF 271 million, up 1% from
the prior quarter and up 6% in US dollar terms due to high-
er legal fees, provisions and depreciation costs, partly offset
by lower service charges from other business divisions, insur-
ance costs and amortization of intangible assets.

Invested assets development: 4Q09 vs 3Q09

Net new money

Net new money outflows in Wealth Management Americas
were CHF 12.0 billion compared with CHF 9.9 billion in the
prior quarter. The former Wealth Management US business
unit's net new money outflows were CHF 11.0 billion com-
pared with CHF 8.6 billion. Fourth quarter 2009 net new

money was impacted by financial advisor attrition and limit-
ed recruitment of experienced financial advisors. Including
interest and dividends, the former Wealth Management US
business unit saw net new money outflows increase to CHF
6.1 billion from CHF 4.2 billion in the prior quarter.

Invested assets

Invested assets decreased by CHF 4 billion to CHF 690 billion
on 31 December 2009, due mainly to net new money out-
flows and a reduction of CHF 4 billion as a result of the com-
pletion of the sale of branches to Stifel, Nicolaus & Company,
Incorporated, partly offset by positive market performance.

Gross margin on invested assets

The gross margin on invested assets increased 2 basis points
to 81 basis points as the average invested assets were virtu-
ally unchanged, while revenues increased. The non-recurring
income margin increased 3 basis points to 34 basis points,
due to the abovementioned interest credit and higher trans-
actional revenue. The recurring income margin decreased 1
basis point to 47 basis points, corresponding with a 3% de-
cline in recurring income.

Results: FY09 vs FY08

Wealth Management Americas reported a pre-tax profit of CHF
32 million in 2009 compared with a pre-tax loss of CHF 823
million in 2008. The 2009 results were negatively impacted by
restructuring charges of CHF 152 million, and goodwill impair-
ment charges of CHF 34 million related to the sale of UBS Pac-
tual (of which CHF 15 million were charged to the Corporate
Center), while the 2008 performance was negatively impacted
by CHF 1,636 million in charges and trading losses related to
auction rate securities (ARS). Excluding the restructuring charg-
es, ARS provisions and goodwill impairment charges, pre-tax
performance would have been a profit of CHF 203 million in
2009 compared with a profit of CHF 813 million in 2008.

Personnel

Wealth Management Americas employed 16,925 personnel
at 31 December 2009, down 4% or 752 from 30 September
2009. Non-financial-advisor personnel decreased by 550, or
5%, to 9,841 due to attrition, personnel reductions in the
branch network and a reduction of 46 personnel as a result
of the final sale of branches to Stifel, Nicolaus & Company,
Incorporated. The number of financial advisors decreased by
202, or 3%, to 7,084 as a result of voluntary departures,
slower recruiting and the reduction of 74 personnel in con-
nection with the abovementioned sale of branches.
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Global Asset Management

Global Asset Management

Business division reporting

As of or for the quarter ended % change from Year ended
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Institutional fees 325 347 235 (6) 38 1,273 1,659
Wholesalemtermedlaryfees ......................................... o o B ( 4) e (13) .......... s 1246 .
Total operating income 537 567 478 (5) 12 2,137 2,904
Personnel expenses 139 311 76 (55) 83 996 946
General and administrative expenses 3 7 22 1 @) 87 162
Senvices (to) /from other business divisions 7 3 u 7 A 88
Depreaatlonof propertyandeqmpment ............................... o g Lo o ( 8) ........... e e
Impalrmentof goodW|II ................................................ o R g T ey
FRas oflntanglbleassets ...................................... Sy s G (67) ........... o e
Total operating expenses 253 437 242 (42) 5 1,698 1,572
Business division performance before tax 284 130 236 118 20 438 1,333

Key performance indicators'’
Pre-tax profit growth (%)

Net new money (CHF billion)?

Gross margin on invested assets (bps) (institu

Gross margin on invested assets (bps) (wholesale intermediary)

Additional information

Average attributed equity (CHF billion)? 25 2.5 3.0 0 (17)
Returnonattnbutedequny(Ran)(%)159 .......... e
BISnskwelghted assets(CHFblIIlon) ................................. a e ( 7)(52) .............................
Aot on nskwe|ghted s g B (%) .................................................................................................... G i
Coodil and|ntang|b|eassets(CHFbllllon) ........................... L ey g (23) .............................
Invested assets (CHF billion) 583 583 575 0 1

Personnel (full-time equivalents) 3,471 3,527 3,914 (2) (1)

Institutional

Net new money (CHF billion)? (3.8) (1.2) (16.7) (12.7) (55.6)
R oney et (0 2) .......... (.2. 6) .......... R S,
g (CHF i |on) ........................................ e I e SRR g T
R oney R P PR Lo S S

Wholesale intermediary

Net new money (CHF billion)? (7.2) (8.8) (10.9) (33.1) (47.4)
R oney g (5 ; ) .......... (5 7) .......... S ( b 3) .......... B
e et (CHF : ‘iI‘Ii‘o'h)' ........................................ J e g SRR (.1 ) .............................
R oney et S R R W ( 7) .......... (’ 6) .............................

1 For the definitions of UBS's key performance indicators, refer to the “Key performance indicators” section on page 11 of UBS's financial report for first quarter 2009. 2 Excludes interest and dividend
income. 3 Refer to the "Capital management” section of this report for more information about the equity attribution framework.
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Results: 4Q09 vs 3Q09

Global Asset Management's pre-tax profit rose to CHF 284
million from CHF 130 million. Lower operating income was
more than offset by a partial reversal of variable compensa-
tion accruals and the impact of cost-saving measures imple-
mented earlier in 2009.

Operating income

Total operating income decreased 5% to CHF 537 million from
CHF 567 million. Institutional revenues declined 6% to CHF
325 million from CHF 347 million, mainly due to lower perfor-
mance fees in alternative and quantitative investments, and
following the sale of UBS Pactual in third quarter 2009. Whole-
sale intermediary revenues declined 4% to CHF 212 million
from CHF 220 million following the sale of UBS Pactual, and
were partly offset by higher transaction fees in real estate.

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses were CHF 253 million compared
with CHF 437 million. Personnel expenses were CHF 139
million, down from CHF 311 million. During the fourth quar-
ter, UBS decided to increase the proportion of share-based
awards included in variable compensation for 2009, which
will be amortized over the vesting period of the awards,
leading to a partial reversal of accruals made in the first nine
months of 2009. The decrease was partly offset by higher
restructuring costs of CHF 7 million associated with ongoing
personnel reductions in fourth quarter 2009. General and
administrative expenses increased by CHF 1 million to CHF
93 million. Services (to)/from other business divisions de-
creased by CHF 16 million following the sale of UBS Pactual
in the third quarter, coupled with higher charges for the al-
ternative and quantitative investments research collabora-
tion with Wealth Management & Swiss Bank.

Invested assets development: 4Q09 vs 3Q09

Net new money
Net new money outflows were CHF 11.0 billion in the fourth
quarter compared with CHF 10.0 billion. Excluding money
market flows, net new money outflows were CHF 5.7 billion
compared with CHF 2.3 billion. Negative net flows from cli-
ents of UBS's wealth management businesses declined to
CHF 7.2 billion from CHF 13.3 billion in the third quarter.
Some of the inflows and outflows relating to clients of UBS's
wealth management businesses are also reported as net new
money for the Wealth Management & Swiss Bank and
Wealth Management Americas business divisions.
Institutional net new money outflows were CHF 3.8 bil-
lion compared with CHF 1.2 billion. Excluding money market
flows, institutional net new money outflows were CHF 3.6
billion, compared with net inflows of CHF 1.4 billion. Equi-
ties, multi-asset and real estate saw net outflows, which

were partly offset by net inflows in fixed income and alterna-
tive and quantitative investments.

Wholesale intermediary net new money outflows were
CHF 7.2 billion compared with CHF 8.8 billion. Excluding
money market flows, wholesale intermediary outflows re-
duced to CHF 2.1 billion from CHF 3.7 billion. Net outflows
were reported in multi-asset, fixed income and equities,
while real estate and alternatives saw net inflows.

Invested assets

Total invested assets were CHF 583 billion on 31 December
2009, unchanged from 30 September 2009. Institutional in-
vested assets were CHF 346 billion on 31 December 2009,
unchanged from 30 September 2009. Net new money out-
flows were offset by the positive impact of financial market
developments. Wholesale intermediary invested assets were
CHF 237 billion on 31 December 2009, unchanged from 30
September 2009. The positive impact of financial market de-
velopments and a transfer of CHF 4.2 billion related to the
transfer of real estate investment management business
from Wealth Management & Swiss Bank were offset by net
new money outflows and the negative impact of currency
fluctuations.

Gross margin on invested assets

The gross margin on institutional invested assets decreased by
2 basis points to 38 basis points, mainly due to lower perfor-
mance fees, particularly in alternative and quantitative invest-
ments. The gross margin on wholesale intermediary invested
assets decreased by 1 basis point to 36 basis points, primarily
due to the sale of UBS Pactual in third quarter 2009.

Results: FY09 vs FY08

Pre-tax profit decreased to CHF 438 million from CHF 1,333
million. Excluding the goodwill impairment charge in first
quarter 2009 of CHF 191 million related to the sale of UBS
Pactual, restructuring costs of CHF 48 million, and a gain of
CHF 168 million from the sale of UBS's minority stake in
Adams Street Partners in third quarter 2008, pre-tax profit
would have decreased 42% to CHF 677 million. Total oper-
ating income declined 26% to CHF 2,137 million from CHF
2,904 million. Institutional revenues declined to CHF 1,273
million from CHF 1,659 million due to lower management
fees associated with a lower average invested assets base
and the sale of UBS Pactual, partly offset by higher perfor-
mance fees in alternative and quantitative investments. Ad-
ditionally, as noted above, 2008 institutional revenue includ-
ed a gain of CHF 168 million from the sale of UBS's minority
stake in Adams Street Partners. Wholesale intermediary rev-
enues declined to CHF 863 million from CHF 1,246 million,
due to lower management fees associated with a lower av-
erage invested assets base and lower performance fees from
some funds.
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Global Asset Management

Total operating expenses increased 8% to CHF 1,698 mil-
lion from CHF 1,572 million. Excluding the goodwill impair-
ment charge in first quarter 2009 and restructuring charges
during the whole period, operating expenses would have
declined 7%. This reflected lower general and administrative
expenses, mainly in entertainment expenses, marketing costs,
IT costs and professional fees as a result of ongoing cost-sav-
ing measures and the sale of UBS Pactual, and was partly off-
set by higher variable compensation accruals driven by higher
performance fees in alternative and quantitative investments.

Personnel

The number of personnel on 31 December 2009 was 3,471,
a 2% decrease from 3,527 on 30 September 2009. This de-
crease reflected continuing actions across the business divi-
sion to reduce the cost base while maintaining appropriate
resource levels.

Investment capabilities and performance: 4Q09

The notable improvement in investment performance versus
benchmark in many traditional strategies, which began in
2008 and gathered momentum during 2009, was sustained
in the fourth quarter. Alternative strategies generally showed
positive results in improving markets.

Core/value equities

Strong performance continued in the fourth quarter across
many strategies that had outperformed their benchmarks in
the first nine months of 2009. Notable performers were
Global, Asian and Emerging Markets and Pan European con-
centrated alpha strategies. Good stock selection across a
broad range of industry sectors was the primary positive fac-
tor. While Canadian strategies did less well in the quarter,
they remained solid over longer periods. UK value strategies
were below benchmark for the quarter but remained ahead
for the full year.

Growth equities

Performance was generally good for the quarter, contribut-
ing to a strong year. The US large cap select growth, US small
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cap growth and global (ex US) all cap growth strategies out-
performed their benchmarks for the quarter, each due large-
ly to stock selection. US mid cap growth and emerging mar-
kets growth both underperformed during the quarter but
the latter remained ahead over the full year.

Structured equities

Systematic alpha Global and European strategies outperformed
their benchmarks for the quarter while US, Swiss and UK strat-
egies were closer to benchmark. Systematic alpha strategies in
all regions were ahead of benchmark over the full year. The
performance of quantitative strategies was mixed but Global
market neutral, US enhanced and Global and Japanese active
strategies were all ahead of benchmark for the quarter.

Fixed income

Performance across most key bond strategies continued the
improving trend of the first nine months of 2009, with the
majority of key strategies outperforming their respective
benchmarks for the fourth quarter. Global sovereign, Austra-
lian, Canadian, euro aggregate, Japanese and US strategies
all outperformed their benchmarks and UK strategies signifi-
cantly outperformed their benchmarks. The performance of
Swiss strategies was close to benchmark. Emerging market
and high yield strategies were ahead of their benchmarks.
Money market funds continued to achieve their capital pres-
ervation objectives.

Global investment solutions

The performance of multi-asset strategies, including the
global securities composite and dynamic alpha strategies,
was strongly positive during the quarter. Asset allocation,
currency management and security selection all contributed
to this result. These strategies had been positioned for a re-
covery in risky assets such as equities, and thus benefited
from the upswing in equity markets that continued through-
out the fourth quarter. The strong performance during the
second, third and fourth quarters more than offset the un-
derperformance reported in the first quarter, leaving these
strategies significantly ahead of their benchmarks for the full
year. Multi-manager investment solutions generally delivered
positive returns.



Alternative and quantitative investments

Hedge funds continued to experience positive momentum in
the fourth quarter. The single manager platform, O’Connor,
generally posted positive absolute returns with continued
strong performance in the multi-strategy and credit strate-
gies, posted positive returns in the equity long/short strate-
gies but posted negative returns for the currency and rates
and quantitative strategies. On the multi-manager platform,
absolute returns were positive for the fund of funds strate-
gies in the fourth quarter.

Investment performance — key composites

Global real estate

The UK direct real estate funds produced positive absolute
returns for the second consecutive quarter, while the decline
in value of the US composite reduced for the fourth con-
secutive quarter. The Germany-based eurozone funds all
produced positive absolute returns for the quarter, as did all
of the Swiss direct funds. The J-REIT flagship fund (managed
in collaboration with joint venture partner Mitsubishi Corpo-
ration) underperformed in absolute terms. Real estate securi-
ties strategies posted mixed performance versus benchmarks
for the quarter, but all strategies produced positive absolute
returns for the full year. Performance of the global fund of
funds strategy gathered momentum over the quarter and
ended positive in absolute terms.

The table below shows key composites that represent approximately 18% of Global Asset Management's invested assets on

31 December 2009.

Annualized
3 months 1 year 3 years 5 years

Australian Equity Composite vs. S&P/ASX 300 Accumulation Index + + + +
Canadian Equlty 'Compo‘sft'e'\'/é TSETotal Return Index + +
Emerging Equity Composite vs. Emerging Markets Equity Index + + v +
Global Equity Composite vs. MSCI World Equity (Free) Index + + + +
Pan Eurohé.ahuc'dmposné vs .l\./I'S'CI Euro‘p‘e. .F.r.eé'lndex .................. + ........ + ........ + ........ + ......
valss qujl;[y .C.(.)fﬁposne vs. SPI '('Total Return) ndex + + + +
US Large Caquwty Corﬁ‘p.c.)stltté'vs Rus‘séiI.iO'O'O Indei .................. + ........ + ........ . + ......
Global Equity Ex-US Growth Composite vs. MSCI EAFE (Free) Index + - + +
US Large Cap Select Growth Equity Composite vs. Russell 1000 Growth Index + v + +
EUR Aggr‘e‘g.ét.e. 'B'onds Comp05|te vs. Ba‘r‘ctléy./é 'C'apltal E‘u.rc}.Aﬂggregate‘ 500m|o+ Indék ..... + ........ + ........ + ........ + ......
Global Bo‘hdtctéﬁiposne vs. Elﬂéroup World Government Bond Index + + +

Global Securities Composite vs. Global Securities Markets Index + v - -
Global Real Estate Secur‘lt‘lé's'c'dhwposne‘(Hédgéd in CH‘F‘) """"""""""" + """"" _ """"" _ """"" _ """"

vs. FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Index (hedged in CHF)/reference index'

(+) above benchmark; () under benchmark; (=) equal to benchmark. All are before the deduction of investment management fees. Global composites are stated in USD terms; all others are in appropri-
ate local currencies (unless otherwise stated). A composite is an aggregation of one or more portfolios in a single group that is representative of a particular strategy, style, or objective. The composite is
the asset-weighted average of the performance results of all the portfolios it holds. Global Asset Management has been verified as compliant with the Global Investment Performance Standards by Ernst

& Young on a firm-wide basis to 31 December 2008.

1 Prior to 30 September 2005 returns for the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Global Real Estate Index hedged into CHF are based on published data, currency translation and hedging into CHF and are calculated
internally. Thereafter, UBS has contracted with FTSE, the index provider, to provide on a customized request basis CHF hedged returns for the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Global Real Estate Index. On 23 March
2009 the Index name changed to FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Index. Reference index returns are provided for reference purposes only.
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Investment Bank

Investment Bank

Business division reporting

As of or for the quarter ended % change from Year ended
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Investment banking 746 698 528 7 41 2,466 2,880
Adwsory e s o e G (33) ......... ges 1609 .
Capital market revenves 590 670 e 1 58 2514 1,844
e Equmes ...................................................... s o B (1 9) .......... B 1609 .......... e
© Fixed income, currencies and commodities 185 7 1w 9 R 04 866
Other fee ncome and risk menagement (76 (7 (95 s6 61 (908 (73
Sales and trading 1,445 2,147 (3,489) (33) 4,390 (26,712)
Equmes ........................................................ s 1162 .......... by (18) ......... SR 4937 ......... 5184 .
Fixed income, currencies and commodities 496 985 37200 (0 (547) (31,895
Total income 2,191 2,845 (2,961) (23) 6,856 (23,832)
Creditloss (expense) /recovery' ) 243 1939 (@) (%) (1,69) (2575
Total operating income excluding own credit 2,121 2,603 (4,900) (19) 5,158 (26,407)
Own credit? (24) (1,436) (1,616) 98 99 (2,023) 2,032
Total operating income as reported 2,097 1,167 (6,516) 80 3,135 (24,375)
Personnel expenses 1,020 1,766 359 (42) 184 5,568 5,182
General and administrative expenses 653 s 9% “wo e 2628 3,830
Services (to)/from other business divisions 15 224 0 8 (63 (14 a
Depreciation of property and equipment 100 63 V- 59 43) 0 a7
Impalrm ot goodW|II ............................................ o G R R e ur
FRSI. oflntanglbleassets ................................... Ho G o ( 8) o (40) .......... o s
Total operating expenses 1,800 2,537 1,580 (29) 14 9,216 9,925
Business division performance before tax 297 (1,370) (8,096) (6,081) (34,300)
Key performance indicators?
Pre-tax profit growth (%)* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
ot (%)5 ........................................... g g RN g U
Return on attributed equity (RoaE) (%) (24.1) (128.2)
Returnonassetsgross(%)04 ......... (12)
Average VaR (1-day, 95% confidence,
5 years of historical data)® 51 51 75 0 (32)
Additional information
Total assets (CHF billion)’ 992.0 1,119.3 1,680.3 (1) 41)
Averageattr e equny(CHF i |on)3 .............................. ao ST o SRR (8) ...........................
as nskwelghted assets(CHFb|II|on) .............................. ima Geg g (3) o (37) ...........................
Returnonnskwelghtedassetsgross(%)31 .......... (‘1.0..0.).
Goodwill and intangible assets (CHF billon) 35 35 a6 o
Compensation ratio (%)° 471 125.3 N/A 115.2 N/A
Impaired lending portfolio as a % of
total lending portfolio, gross 3.8 3.5 2.6
Personnel (full-time equivalents) 15,666 16,130 19,132 (3) (18)

1 Includes CHF 156 million for 3Q09 and CHF 30 million for 4Q09 in credit losses from impairment charges on reclassified financial instruments. 2 Represents changes in own credit on financial liabil-
ities designated at fair value through profit or loss. The cumulative own credit gain for such debt held at 31 December 2009 amounts to CHF 0.9 billion. This gain has reduced the fair value of financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss recognized on UBS's balance sheet. Refer to “Note 11 Fair value of financial instruments” in the “Financial information” section of this report for
more information. 3 For the definitions of UBS's key performance indicators, refer to the “Key performance indicators” section on page 11 of UBS's financial report for first quarter 2009. 4 Not
meaningful if either the current period or the comparison period is a loss period. 5 Neither the cost/income nor the compensation ratio are meaningful if revenues in the Investment Bank are nega-
tive.  6As announced in UBS's financial report for third quarter 2009, UBS received approval from the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA) to change the calibration of its management
VaR from a 10-day 99% measure to a 1-day 95% measure. This measure is reported as a key performance indicator with comparatives provided as at 31.12.2008. 7 Based on third-party view, i.e.
without intercompany balances. 8 Refer to the " Capital management” section of this report for more information about the equity attribution framework.
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Results: 4Q09 vs 3Q09

The pre-tax result was positive CHF 297 million compared
with negative CHF 1,370 million. An own credit charge of
CHF 24 million on financial liabilities designated at fair value
was included in the fourth quarter result, compared with a
charge of CHF 1,436 million in the third quarter.

Operating income

Total operating income was CHF 2,097 million compared
with CHF 1,167 million. Increased revenues from the invest-
ment banking department (IBD), lower own credit losses on
financial liabilities designated at fair value and lower credit
loss expenses were partly offset by a decrease in revenues in
the equities and fixed income, currencies and commodities
(FICC) areas. Equities and FICC revenues fell as a result of a
broader market slowdown in the fourth quarter, lower vol-
umes and more limited trading opportunities.

Credit loss expenses
Credit loss expenses were CHF 70 million, down from CHF
243 million.
-> Refer to the “Risk management and control” section of this
report for more information on credit loss expenses and
credit risk

Own credit
Own credit losses on financial liabilities designated at fair
value were CHF 24 million. This compares with a loss of CHF
1,436 million in the third quarter. The fourth quarter result
included a credit due to changes to the calculation of own
credit from prior periods, which led to a reallocation of neg-
ative revenues to the Corporate Center from the Investment
Bank.
-> Refer to “Note 11 Fair value of financial instruments” in the
“Financial information” section of this report for more
information on own credit

Operating income by business segment

Investment banking

Total revenues increased 7% to CHF 746 million from CHF
698 million. Consistent with previous years, in fourth quar-
ter 2009 advisory revenues were up on a seasonal basis,
recording a 17% increase to CHF 233 million. Capital mar-
kets revenues were down 12% to CHF 590 million, despite
an improved performance in fixed income capital markets
which posted a 9% increase in revenues. Equity capital
markets saw a 19% decrease in revenues. Other fee in-
come and risk management revenues were negative CHF

76 million compared with negative CHF 171 million, with
the improvement due to stabilizing credit market condi-
tions during the fourth quarter.

Sales and trading
Total sales and trading revenues for equities and FICC were
CHF 1,445 million, compared with CHF 2,147 million.

Equities

Revenues decreased 18% to CHF 948 million from CHF
1,162 million, as the business was affected by subdued vol-
umes and a general slowdown in client flows. Cash revenues
were driven down by a decline in commission income and
lower trading volumes. Exchange-traded derivatives reve-
nues were down, due to falling volumes and lower interest
income revenues. Derivatives revenues improved slightly, de-
spite falling structured products revenues and a continued
lack of liquidity. Prime brokerage revenues were flat on the
prior quarter as a small increase seen in prime brokerage bal-
ances was offset by a decline in spreads. Proprietary trading
and equity-linked revenues decreased from the previous
quarter.

Fixed income, currencies and commodities
FICC revenues declined 50% to CHF 496 million from CHF
985 million.

Credit revenues were in line with the previous quarter.
Macro revenues, particularly in rates, declined driven by a
drop in client volumes, trading opportunities and tightening
bid/offer spreads. Emerging markets revenues were flat in
Asia, but declined elsewhere.

While UBS continues to reduce its exposure to residual
risk positions, it incurred losses of CHF 0.5 billion in fourth
quarter 2009 that were only partially offset by the release of
credit valuation adjustments (CVA) for protection from
monoline insurers of approximately CHF 0.2 billion. In the
third quarter, losses on residual risk positions were fully off-
set by gains of CHF 0.5 billion from the release of CVAs for
protection from monoline insurers.

Operating expenses
Total operating expenses were CHF 1,800 million compared
with CHF 2,537 million.

Personnel expenses decreased to CHF 1,020 million
from CHF 1,766 million. During the fourth quarter, it was
decided to increase the proportion of share-based awards
included in variable compensation for 2009, which will be
amortized over the vesting period of the awards, leading
to a partial reversal of accruals made in the first nine
months of 2009.
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Investment Bank

General and administrative expenses increased 14% to
CHF 653 million, mainly due to increased provisions for liti-
gation and restructuring charges.

Results: FY09 vs FY08

The pre-tax result was negative CHF 6,081 million com-
pared with negative CHF 34,300 million. The change was
mainly due to much lower losses on residual risk positions
within the FICC business area. Total operating income
was positive CHF 3,135 million compared with negative
CHF 24,375 million. IBD and equities revenues were
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down year-on-year, mainly due to lower market activity.
Own credit losses on financial liabilities designated at fair
value were CHF 2,023 million in 2009, compared with
gains of CHF 2,032 million in 2008. Total operating
expenses decreased 7% to CHF 9,216 million from CHF
9,925 million.

Personnel
The Investment Bank employed 15,666 personnel on 31 De-

cember 2009, a 3% decrease from 16,130 on 30 September
2009.



Corporate Center

Corporate Center

Corporate Center reporting

As of or for the quarter ended % change from Year ended
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Income (698) (160) (3,250) (336) 79 394 998
CrednIoss(expense)/recovery (5) ....... o O (5) oy
Total operating income (703) (160) (3,250) (339) 78 389 998
Personnel expenses 160 161 36 (1) 344 551 433
General and administrative expenses 64 m 1w ey 99 353
Services (to)/from other business divisons ~~~ (6) (1299 Gy %5 7 306 (73)
Depreciation of property and equipment 36 65 6 @) @) 93 265
R bi"ihtangib‘lé'és's'ét's ...................... o G AR o s
Total operating expenses’ 253 95 239 166 6 1,250 979
Performance from continuing operations before tax (956) (255) (3,489) (275) 73 (860) 19
Performance from discontinued operations before tax @) o 11 [ 198
Performance before tax (981) (255) (3,470) (285) 72 (867) 217
Additional information
BIS risk-weighted assets (CHF billion) 8.5 8.1 8.8 5 (3)
Personnel (ful-time equivalents) 1624 2988 3097 S

1 Includes expenses for the Company Secretary, Board of Directors and Group Internal Audit.

Results: 4Q09 vs 3Q09

The Corporate Center’s pre-tax result from continuing oper-
ations was negative CHF 956 million compared with nega-
tive CHF 255 million.

The fourth quarter result was impacted by a negative CHF
690 million adjustment for prior periods due to changes in
the calculation of own credit, which led to a reallocation of
negative revenues to the Corporate Center from the Invest-
ment Bank. This was partly offset by a net gain on the sale
of the India Service Centre (ISC).

In comparison, the third quarter result was driven by a
CHF 498 million loss on the closing of the UBS Pactual sale,
which was largely related to foreign exchange losses. This
was partly offset by a CHF 156 million foreign currency gain
following UBS's decision to replace US dollar financing relat-
ing to two of its US entities with Swiss franc financing, and
a mark to market gain on UK sterling interest rate swaps.

Additionally, the third quarter was affected by a CHF 305
million net loss from the valuation of the mandatory convert-
ible notes (MCNSs) issued in December 2008 and converted
in August 2009.

Operating income

Total operating income decreased to negative CHF 703 mil-
lion from negative CHF 160 million, mainly due to the above-
mentioned changes in the calculation of own credit.

The following significant items also affected the fourth quar-

ter result:

— Group Treasury activities, excluding the abovementioned
impact of changes in the calculation of own credit, re-
ported reduced operating income, mainly due to increased
recharges from the Investment Bank. Additionally, inter-
est income fell due to the transfer of rates business to
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank and the shift away
from Brazilian real to US dollar and Swiss franc invest-
ments as a result of the sale of UBS Pactual.

— The revaluation of UBS's option to acquire the SNB Stab-
Fund's equity resulted in a gain of CHF 121 million, com-
pared with a gain of CHF 168 million in the prior quarter.

— Furthermore, fourth quarter 2009 included lower internal
funding-related interest charges.

In comparison, the third quarter was impacted by the
abovementioned loss on the sale of UBS Pactual and the loss
on the MCNs valuation, which was partially offset by a gain
of CHF 65 million on the sale of Swiss real estate.

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses increased to CHF 253 million from
CHF 95 million. This increase reflects the fact that in the third
quarter, a credit from UBS Pactual operating results was
booked in the business divisions’ income statement, but
transferred to the Corporate Center via the Services (to)/
from other business division expense line. The third quarter
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Corporate Center

also included the release of a provision related to a resolved
lawsuit with respect to the acquisition of PaineWebber.

Results: FY09 vs FY08

Pre-tax profit from continuing operations declined to nega-

tive CHF 860 million from positive CHF 19 million.

Total operating income decreased by CHF 609 million to

CHF 389 million, mainly as a result of the following items:

— 2009 was impacted by losses from the abovementioned
impact of changes in the calculation of own credit and
from the sale of UBS Pactual.

— These losses were partly offset by a net gain of CHF 297
million on the valuation of the mandatory convertible
notes (MCNSs) issued in December 2008 and converted in
August 2009, a gain of CHF 117 million on the revalua-
tion of UBS’s option to acquire the SNB StabFund’s equity,
an additional foreign exchange gain of CHF 437 million
due to the deconsolidation and liquidation of subsidiar-
ies, and a gain of CHF 304 million on the buyback of
subordinated debt.

— In comparison, 2008 included an accounting gain of CHF
3,860 million related to the MCNs issued in March 2008,
which was offset by the impact of the transaction be-
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tween UBS and the Swiss National Bank and the place-

ment of the abovementioned MCNs with the Swiss Con-

federation, resulting in a total charge of CHF 3.4 billion.

Total operating expenses increased to CHF 1,250 million
from CHF 979 million, mainly due to a goodwill impairment
charge recorded in second quarter 2009 in relation to the
sale of UBS Pactual, which was reallocated to the Corporate
Center. Excluding this charge, operating expenses would
have decreased by CHF 221 million, mainly due to the credit
related to the UBS Pactual operating result that was trans-
ferred to the Corporate Center, the release of the above-
mentioned provision in third quarter 2009, as well as re-
duced advertising and sponsoring expenditures. These items
were partly offset by higher restructuring costs and accruals
for variable compensation in 2009.

Personnel

The Corporate Center had 1,624 personnel on 31 December
2009, a decrease of 1,364 personnel from 30 September
2009. The sale of the ISC led to a reduction of 1,618 person-
nel, of which 1,225 were from the Corporate Center. Exclud-
ing the sale of the ISC, personnel in the Corporate Center
decreased by 139.



Risk and treasury management

Management report



Risk management and control

Risk management and control

Summary of key developments in fourth quarter 2009

UBS’s risk profile did not materially change during the quar-
ter, though the firm used the opportunities available in fa-
vorable market conditions to further reduce its residual risk
exposures in the Investment Bank.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a
client or counterparty to meet its contractual obligations. It
arises on traditional banking products, such as loans and
commitments, as well as derivatives and similar transactions.
A form of credit risk also arises on securities and other obli-
gations in tradable form, with their fair values affected when
expectations change regarding the probability of issuers fail-
ing to meet these obligations and when actual failures occur.
Where these instruments are held in connection with a trad-
ing activity, UBS views the risk as a market risk.

UBS actively manages the credit risk in its portfolios by
taking collateral against exposures and utilizing credit hedg-
ing with the aim of reducing concentrations to specific coun-
terparties, sectors and portfolios.

Credit loss expenses

UBS recorded lower credit loss expenses of CHF 83 million in
fourth quarter 2009, compared with CHF 226 million in third
quarter 2009.

In the Investment Bank, credit loss expenses in fourth
quarter 2009 were CHF 70 million, of which CHF 37 million
related to asset-backed securities that were reclassified to
Loans and receivables from Held for trading in previous
quarters. The remaining credit losses of CHF 33 million re-
lated to loans across a number of sectors.

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank reported net credit
losses of CHF 9 million in fourth quarter 2009, compared
with net credit recoveries of CHF 16 million in the prior
quarter.

Gross lending portfolio and impairments

The credit risk exposures reported in the “Allowances and
provisions for credit losses” table on the next page represent
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the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) bal-
ance sheet view of UBS's gross lending portfolio comprising
the balance sheet line items Due from banks and Loans. The
table also shows the IFRS reported allowances for credit
losses and impairments as well as UBS’s impaired lending
portfolio. UBS's gross lending portfolio was CHF 356 billion
on 31 December 2009, slightly down from CHF 363 billion
on 30 September 2009.

The level of UBS's gross impaired lending portfolio was
CHF 6,865 million at the end of the fourth quarter 2009, a
slight increase compared with CHF 6,776 million at the prior
quarter-end. The ratio of the impaired lending portfolio to
total gross lending portfolio remained stable at 1.9% on 31
December 2009. Excluding reclassified securities, the ratio
decreased to 1.7% at the end of the fourth quarter from
1.8% at the end of the third quarter.

The total gross lending portfolio in the Investment Bank
was CHF 133 billion, down from CHF 140 billion on 30 Sep-
tember 2009. Net of impairments, the Investment Bank held
in its lending portfolio CHF 6.5 billion of monoline protected
assets (CHF 6.5 billion at 30 September 2009) and CHF 2.5
billion of US commercial real estate positions (CHF 3.1 billion
at 30 September 2009), following their reclassification to
Loans and receivables from Held for trading in fourth quarter
2008. The exposures related to monoline protected assets are
included in the “Risk concentration” section of this report.

- Refer to “Note 12 Reclassification of financial assets” in

the “Financial information” section of this report for more
information on reclassified securities, including average
marks by exposure type

The Investment Bank's gross impaired lending portfolio
increased to CHF 5,056 million on 31 December 2009 from
CHF 4,902 million on 30 September 2009.

In Wealth Management & Swiss Bank, the gross lending
portfolio was CHF 200 billion on 31 December 2009, which
was stable compared with 30 September 2009. The gross
impaired lending portfolio decreased by CHF 51 million to
CHF 1,805 million on 31 December 2009.

Further information on the composition and credit quality
of the Investment Bank and Wealth Management & Swiss
Bank lending portfolios is provided below.



Credit loss (expense)/recovery

For the quarter ended % change from Year ended
CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank 9) 16 (354) (97) (133) (392)

Corporate Center (5) (5)
UBS (83) (226) (2,310) (63) (96) (1,832) (2,996)
1 Includes credit recovery of CHF 7 million (for the quarter ended 30.9.09 CHF 93 million expense) related to reclassified leveraged finance positions.
Allowances and provisions for credit losses
Wealth Management &  Wealth Management
CHEF million Swiss Bank Americas Investment Bank Others' UBS
As of 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.09 30.9.09
Dueffombanks 2683 2600 1074 1312 42568 3507 282 219 46606 47698
loans 197,178 198525 21496 20178 90700 96161 101 77 309475 314940
of which: related to reclassified securities? 19,255 20,322 19,255 20,322
Total lending portfolio, gross? 199,861 201,125 22,569 21,489 133,268 139,668 383 356 356,081 362,638
Allowances for creditlosses (1L034) (1122 @ (8 (1ed2) (1,953) o 0. (2680  (3091)
. Of which: related to reclassified securies ... ... (162) . (166) .. (162) . (166)
Total lending portfolio, net* 198,827 200,003 22,566 21,473 131,625 137,715 383 356 353,402 359,547
Impaired lending portfolio, gross® 1,805 1,856 4 18 5,056 4,902 0 0 6,865 6,776
of which: related to reclassified securities 1,090 735 1,090 735
Estimated liquidation proceeds of
collateral for impaired loans (30 679 o @) (1670) (1,286 o 0 (22000 (1868
of which: related to reclassified securities (958) (557) (958) (557)
Impaired lending portfolio,
net of collateral 1,275 1,277 4 15 3,386 3,616 0 0 4,665 4,908
Allocated allowances for impaired
fending portfolo o84 1081 46 e 193 00 2630 3050
Other allowances for lending portfolio 49 41 0 0 0 0 0 0 49 41
Total allowances for credit losses
in lending portfolio 1,034 1,122 4 16 1,642 1,953 0 0 2,680 3,091
Allowances and provisions for credit
losses outside of lending portfolio 19 20 0 0 117 120 5 0 141 140
Ratios
Allowances for lending portfolio as a % of
total lending portfolio, gross 0.5 0.6 0.0 0.1 1.2 1.4 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.9
Impaired lending portfolio as a % of
total lending portfolio, gross 0.9 0.9 0.0 0.1 3.8 3.5 0.0 0.0 1.9 1.9
Impaired lending portfolio excluding
reclassified securities as a % of total lending
portfolio, gross excluding reclassified securities 35 3.5 1.7 1.8
Allocated allowances as a % of
impaired lending portfolio, gross 54.5 58.2 100.0 88.9 32,5 39.8 0.0 0.0 38.3 45.0
Allocated allowances as a % of
impaired lending portfolio, net of collateral 71.2 84.7 100.0 106.7 48.5 54.0 0.0 0.0 56.3 62.1

1 Includes Global Asset Management and the Corporate Center. 2 This excludes reclassified loan underwriting positions with a value of CHF 1,789 million as of 31.12.09 (30.9.09: CHF 2,163 million), which
are included in the risk view of loan exposures. 3 Excludes loans designated at fair value, but includes margin accounts for exchange-traded derivatives transactions, cash collateral delivered for OTC derivatives
and cash current accounts from prime brokerage (cash leg) of total CHF 70,121 million (of which Due from banks: CHF 29,770 million, of which Loans: CHF 40,351 million) (30.9.09: CHF 74,004 million, of
which Due from banks: CHF 31,392 million, of which Loans: CHF 42,612 million). 4 Reconciles to the balance sheet carrying values of Due from banks and Loans, which are reported net of allowances for
credit losses. 5 Excludes reclassified securities with adverse cash flow estimate revisions cumulatively below 5% of the carrying value at reclassification date, adjusted for redemptions.
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Risk management and control

Composition of UBS credit risk

The tables in this section provide an update as at 31 Decem-
ber 2009 of the composition of UBS’s credit risk exposures
in its key lending portfolios in the Wealth Management &
Swiss Bank and Investment Bank business divisions.

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank — lending portfolio

The table below shows the composition of the lending
portfolio for Wealth Management & Swiss Bank as de-
tailed in the "Allowances and provisions for credit losses”

table on the previous page, including both Due from banks
and Loans.

Overall, the composition of Wealth Management &
Swiss Bank’s lending portfolio remained stable over the
quarter. On 31 December 2009, over 90% of the portfolio
was secured by collateral and half of the unsecured loan
portfolio continued to be rated investment grade. Approxi-
mately 60% of unsecured loans related to cash flow-based
lending to corporate counterparties. In addition, 20% of
the unsecured loans related to lending to central or local
governments.

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank: composition of lending portfolio, gross

CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09

Secured by residential property 122,106 61.1% 122,213 60.8%
Secured by commercial /industrial property 20378 ©10.2% 20,15 ©10.0%
Secured by securites 39,136 ©19.6% 38,824 19.3%
lendingtobanks 2,683 C13% 2600 13%
Unsecured loans 15,558 7.8% 17332 86%
Total lending portfolio, gross 199,861 100.0% 201,125 100.0%
Total lending portfolio, net' 198,714 200,003

1 Net of allowances and credit hedges.

Update on BlackRock fund

In second quarter 2008, UBS sold a
portfolio of US residential mortgage-
backed securities (RMBSs) for proceeds
of USD 15 billion to the RMBS Oppor-
tunities Master Fund, LP (the "RMBS
fund”), a special purpose entity
managed by BlackRock Financial
Management, Inc. The RMBS fund was
capitalized with approximately USD
3.75 billion in equity raised by Black-
Rock from third-party investors, and an
eight-year amortizing USD 11.25 billion
senior secured loan provided by UBS.

The RMBS fund amortizes the loan
through monthly payments based
upon amounts collected in respect of
the underlying assets. These collec-
tions are allocated to the payment of
interest on and principal of the loan,
and to the holders of equity interests
in the RMBS fund in accordance with
the terms of the loan agreement.

Allocations to equity holders may be
reduced or suspended in the event of
specified declines in the aggregate
notional balance of the portfolio, and
UBS may assume control of the
underlying assets in the event of a
specified further decline in the
notional balance.

As at 31 December 2009, the loan had
a balance outstanding of USD 7.1
billion (USD 7.5 billion at 30 September
2009), taking into account amounts
held in escrow. Collections have been
slower in 2009 than in 2008, primarily
due to lower levels of voluntary
prepayments and reductions in floating
rate interest payments, in addition to
the fact that the portfolio has amor-
tized over time. The aggregate notional
balance of the RMBS fund’s assets
collateralizing the loan on 31 Decem-
ber 2009 was USD 16.0 billion. By

notional balance, this portfolio was
comprised primarily of Alt-A (52%) and
sub-prime (32 %) credit grades. In terms
of priority, the portfolio was dominated
by senior positions (92 %).

The RMBS fund is not consolidated in
UBS's financial statements. UBS
continues to monitor the RMBS fund
and its performance, and will reassess
the consolidation status if events
warrant, and deterioration of the
underlying RMBS mortgage pools
indicates that the equity investors in
the fund no longer receive the
majority of the risks and rewards. UBS
also continues to assess the loan to
the RMBS fund to determine whether
it has been impaired. Developments
through fourth quarter 2009 have not
altered UBS’s conclusion that consoli-
dation is not required, and the loan is
not considered impaired.
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Investment Bank — banking products

The tables below show the composition of the Invest-
ment Bank’s credit exposures in its banking products portfolio
based on UBS's internal management view of credit risk.

The table below provides a bridge from the total banking
products portfolio (loans, contingent claims and undrawn
irrevocable credit facilities) according to IFRS to the internal
management view of banking products exposure to corpo-
rates and other non-banks, gross and net after credit hedges.
The second table provides a breakdown of the rating and loss
given default profiles of this portfolio, with additional detail
provided on the sub-investment grade component.

The net banking products exposure after credit hedges
remained stable at CHF 41.3 billion at the end of the fourth
quarter compared with CHF 41.7 billion at the end of the
third quarter. Approximately 65% of the net banking
products exposures after the application of credit hedges
were classified as investment grade. According to UBS's
assessment the vast majority of its sub-investment grade
exposures had a loss given default of 0-50%.

Loss given default is determined based on the likely
recovery rate of any defaulted claims. Recovery rates are
dependent upon the type of counterparty in addition to any
credit mitigation such as whether collateral is held.

Investment Bank: net banking products exposure to corporates and other non-banks

CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09
Loans 90,700 96,161
Contingent claims and undrawn irevocable credit facilities 56,228 56,878
Total (IFRS .v.i.év.v) ............................................................. 146928 - 153039
less: internal risk adjustments
* margin accounts, cash collateral posted, other’ (36,455) - (35,817)
reclassified securities” (19,255) (20,322)
acquired auction rate securities (7,982) (8,079)
 traded loan commitments and funded risk participations (1,152) (1,617)
Gross banking products exposure 82,084 87,205
less: specific allowances for credit losses and loan loss provisions? (1,520) (1,839)
Net banking products exposure 80,564 85,366
less: credit protection bought (credit default swaps) (39,314) (43,671)
Net banking products exposure to corporates and other non-banks, after application of credit hedges 41,250 41,695

1 Includes margin accounts for ETD transactions, cash collateral posted by UBS against negative replacement values for OTC derivatives, cash/current accounts from prime brokerage (cash legs) and
valuation differences caused by a different exposure treatment in Risk Control than in IFRS. 2 Includes reclassified auction rate securities in the amount of CHF 8.2 billion (30.9.09: CHF 8.4 billion).
3 Does not include other allowances for credit losses for an amount of CHF 188 million (30.9.09: CHF 183 million).

Investment Bank: distribution of net banking products exposure to corporates and other non-banks,
after application of credit hedges, across UBS internal rating and loss given default (LGD) buckets

CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09
Moody's Loss given default (LGD) buckets
Investors ~ Standard & Weighted Weighted
Services Poor's average average
UBS internal rating equivalent  equivalent  Exposure 0-25% 26-50% 51-75% 76-100% LGD (%) Exposure LGD (%)
Investment grade (Aea-Baa3 AAA-BBB- 26,273 9,850 10,689 3107 2628 39 27266 36
Su-investmentgrade 14977 6492 5571 2330 583 3214430 2%
ofwhich:6 Bal | BB+ 1407 02 M2 302 62 47 12 o
ofwhich:7 Baz B8 2044 1,210 39 38 s 332004 27
ofwhich:8 Baz B8 1293 342 705 228 8o 3. 14 36
ofwhich:9 Ba3 BB- 2151 896 %5 265 6 311768 28
ofwhich:10 B B 1486 25 20 139 02 32 1067 32
ofwhich: 11— B2 B 2168 1,104 ee1 36 [ 30 2301 22
ofwhich:12 B B- 1684 1287 . 65 B 181388 17
Cofwhich:13 CaatoC  CCCoC 357 158 133 6 3 030 32
of which: defaulted D 2,386 870 830 535 151 44 2,675 28
Net banking products exposure
to corporates and other non-banks,
after application of credit hedges 41,250 16,342 16,260 5,437 3,211 37 41,695 33
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Risk management and control

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in market
variables of two broad types: general market risk factors and
specific components. General market risk factors include
changes in interest rates, exchange rates, equity market indi-
ces, commodity prices and general credit spreads. Specific
components relate to prices of debt and equity instruments,
which result from factors and events particular to individual
companies or entities.

Most of UBS's market risk comes from the Investment
Bank’s trading activities. Group Treasury, part of the Corpo-
rate Center, assumes foreign exchange and interest rate risk
in connection with its balance sheet, profit and loss, and
capital and liquidity management responsibilities. The wealth
and asset management operations of UBS take limited mar-
ket risk in support of client business.

Value at Risk — definition and limitations

Value at Risk (VaR) is a statistical measure of market risk, rep-
resenting the market risk losses that could potentially be
realized over a set time horizon at an established level of

confidence. This assumes no change in the firm’s trading
positions over the relevant time period.

Actual realized market risk losses may differ from those
implied by VaR measures for a variety of reasons. For exam-
ple, the historical period used in creating the VaR measure
may have experienced fluctuations in market rates and pric-
es that differ from those in the future; the firm’s intraperiod
trading may mute or accentuate the losses; and the impact
on revenue of a market move may differ from that assumed
by the VaR model. All VaR measures are subject to these
limitations to some extent and must be interpreted accord-
ingly. UBS continues to review the performance of its VaR
implementation and will continue to enhance its VaR model
in order to more accurately capture the relationships be-
tween the market risks associated with its risk positions, as
well as the revenue impact of large market movements for
particular trading positions.

As a complement to VaR, UBS runs macro stress scenarios
bringing together various combinations of market moves to
reflect the most common types of potential stress events,
and more targeted stress tests for concentrated exposures
and vulnerable portfolios.

UBS: Value at Risk (1-day, 95% confidence, five years of historical data)

For the quarter ended 31.12.09

For the quarter ended 30.9.09

CHF million Min Max. Average 31.12.09 Min. Max. Average 30.9.09
Business divisions

Investméhf b W o G o [ G G o
Wealth Management e o o o o R R SRR .
Wealth Management N L, s s s S S S S
o AssetManagement ...................... G P R R R SR .
CoporateCenter 3.0 442843
Diversification effect 1 1 (6) (7 ! ! (5) (5)
Total management VaR? 46 59 52 54 44 59 52 58
Diversification effect (%) (10) (11) (9) (8)

1 As the minimum and maximum occur on different days for different risk types, it is not meaningful to calculate a portfolio diversification effect.

VaR limits.

2 Includes all positions subject to internal management

Investment Bank: Value at Risk (1-day, 95% confidence, five years of historical data)

For the quarter ended 31.12.09

For the quarter ended 30.9.09

CHF million Min Max. Average 31.12.09 Min. Max. Average 30.9.09
Risk type

Equmeé ................................ R o Sy Sy o o R W
Interest‘ R 6 g Sy B e S Sy s
Codit spreads ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, W G W o G R JEEREE o
Fore|gn‘é>‘<ﬁhé'n'ge' ......................... o S s PR S g R
Energy,‘n‘w‘e‘té'lé'a'ﬁd S S g R R .
Dversiication sticce SEITRITPIRAS e (46) ,,,,,,, (47) ......... (RTINS [ERTIR (48) e (51)
Total management VaR? 46 59 51 54 43 59 51 57
Diversification effect (%) (47) (47) (48) (47)

1As the minimum and maximum occur on different days for different risk types, it is not meaningful to calculate a portfolio diversification effect.

VaR limits.
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Value at Risk — measures

UBS uses VaR for internal risk management purposes and
also to determine its regulatory capital for market risk. As
detailed in UBS's financial report for third quarter 2009, UBS
received approval from the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory
Authority (FINMA) to change the calibration of its manage-
ment VaR from a 10-day 99% measure to a 1-day 95%
measure. This measure more accurately reflects the way that
trading risks are viewed and managed by the business, can
be directly compared with daily mark to market revenues,
and is generally considered a more stable measure of market
risk. UBS’s reported VaR is based on the 1-day 95% manage-
ment VaR measure. UBS continues to use a 10-day 99% VaR
to determine regulatory capital for market risk and a 1-day
99% measure to backtest its VaR model in accordance with
Basel Il and FINMA requirements. All of UBS's VaR measures
are based on five years of historical data.

The tables on the previous page show UBS's 1-day 95%
management VaR for UBS Group and the Investment Bank.
The Investment Bank's market risk profile was stable in the pe-
riod, which was reflected in an unchanged average manage-
ment VaR (1-day, 95% confidence) at CHF 51 million in fourth

Investment Bank:
backtesting revenues distribution’

frequency in number of days 1 January 2009 — 31 December 2009

quarter 2009, compared with the same exposure reported in
the third quarter. Period-end VaR was slightly lower at CHF 54
million on 31 December 2009 compared with CHF 57 million
on 30 September 2009. Credit spread risk continued to be the
dominant component of the Investment Bank’s VaR.

VaR for UBS Group as a whole followed a similar pattern
to Investment Bank VaR.

Backtesting
Backtesting compares 1-day 99% regulatory VaR calculated
on positions at the close of each business day, with the reve-
nues generated by those positions on the following business
day. These backtesting revenues exclude non-trading reve-
nues, such as fees and commissions, and estimated revenues
from intraday trading. A “backtesting exception” occurs
when backtesting revenues are negative and the absolute val-
ue of those revenues is greater than the previous day’s VaR.

UBS did not experience any backtesting exceptions either
in fourth quarter 2009 or the prior quarter.

In the first histogram, daily backtesting revenues are
shown for the 12 months ended 31 December 2009. In
the second histogram, the daily backtesting revenues are

Investment Bank:
analysis of negative backtesting revenues'
CHF million 1 January 2009 — 31 December 2009
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(300)-(250)
(250)~(200)
(200)—(150)
(150)~(100)
(100)-(50)
(50)-0
0-50
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100-150
150-200
200-250
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>300

Revenues in CHF million

1 Backtesting revenues exclude non-trading revenues, such as commissions and fees,
and estimated revenues from intraday trading.

> 180
150-180
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30-60
0-30
(30)-0
(60)-(30)

10 0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Frequency in number of days

MW Negative backtesting revenue less than VaR
M Negative backtesting revenue greater than VaR

1 Backtesting revenues exclude non-trading revenues, such as commissions and
fees, and estimated revenues from intraday trading. Analysis for loss days only.
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Risk management and control

compared with the corresponding VaR over the same
12-month period for days when the backtesting revenues
are negative. A positive result in this histogram represents
a loss less than VaR, while a negative result represents a
loss greater than VaR and is therefore a backtesting ex-
ception.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from ex-
ternal causes, whether deliberate, accidental or natural. Op-
erational risks are monitored and, to the extent possible,
controlled and mitigated.

UBS recognizes that it cannot eliminate all operational
risks and, even where possible, it may not always be cost-
effective to do so.

Many potential causes of loss are identified before their
probability, timing or amounts of future costs are known with
certainty. IFRS require UBS to make provisions for present ob-
ligations due to past events based on a best estimate of the
liability, when it is probable that a payment will be required,
and where the amount can be reliably estimated, even if the
amount to be paid has not yet been determined. This requires
an exercise of judgment. Once UBS is able to quantify any
potential operational risk with a reasonable degree of accu-
racy, the corresponding provision will be revised accordingly.

UBS is also required to hold capital against operational
risk, which is converted into a risk-weighted asset (RWA)
equivalent. UBS uses a model for the quantification of op-
erational risk which meets the regulatory capital standards
specified by the Basel Il Advanced Measurement Approach
(AMA). The model consists of a historical component to cal-
culate an expected loss figure, that is based on actual inter-
nal losses experienced by UBS. The model also calculates an
unexpected loss component which is based on a set of ge-
neric scenarios covering the types of operational risks to
which UBS is exposed.

- Refer to the “Capital management” section of this report

for more information on the development of RWA for
operational risk

Risk concentrations
A concentration of risk exists where: (i) a position in financial

instruments is affected by changes in a group of correlated
factors, or a group of positions is affected by changes in the
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same risk factor or a group of correlated factors; and (i) the
exposure could, in the event of large but plausible adverse
developments, result in significant losses.

The identification of risk concentrations requires judg-
ment as potential future developments cannot be predicted
and may vary from period to period. In determining whether
a concentration of risk exists, UBS considers a number of
elements, both individually and in the aggregate. These
elements include: the shared characteristics of the instru-
ments; the size of the position or group of positions; the
sensitivity of the position or group of positions to changes in
risk factors; and the volatility and correlations of those fac-
tors. Also important in this assessment is the liquidity of the
markets in which the instruments are traded, and the avail-
ability and effectiveness of hedges or other potential risk
mitigants. The value of a hedge instrument may not always
move in line with the position being hedged and this mis-
match is referred to as basis risk.

If a risk concentration is identified, it is assessed to deter-
mine whether it should be reduced or mitigated, and the
available means to do so are also evaluated. Identified risk
concentrations are subject to increased monitoring.

Identified risk concentrations

Based on UBS's assessment of its portfolios and asset classes
with potential for material loss in a stress scenario relevant
to the current environment, the firm believes that its expo-
sures to monoline insurers and student loan auction rate
securities as shown on the next pages can be considered as
risk concentrations according to the abovementioned defi-
nition.

It is possible that material losses could occur on asset
classes, positions and hedges other than those disclosed in
this section of the report, particularly if the correlations that
emerge in a stressed environment differ markedly from those
anticipated by UBS. The firm is exposed to price risk, basis
risk, credit spread risk and default risk, and other idiosyn-
cratic and correlation risks on both equities and fixed income
inventories. UBS is also exposed to price risk on the option to
acquire the SNB StabFund's equity.

In addition, the firm has lending, counterparty and coun-
try risk exposures that could sustain significant losses if eco-
nomic conditions were to worsen.

- Refer to the “Discussion of market risk, credit risk and

operational risk” above in this section for more informa-
tion on the risks to which UBS is exposed



Exposure to monoline insurers

The vast majority of UBS’s direct exposures to monoline
insurers arise from over-the-counter derivative contracts,
mainly credit default swaps (CDSs) purchased to hedge
specific positions. The table below shows the CDS protec-
tion bought from monoline insurers to hedge specific posi-
tions.

Exposure under CDS contracts to monoline insurers is cal-
culated as the sum of the fair values of individual CDSs after
credit valuation adjustments. This, in turn, depends on the
valuation of the instruments against which protection has
been bought. A positive fair value, or a valuation gain, on
the CDS is recognized if the fair value of the instrument the
CDS is intended to hedge decreases. Changes in credit valu-
ation adjustments (CVA) are driven by changes in CDS fair
value and also by movements in monoline credit spreads.

The table below shows that the fair values of the remain-
ing assets hedged with monoline insurers increased over the

Exposure to monoline insurers, by rating'

period with a corresponding decrease in the fair values of
the related CDSs. As at 31 December 2009, approximately
75% of the remaining assets were collateralized loan obli-
gations (CLOs), 20% were collateralized mortgage-backed
securities and other asset-backed securities, and 5% related
to US RMBS CDOs. The vast majority of the CLO positions
were rated AA and above.

As at 31 December 2009, the total fair value of CDS pro-
tection purchased from monoline insurers was USD 2.3 bil-
lion after cumulative CVAs of USD 2.8 billion. The change in
the CVA reported in the table below does not equal the prof-
it or loss associated with this portfolio in fourth quarter 2009
as a significant portion of the underlying assets are classified
as Loans and receivables for accounting purposes.

In addition to credit protection bought on the positions
detailed in the table below, UBS held direct derivative expo-
sure to monoline insurers of USD 329 million after CVAs of
USD 199 million.

USD million 31.12.09

Fair value of CDSs Fair value of CDSs

Fair value prior to credit  Credit valuation after credit

of underlying valuation adjustment valuation

Notional amount® CDOs* adjustment®  as of 31.12.09 adjustment
Column 1 Column2  Column3(=1-2) Column4  Column 5 (=3-4) -
[=
Credit protection on US sub-prime residential g
mortgage-backed securities (RMBS) CDOs high grade? 2352 457 189 o Naes a3 g
of which: from monolines rated investment grade g
(BBBandabove) 0 0 0 0. 0 g
of which: from monolines rated sub-investment grade >
(BB and below) 2,352 457 1,895 1,463 432 §
Credit protection on other assets? 11,835 8,626° 3,208 1,332 1,876 §
of which: from monolines rated investment grade ;
LBBBandabove) | 2345 WITT B3 2 361 5
of which: from monolines rated sub-investment grade =
(BB and below) 9,490 6,715 2,775 1,260 1,514 5

Total 31.12.09 14,187 9,083 5,103 2,795 2,308

Total 30.9.09 14,362 8,784 5,576 2,956 2,621

1 Excludes the benefit of credit protection purchased from unrelated third parties. 2 Categorization based on the lowest insurance financial strength rating assigned by external rating agencies. 3 Rep-
resents gross notional amount of credit default swaps (CDSs) purchased as credit protection. 4 CDOs = collateralized debt obligations. 5 CDSs = credit default swaps. 6 Includes USD 5.6 billion
(CHF 5.8 billion) at fair value/USD 6.0 billion (CHF 6.2 billion) at carrying value of assets that were reclassified to Loans and receivables from Held for trading in fourth quarter 2008. Refer to “Note 12
Reclassification of financial assets” in the “Financial information” section of this report for more information.
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Risk management and control

Exposure to auction rate securities

Auction rate securities held by
the Investment Bank
Approximately USD 530 million at
par value of student loan auction
rate securities (ARS) were redeemed
by issuers, or sold by UBS in the
secondary market in fourth quarter
20009.

UBS repurchased USD 227 million at
par value of student loan ARS in
fourth quarter 2009, including
approximately USD 219 million of
student loan ARS where UBS
accelerated the repurchase from
clients to facilitate redemptions with
issuers or re-sales. Combined with
other redemptions directly with
clients and amortizations, this
resulted in an overall decrease of USD
316 million to USD 7,817 million as
at 31 December 2009, in UBS’s
commitment to repurchase student

loan ARS from clients as described
below.

UBS’s inventory of student loan ARS
decreased by USD 206 million to

USD 10,347 million at the end of the
fourth quarter as the abovementioned
redemptions, re-sales and amortiza-
tions more than offset the student
loan ARS repurchased from clients in
the period.

Approximately 69% of the collateral
underlying UBS's inventory of stu-
dent loan ARS was backed by Federal
Family Education Loan Program (FFELP)
collateral, which was reinsured by the
US Department of Education for not
less than 97 % of principal and
interest. All student loan ARS positions
held by UBS are held as Loans and
receivables and are subject to an
impairment test that includes a

Student loan auction rate securities inventory

detailed review of the quality of the
underlying collateral. Impairment
charges incurred on UBS's inventory of
student loan ARS in fourth quarter
2009 were not significant.

Approximately 90% of the USD 7,817
million student loan ARS that UBS

has committed to purchase from
clients were backed by FFELP guaran-
teed collateral.

As at 31 December 2009, UBS also
held inventory with a carrying value of
USD 1,423 million in US munici-

pal ARS, USD 1,097 million in US
taxable auction preferred securities
(APS) and USD 2,729 million in

US tax-exempt APS. The vast majority
of UBS’s inventory of municipal

ARS were rated investment grade with
approximately 85% rated A or higher.
The vast majority of UBS’s inventory of

USD million

Carrying value
as of 31.12.09

Carrying value
as of 30.9.09

US student loan auction rate securities

10,347" 10,553

1 Includes USD 7.5 billion (CHF 7.7 billion) at carrying value of student loan ARS that were reclassified to Loans and receivables from Held for trading in fourth quarter 2008 and first quarter 2009. Refer
to "Note 12 Reclassification of financial assets” in the “Financial information” section of this report for more information.
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taxable and tax exempt APS were
rated AAA. As at 31 December 2009,
UBS had not incurred any impairment
charges on its inventory of municipal
ARS or taxable and tax-exempt APS.
As at 30 September 2009, UBS held
UsD 1,418 million in US municipal
ARS, USD 1,099 million in US taxable
APS and USD 2,814 million in US
tax-exempt APS.

Commitment to repurchase client
auction rate securities

UBS has committed to restore liquidity
to certain client holdings of ARS. This
commitment is in line with previously
announced agreements in principle
with various US state agencies, and
the final settlements entered into with
the Massachusetts Securities Division,
the US Securities and Exchange
Commission and the New York State
Attorney General. The table below

shows the maximum repurchase
amount at par of student loan ARS
required by the regulatory settlements,
which would occur over various time
periods according to client type, but
not later than 2 July 2012.

Over the same time periods, UBS had
also committed to repurchase from
clients up to a maximum amount of
USD 374 million of municipal ARS,
and USD 212 million of taxable and
tax-exempt auction preferred
securities (APS) at par value on

31 December 2009. As at 30 Septem-
ber 2009, UBS had committed

to repurchase from clients up to a
maximum of USD 435 million of
municipal ARS and USD 247 million
of taxable and tax-exempt APS.

UBS anticipates that the maximum
required repurchase amount of ARS is

Client holdings: student loan auction rate securities

likely to decline over time, as issuers
refinance their debt obligations and
UBS works with issuers, industry peers
and US government officials on
restructuring initiatives and redemp-
tion opportunities.

In future periods, UBS will no

longer disclose its inventory of

and commitments to repurchase
municipal ARS and taxable and
tax-exempt APS, as the firm does not
consider that they involve material
risk exposure.

UBS will continue to disclose its
inventory of and commitment to
repurchase student loan ARS. The
firm’s assessment of this exposure
indicates that its risk profile has not
changed materially since the prior
quarter and it is considered a risk
concentration.

Buy-back period

Par value of maximum

Remaining

Par value of maximum

required purchase unpurchased holdings Holdings of required purchase
as of 31.12.09 of private clients institutional clients as of 30.9.09

USD million period ends 4.1.11 30.6.10t0 2.7.12
US student loan auction rate securities 7,817 93 7,724 8,133
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Balance sheet

Balance sheet

Fourth quarter 2009 asset development
CHF billion

1,500 -
1476

1,450 -

1,400 -

1,350 - 1,341

U

1,300

30.9.09 31.12.09

Fin. Inv.afs/

Collateral
trading

Lending Trading Positive

portfolio - Other assets replacement
values

Developments in fourth quarter 2009

UBS continued to reduce its balance sheet during the fourth
quarter — reducing it by CHF 136 billion to end the quarter
with total assets of CHF 1,341 billion. Collateral trading assets
fell by CHF 36 billion to CHF 180 billion, trading portfolio as-
sets fell by CHF 29 billion to CHF 232 billion, and lending as-
sets fell by CHF 13 billion to CHF 385 billion. These declines
were partly offset by an increase in financial investments avail-
able-for-sale, which grew by CHF 23 billion to CHF 82 billion.
In addition, replacement values (RVs) decreased to a similar
extent on both sides of the balance sheet, as market move-
ments drove a CHF 80 billion decrease in positive replacement
values (to CHF 422 billion) and a CHF 77 billion decrease in
negative replacement values (to CHF 410 billion).

Currency movements against the Swiss franc reduced the
balance sheet by CHF 6 billion, excluding positive replace-
ment values.

As in prior quarters, the reduction in UBS’s total assets
was driven by reductions in the Investment Bank’s balance
sheet, which declined by CHF 127 billion to CHF 992 billion.
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank’s balance sheet de-
creased by CHF 17 billion to CHF 248 billion, while the Cor-
porate Center’s balance sheet decreased by CHF 6 billion to
CHF 27 billion. Wealth Management Americas’ balance
sheet increased by CHF 16 billion to CHF 53 billion. The bal-
ance sheet size of Global Asset Management remained rela-
tively stable at CHF 20 billion.
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Lending and borrowing

Lending

Cash and balances with central banks was CHF 21 billion on
31 December 2009 — a decrease of CHF 6 billion from the
prior quarter-end, mainly due to lower overnight deposits
with central banks. Due from banks slightly decreased by
CHF 1 billion to CHF 47 billion. Loans were reduced by CHF
5 billion to CHF 307 billion on 31 December 2009, mainly
due to lower variation margins for derivative instruments.

Borrowing

The reduction in trading and lending assets led to a corre-
sponding decrease in funding needs. This was reflected in a
CHF 36 billion drop in unsecured funding to CHF 720 billion.
This reduction was mainly spread across money market pa-
per issuance, which decreased by CHF 15 billion to CHF 52
billion, and interbank borrowings (Due to banks), which de-
creased by CHF 20 billion to CHF 65 billion on 31 December
2009. Customer deposits (Due to customers) amounted to
CHF 410 billion on 31 December 2009, a decrease of CHF 2
billion mainly attributable to currency movements. Long-
term debt issued increased by CHF 1 billion, to CHF 80 bil-
lion, as issuances of CHF 4.5 billion, mainly covered bonds,
more than offset redemptions. Financial liabilities designated
at fair value remained stable at CHF 113 billion.

Repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements and
securities borrowing/lending

In the fourth quarter, cash collateral on securities borrowed
and reverse repurchase agreements declined by CHF 36 bil-
lion to CHF 180 billion, due to a continued shift in the com-
position of UBS's investment portfolio into debt instruments
and from a reduction in the matched book (a repurchase
agreement portfolio comprised of assets and liabilities with
equal maturities and equal value so that the market risks
substantially cancel each other out). The reduction of the
matched book is also reflected on the liabilities side by a de-
crease in UBS’s secured funding volume by CHF 14 billion to
CHF 72 billion.

-> Refer to the discussion of “Financial investments available-

for-sale” in this section for more information



Trading portfolio

During the fourth quarter, the trading portfolio further
dropped by CHF 29 billion to CHF 232 billion and its compo-
sition changed slightly. Money market paper was reduced by
CHF 29 billion (mainly treasury bills), of which CHF 15 billion
has been reinvested to Financial investments available-for-
sale, other debt instruments decreased by CHF 8 billion and
traded loans decreased by CHF 2 billion, and was partially
offset by equity instruments and precious metals which in-
creased by CHF 7 billion and CHF 2 billion, respectively.

Replacement values

The positive and negative replacement values (RVs) of deriva-
tive instruments developed in parallel and decreased by CHF
80 billion and CHF 77 billion, ending the fourth quarter at
CHF 422 billion and CHF 410 billion, respectively. Decreases
in RVs occurred in interest rate contracts, which dropped by
CHF 39 billion related to an upward shift in interest rate yield
curves across all major currencies (specifically US dollar, euro
and UK sterling), while foreign exchange contracts declined
by CHF 18 billion related to a weakening of the euro and
Japanese yen against the US dollar, and credit derivative con-
tracts declined by CHF 15 billion due to a tightening of credit
spreads. The table “Derivative instruments” illustrates the
notional values related to positive and negative RVs as well as
the impact on RVs of capital adequacy and cash collateral
netting compared with more restrictive IFRS netting.

Financial investments available-for-sale/ Other assets

Financial investments available-for-sale grew by CHF 23 bil-
lion to CHF 82 billion in the fourth quarter. UBS’s strategic
decision to rebalance its investment portfolio led to a further
shift from reverse repurchase agreements and trading port-

folios into debt instruments available-for-sale. These instru-
ments include high quality liquid short-term securities issued
by governments and government-controlled institutions in
various currencies, mainly US dollars and euros. Other assets
included CHF 3 billion of prepaid pension assets as of 31 De-
cember 2009.

Shareholders’ equity

Equity attributable to UBS shareholders was CHF 41.0 billion
on 31 December 2009, a CHF 1.5 billion increase compared
with 30 September 2009 driven by the Group’s net profit of
CHF 1.2 billion in fourth quarter 2009.
- Refer to the “Statement of comprehensive income” in
the “Financial information” section of this report for
more information

Balance sheet trend
CHF billion
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Balance sheet

Derivative instruments

31.12.09
Positive Notional values Negative Notional values Other
replacement  related to Positive replacement related to Negative notional
CHF billion values replacement values values replacement values values?
Derivative instruments
e e o e s70s 62
o oSt o g w0 no T o
o gnexchan ge NS o s34 o sia 5
Eqwty/lndexcontracts ................................................... g5 g gg B
oo ycontracts |nc|ud|ng pre e g s g a 3
Total, based on IFRS netting’ 422 13,806 410 13,297 16,232
Replacement value netting, based on capital adequacy rules (313) (313)
Cashcollateralnettmg .................................................. (37) ..................................... (33) ........................................
Total, based on capital adequacy netting® Al 13,806 64 13,297 16,232
30.9.09
Positive Notional values Negative Notional values Other
replacement related to Positive replacement related to Negative notional
CHF billion values replacement values values replacement values values?
Derivative instruments
RN R sen 9258 ............... s 8899 .......... 17487 .
o st R 1362 ................ o 1279 ............... .
o gnexchan ge RS e 3359 ............... Ly 3190 ............... ;-
Eqmty/lndex R G e G on 5
Commodity contracts, including precious metals contracts 6 a9 6 8 21
Total, based on IFRS netting’ 501 14,316 487 13,810 17,544
Replacement value netting, based on capital adequacy rules (373) (373)
Cashcollateralnettlng ................................................. (37) ..................................... (40) ........................................
Total, based on capital adequacy netting? 91 14,316 74 13,810 17,544
31.12.08
Positive Notional values Negative Notional values
replacement related to Positive replacement related to Negative ~ Other notional
CHF billion values replacement values values replacement values values?
Derivative instruments
et e comracte R s o oan .
Crodih dorivative comracte oy e s e 0
o gnexchan ge e by 3138 ............... by 2885 ............... )
Eqwty/lndex o o b R be o
Commodity contracts, including precious metals contracts ks 50 u 7 14
Total, based on IFRS netting’ 854 16,044 852 15,528 15,579
Replacement value netting, based on capital adequacy rules (652) (652)
it collateralnettlng .................................................. (41) ..................................... (53) ........................................
Total, based on capital adequacy netting* 161 16,044 147 15,528 15,579

1 Replacement values based on International Financial Reporting Standards netting. Refer to “Note 23 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting” in the “Financial information” section of UBS's
restated annual report for 2008. 2 Receivables resulting from these derivatives are recognized on UBS's balance sheet under Due from banks and Loans: CHF 1.6 billion (31 December 2009), CHF 1.3
billion (30 September 2009) and CHF 0.2 billion (31 December 2008). Payables resulting from these derivatives are recognized on UBS's balance sheet under Due to banks and Due to customers:
CHF 1.6 billion (31 December 2009), CHF 0.9 billion (30 September 2009) and CHF 0.1 billion (31 December 2008). 3 Includes the impact of netting agreements (including cash collateral) in accor-
dance with Swiss Federal Banking law, based on the IFRS scope of consolidation.
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Liquidity and funding management

Liquidity and funding management

UBS defines liquidity as the ability to fund assets at accept-
able costs and meet obligations as they come due.

Market liquidity overview: fourth quarter 2009

The outlook for the global economy suggested economic re-
covery for most of the world’s major economies. Financial
institutions’ credit spreads declined further during the fourth
quarter, albeit less markedly than during the preceding quar-
ter. Public term-debt markets continued to see significant
activity as investor demand for bank paper remained intact.
However, long-term debt issuance volumes were somewhat
lower than in the two preceding quarters, but the propor-
tion of senior unsecured issuance continued to rise com-
pared with government-guaranteed and covered bonds.

Signs of overall market stabilization and improvement
were reflected by the announcement of the US Treasury of
the expiration of its bank capital-purchase program and as
both the European Central Bank and the Bank of England
signaled that they would gradually reduce their economic
stimulus measures. Nevertheless, the sentiment was gener-
ally cautious and primary central banks continued to hold
benchmark interest rates at record lows.

Liquidity

UBS continuously tracks its liquidity position and asset/liabil-
ity profile. This involves monitoring its contractual and be-
havioral maturity profiles, projecting and modeling its liquid-
ity exposures under various stress scenarios and monitoring
its secured funding capacity. The results are then factored
into the overall contingency plans of UBS. The underlying as-
sumptions in the analysis encompass the characteristics that
have emerged in the recent market turmoil, such as contin-
ued risk aversion and dislocation in terms of money markets
and market liquidity being limited to a very narrow range of
asset classes. The severity of the assumptions underlying
UBS's current stress scenario analysis exceeds the worst con-
ditions experienced during the recent financial crisis.

UBS seeks to preserve at all times a prudent liquidity and
funding profile, a balanced asset/liability profile and robust
contingency planning processes. UBS continues to maintain
a substantial multi-currency portfolio of unencumbered
high-quality short-term assets, while UBS’s global scope and
range of businesses provides broadly diversified funding
sources.

Fourth quarter 2009 once again saw outflows of client
assets but, as in past quarters, this did not significantly im-

pact UBS’s liquidity situation. This is because only the cash
component of these outflows constitutes a direct loss of
funding. These outflows were more than offset by the con-
tinued reduction of balance sheet assets and access to ample
funding from alternative sources within the firm’s diversified
funding base.

Funding profile

UBS maintains a portfolio of liabilities that is broadly diversi-
fied by market, product and currency. The vast product offer-
ings and global scope of the firm’s business activities are the
primary reasons for its funding stability to date.

UBS’s wealth management businesses continue to repre-
sent valuable and cost-efficient sources of funding. These
businesses contributed CHF 323 billion, or 79%, of the CHF
410 billion total customer deposits shown in the “UBS asset
funding” graph below. Compared with the CHF 307 billion
of net loans as of 31 December 2009, customer deposits
provided 134% coverage (versus 135% on 30 September
2009). In terms of secured funding (i.e. repurchase agree-
ments and securities lent against cash collateral received),
UBS borrows less cash on a collateralized basis than it lends,
leading to a surplus of net securities sourced (and capable of
being re-hypothecated) — shown as the CHF 108 billion cash-
equivalent surplus in the “UBS asset funding” graph. Fur-
thermore, funding is provided through numerous short-,
medium- and long-term funding programs, which provide
specialized investments to institutional and private clients in
Europe, the US and Asia.

UBS asset funding
CHF billion, except where indicated
As of 31.12.09

Time deposits

Demand deposits

Retail savings/deposits

Deposits

Fiduciary deposits

REL Cash collateral on securities
borrowed an
Reverse repurchase agreements CHF
108 billion’
surplus
144 Financial investments available-for- 2 cas"réuﬂf:ﬁ;ioa" fee c:'n' itieslen 7

sale/other assets (incl. net RVs) Other liabilities

®

Total eﬂulnf 4
Assets Liabilities and equity
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Liquidity and funding management

In the fourth quarter, as part of its diversified funding
strategy, UBS launched euro-denominated 5-year and 10-
year covered bonds in the equivalent of approximately CHF
4.5 billion under the new covered bond program it created
in the third quarter. The bonds are covered by a pool of
prime, Swiss franc-denominated Swiss residential mortgages
originated and serviced by UBS AG through its branch net-
work in Switzerland. These offerings expand and enhance
the diversification of UBS’s funding base among internation-
al covered bond investors. UBS also accessed approximately
CHF 0.5 billion of additional new medium- to long-term
funds during the fourth quarter via the Mortgage Bond Bank
of the Swiss Mortgage Institutions by pledging high-quality
Swiss residential mortgages. In the fourth quarter, UBS did
not access the public senior unsecured long-term debt mar-
kets, nor did any public senior long-term debt mature, but
continued to raise funds through medium-term notes and
private placements. As a result, UBS’s total long-term debt
outstanding (including financial liabilities at fair value) was
stable at CHF 192 billion on 31 December 2009 compared
with 30 September 2009.

At the end of fourth quarter 2009, the overall composi-
tion of UBS’s funding sources, illustrated in the pie charts be-
low, was broadly similar to the prior quarter-end. There was a

UBS: funding by product type
in % (excluding trading portfolio liabilities, negative replacement values,
other liabilities and equity)

slight but continued shift away from short-term money mar-
ket paper and interbank debt towards more long-term debt,
demand and savings deposits. These sources amount to CHF
792 billion on the balance sheet and comprise Repurchase
agreements, securities lending against cash collateral received,
Due to banks, money market paper issued, Due to customers
and long-term debt (including financial liabilities at fair value).
Customer time and demand deposits, excluding fiduciary
deposits, accounted for 34%, versus 31% on 30 September
2009, and savings deposits for 13%, stable versus 30 Sep-
tember 2009, of UBS’s funding sources. The proportion of
UBS's funding from long-term debt, including financial liabili-
ties designated at fair value, was up to 24%, from 23%, at
the end of the fourth quarter, partly reflecting UBS's above-
mentioned debt issuances. The proportion of funding
through money market paper issuance dropped to 7% from
8% during the fourth quarter. Compared with the prior quar-
ter-end, the proportion of funding from fiduciary deposits re-
mained stable at 5%, while the relative share of short-term
interbank borrowing dropped to 8% from 10%. During the
fourth quarter, UBS decreased its secured funding, resulting
in its proportion declining slightly to 9% from 10%, primarily
through repurchase agreements and, to a lesser extent,
through cash collateral received for securities lent.

UBS: funding by currency
in % (excluding trading portfolio liabilities, negative replacement values,
other liabilities and equity)

As of 31.12.09

24 10 M Long-term debt

24 W Money market paper

. \

As of 31.12.09
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Capital management

Capital management

Regulatory developments

Following the Basel Il capital framework enhancements and
the revisions to the Basel Il market risk framework issued by
the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (the Committee)
in July 2009, the Group of Central Bank Governors and Heads
of Supervision (the oversight body of the Committee) met in
September 2009 to review measures to strengthen the regula-
tion, supervision and risk management of the banking sector.

In December 2009, the Committee has issued for consul-
tation a package of proposals to strengthen global capital
and liquidity regulations with the goal of promoting a more
resilient banking sector. Based on the above, the Committee
initiated a comprehensive impact assessment of the capital
and liquidity standards, which will be carried out in the first
half of 2010. The Committee also will consider appropriate
transition and grandfathering arrangements. Together, these
measures are intended to promote a better balance between
financial innovation, economic efficiency and sustainable
growth over the long run.

Capital ratios

On 31 December 2009, UBS's BIS tier 1 capital ratio was
15.4% and its BIS total capital ratio was 19.8%, up from
15.0% and 19.4%, respectively, on 30 September 2009.
While the BIS tier 1 capital increased by CHF 0.2 billion to
CHF 31.8 billion, the risk-weighted assets (RWA) decreased
by CHF 4.2 billion to CHF 206.5 billion.
-> Refer to the table “Capital adequacy” below and the
discussion of “Eligible capital” in this section for more
information

Capital adequacy

Risk-weighted assets

To facilitate comparability, UBS determines published RWA
according to the Basel Il Capital Accord (BIS guidelines).
However, the RWA calculated by UBS for supervisory pur-
poses is based on regulations of the Swiss Financial Mar-
ket Supervisory Authority (FINMA), which result in higher
RWA than under the BIS guidelines. BIS RWA changes for
each component for fourth quarter 2009 are as follows:

Credit risk
RWA for credit risk dropped to CHF 140.5 billion on 31 De-
cember 2009 from CHF 142.3 billion on 30 September 2009.
The reduction was primarily related to lower derivatives
RWA of CHF 1.4 billion and reduced RWA on security finance
transactions of CHF 1.3 billion, and was partially offset by an
increase of CHF 1.0 billion RWA for securitization due to
downgrades and increased exposures.

-> Refer to the “Risk management and control” section of this

report for more information about credit risk

Non-counterparty-related assets

In the fourth quarter, RWA for non-counterparty-related as-
sets slightly decreased to CHF 7.0 billion from CHF 7.2 billion
in the third quarter.

Market risk
RWA for market risk decreased by CHF 3.4 billion to CHF
12.9 billion on 31 December 2009, mainly due to lower
value-at-risk multipliers.
-> Refer to the “Risk management and control” section of this
report for more information about market risk
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CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.09 30.09.09 31.12.08
BIS tier 1 capital 31,798 31,583 33,154
 of which: hybrid tier 1 capital - 724 7357 7,393
BIStotal capital 40,941 0887 45367
BIS tier 1 capital ratio (%) 15.4 15.0 11.0
8 o éébit’a'l'ratio (%) ............................................. s oa s
BIS risk-weighted assets 206,525 210,763 302,273
ofwhich: ceditrisk’ 140,494 142277 222,563

of which: non-counterparty-related risk - 7026 7229 7411

of which: market sk 12861 16258 27,614
of which: operational risk 46,144 44999 44,685

1 Includes securitization exposures and equity exposures not part of the trading book and capital requirements for settlement risk (failed trades).
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Capital management

Operational risk
RWA for operational risk increased to CHF 46.1 billion on
31 December 2009 from CHF 45.0 billion on 30 September
2009. This was mainly attributable to the regular scenario
recalibration of operational risk events experienced in the
fourth quarter.

- Refer to the “Risk management and control” section of this

report for more information about operational risk

Eligible capital

In order to determine eligible BIS tier 1 and BIS total capital,
specific adjustments must be made to equity attributable to
UBS shareholders as defined by International Financial Re-
porting Standards (IFRS) and as shown on UBS's balance
sheet. The most notable adjustments are the deductions for
goodwill, intangible assets, investments in unconsolidated
entities engaged in banking and financial activities, and own
credit effects on liabilities designated at fair value. Unlike
RWA, there is no difference in eligible capital between the
BIS guidelines and FINMA regulations.

BIS tier 1 capital

BIS tier 1 capital amounted to CHF 31.8 billion on 31 De-
cember 2009, up CHF 0.2 billion compared with 30 Sep-
tember 2009. The increase is attributable to the CHF 1.2
billion fourth quarter 2009 gain recognized under IFRS. This
positive impact was partly offset by CHF 0.5 billion of own
share related components, CHF 0.3 billion accrual of the

Capital components

coupon for the mandatory convertible notes (MCNSs) issued
in March 2008 and by CHF 0.2 billion from other effects
including foreign exchange.

BIS tier 2 capital

UBS accounts for CHF 0.1 billion of additional BIS upper tier
2 capital from eligible unrealized gains on financial invest-
ments available-for-sale. UBS’s lower tier 2 capital, which
consists of subordinated long-term debt issued in various
currencies and with different maturities, decreased by CHF
0.1 billion in the fourth quarter to CHF 11.2 billion on 31
December 2009, predominantly due to foreign exchange
movements against the Swiss franc.

FINMA leverage ratio

FINMA requires a minimum leverage ratio of 3% at the
Group level and expects that, in normal times, the ratio will
be well above this. The FINMA leverage ratio is being pro-
gressively implemented until it is fully applicable on 1 Janu-
ary 2013.

On 31 December 2009, UBS's Group FINMA leverage
ratio improved to 3.93%, compared with the 30 Septem-
ber 2009 ratio of 3.51%. During the fourth quarter, aver-
age total assets prior to deductions decreased by CHF
132.1 billion, to CHF 1,426.2 billion as a result of UBS’s
continued efforts to reduce its balance sheet. The re-
duction impacted average total adjusted assets, which
declined to CHF 809.4 billion. The improved ratio was also

CHF million 31.12.09 30.09.09 31.12.08
BIS tier 1 capital prior to deductions 47,367 46,093 48,758

of bk pa/d e ap/ta/ ..................................................... e e i

of which: share premium, retained earnings, currency translation differences and other elements 39788 38379 . 41,072

of which: non-innovative capital instruments 1,785 80 1,810

ofwhich: innovative capital instruments 5438 5537 5,583
Less: treasury shares/ deduction for own shares' Q428 (134 (1,488)
less:goodwill & intangibleassets (11,008) (11,000 (12,950)
less:other deduction items? 2138 2166) (1,167)
BIS tier 1 capital 31,798 31,583 33,154
Upper tier 2 capital 50 175 1,090
Lowe o capltal ........................................................... s N 19290
less:other deduction items? 2138 2166) (1,167)
BIS total capital 40,941 40,887 45,367

1 Consists of: i) net long position in own shares held for trading purposes; ii) own shares bought for unvested or upcoming share awards, and iii) accruals built for upcoming share awards 2 Positions
to be deducted as 50% from tier 1 and 50% from total capital mainly consist of: net long position of non-consolidated participations in the finance sector; expected loss on Advanced internal ratings-
based portfolio less general provisions (if difference is positive); expected loss for equities (simple risk weight method); first loss positions from securitization exposures.
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driven by the increase in BIS tier 1 capital (as discussed ear-
lier in this section). The table below shows the calculation
of UBS's Group FINMA leverage ratio as of 31 December
2009.

Equity attribution

UBS's equity attribution framework aims to reflect the firm’s
overarching objectives of maintaining a strong capital base
and guiding each business towards activities with the best
balance between profit potential, risk and capital usage. The
design of the framework enables UBS to calculate and assess
return on attributed equity (Roak) in each of its business divi-
sions and integrates Group-wide capital management activi-
ties with those at business division level.

In fourth quarter 2009, the average attributed equity
for Wealth Management & Swiss Bank, Global Asset
Management and the Investment Bank was unchanged
from third quarter 2009 levels. The average equity attrib-
uted to Wealth Management Americas decreased by CHF
1 billion.

The “Average excess total equity” table on the next page
shows that a total of CHF 44.5 billion of average equity was
attributed to UBS's business divisions and the Corporate
Center in fourth quarter 2009. Equity attributable to UBS
shareholders averaged CHF 40.3 billion during this period,
which resulted in a deficit of CHF 4.2 billion.

Including equity attributable to minority interests (which
primarily consists of tier 1 capital instruments issued by UBS),

FINMA leverage ratio calculation

UBS average total equity would exceed the average equity
attributed to the business divisions and the Corporate Cen-
ter by CHF 3.4 billion.

The Corporate Center continues to transfer interest in-
come earned from managing UBS's consolidated capital
back to each business division.

RoaE for the individual business divisions is disclosed in
the respective business division sections of this report.

- Refer to the respective sections of this report for further

information regarding the impact of interest income on the
operating income of the business divisions

UBS share count

Total UBS shares issued on 31 December 2009 were
3,558,112,753 up from 3,558,104,265 shares on 30 Sep-
tember 2009. This minor change relates to employee option
exercises that were satisfied by sourcing conditional capital.
For this purpose a maximum of 150,023,646 new shares
were available as of 31 December 2009.

It is expected that the CHF 13 billion mandatory convert-
ible note (MCN) issued in March 2008 will lead to the issu-
ance of 272,651,005 shares from conditional capital no later
than 5 March 2010, the expiration date of the note.

- Refer to “Note 8 Earnings per share (EPS) and shares
outstanding” in the “Financial information” section of this
report and to the “Shares and capital instruments” section
of UBS’s restated annual report for 2008 for more
information

CHF billion, except where indicated

Average 4Q09 Average 3Q09 Average 4Q08

Total assets (IFRS) prior to deductions’ 1,426.2 1,558.3 2,211.7
Less netting of replacement values? (420.9) (456.4) (653.5)
Less: loans to Swiss clients (excluding banks? (614) (1616) (1655
Less: cash and balances with central banks @2y Qe (26.0)
Lo (124) o (134) ..... ( M.6)
Total adjusted assets 809.4 899.0 1,352.1
BIS tier 1 capital (at quarter-end) 318 6 332
FINMA consolidated leverage ratio (%) 3.93 3.51 2.45

1 Total assets are calculated as the average of the month-end values for the three months in the calculation period. 2 Includes the impact of netting agreements (including cash collateral) in accordance
with Swiss Federal Banking law, based on the IFRS scope of consolidation. 3 Includes mortgage loans to international clients for properties located in Switzerland. 4 Refer to the “Capital components”

table in this section for more information on deductions of assets from BIS tier 1 capital.

Average attributed equity

CHF billion 4Q09 3Q09 4Q08
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank 9.0 9.0 9.0
Wealth M‘éhég'e'rhent Mot so 0o R
ot A‘s‘sé;['!\'/l'éhageméh‘t ....................................................... e e R
S RN sag o o
Corporafé R Lo ot B
Surplus/ (Deficit) (4.2) (9.0) (8.5)
Average equity attributable to UBS shareholders 40.3 36.5 39.5
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Capital management

Average excess total equity

CHF billion 4Q09
Average equity attributable to UBS shareholders 40.3
'A'\)erage‘é(jL'Jit'y' attributable to fﬁinority interests 7.7
Pro forma average total equity 47.9
Average equity attributed to business divisions and CC 44.5
Average excess total equity 3.4

The number of issued shares may also be increased by a
maximum of 100 million by using conditional capital cre-
ated in connection with UBS’s transfer of illiquid assets to
the SNB StabFund. Such an issuance would be subject to
the final outcome of the disposal and unwinding of assets
in the fund, which is not expected to occur within the near
term. Finally, the Board of Directors is authorized until 27
February 2010 to increase the share capital through the
issuance of a maximum of 5,001,246 shares.
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Treasury shares

UBS shares are held primarily to hedge employee share and
option participation plans. A smaller number are held by
the Investment Bank in its capacity as a market-maker in
UBS shares and related derivatives. The total number of
UBS shares held as treasury shares on 31 December 2009
was 37,553,872, which in substance was unchanged from
30 September 2009.

Distributions to shareholders

The decision whether to pay a dividend and the level of the
dividend are dependent on UBS’s targeted capital ratios and
its cash flow generation. In line with Swiss law, a dividend
may only be paid out of balance sheet profit. The decision on
dividend payments is proposed by the Board of Directors
(BoD) to the shareholders and is subject to their approval at
the annual general meeting. The BoD has decided not to
propose any dividend for the financial year 2009.



UBS registered shares

UBS registered shares

UBS share price chart vs DJ Banks Titans Index

in % 1 January 2007 — 31 December 2009
125 ...............................................................................................................................
100
75
50
25
1Q07 2Q07 3Q07 4Q07 1Q08 2Q08 3Q08 4Q08 1Q09 2Q09 3Q09 4Q09
— UBS registered share CHF ~ — DJ Banks Titans Index CHF For current share price refer to: www.ubs.com/quotes
UBS shares and market capitalization
As of % change from
31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 30.9.09 31.12.08
Shareprice (CHF) 1605 1897 [ ) 8
Market capitalization (CHF million)’ 57,108 67,497 43,519 (15) 31

1 Market capitalization is calculated based on the total UBS ordinary shares issued multiplied by the UBS share price at period-end. The total UBS ordinary shares issued do not reflect the 272.7 million
UBS shares to be issued through the conversion of mandatory convertible notes placed with two investors in March 2008. In addition, the total UBS ordinary shares as of 31 December 2008 do not reflect
the 332.2 million shares issued through the conversion of mandatory convertible notes issued in December 2008 and converted in August 2009. Refer to “Note 8 Earnings per share (EPS) and shares

outstanding” in the “Financial information” section of this report for more information.

UBS ordinary shares are registered shares with a par value of
CHF 0.10 per share. They are issued in the form of Global
Registered Shares (GRS). A Global Registered Share is a secu-
rity that provides direct and equal ownership for all share-
holders. It can be traded and transferred across applicable
borders without the need for conversion, with identical
shares traded on different stock exchanges in different cur-
rencies. The shares are currently listed on the SIX Swiss Ex-
change, the New York Stock Exchange and the Tokyo Stock
Exchange (TSE). UBS expects to de-list its shares from the TSE
in the near future.

Ticker symbols

Trading exchange Bloomberg Reuters

SIX Swiss Exchange UBSNVX ] UBSNVX
New York Stock Exchange UBS US UBS.N

Tokyo Stock Exchange 8657 JP 8657.T

Security identification codes

N CH0024899483
Valoren 2.489.948

Cusip CINS H8923133 8
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Financial information

Financial information (unaudited)

Income statement

For the quarter ended % change from Year ended
CHF million, except per share data Note 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Continuing operations
Interest income 3 4,681 5,100 11,534 (8) (59) 23,461 65,679
Interest expense 3 (2932) (3445 (0879 (15 (0 (17016)  (59,687)
Net interest income 3 1,749 1,654 1,655 6 6 6,446 5,992
Credit loss (expense)/recovery 8) (20 310 6 %) (1832) (2,99)
Net interest income after credit loss expense 1,667 1,428 (655) 17 4,614 2,996
Net fee and commission income 4 a4 450 a788 @ mn 72 22,929
Nt tradmgmcome .................................................. (62) .......... s (9132) ......................... o (324) ....... (25820)
Other meome S o (340) .......... e (83) .......... e 60
Total operating income 6,095 5,766 (4,696) 6 22,601 796
Personnel expenses 6 3,323 4,678 2,378 (29) 40 16,543 16,262
General and administrative expenses 7 1547 1367 373 3 (58) 6248 10,498
Depreciation of property and equipment . 280 PE{ N 395 a ) 1,048 1,241
Impawmentof goodW|II ................................................ 0T AR RN 1123 ........... ur
Amortization of intangible assets 33 84 6 ) o) 00 213
Total operating expenses 5,183 6,359 6,562 (18) (21) 25,162 28,555
Operating profit from continuing operations before tax 912 (593) (11,258) (2,561) (27,758)
o expense ....................................................... (480) .......... (49) ........ (1 798) ......... (880) ........... e (443) ........ (6837) .
Net profit from continuing operations 1,392 (544) (9,460) (2,118) (20,922)
Discontinued operations
Profit from discontinued operations before tax (25) 0 19 (7) 198
Taxexpense .......................................................... R R RIS S
Net profit from discontinued operations (25) 0 19 (7) 198
Net profit 1,368 (544) (9,441) (2,125) (20,724)
Net profit attributable to minority interests 163 21 123 676 33 610 568
. contlnumgoperatlons ....................................... o S oy e o oo e
. dlscontlnuedoperatlons ....................................... A AR G o s
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders 1,205 (564) (9,563) (2,736) (21,292)
* from continuing operations 121 (564) @2 @719 (21442
e dlscontlnuedoperanons ..................................... (26) ............ G o (1 7) .......... s
Earnings per share (CHF)
Basic earnings per share 8 0.32 (0.15) (2.99) (0.75) (7.63)
fromcontlnumgoperatlons ...................................... 032(015)(300)(074)(768)
. dlscontlnuedoperanons .................................... (001) ......... TSR or o 005
Dllutedearnlngspershare ............................... g 031(015) ......... (299)(075)(763)
fromcontlnmngoperatlons ...................................... 032(015) ......... (300)(074)(769)
. dlscontlnuedoperatlons .................................... (001) ......... SRR on oo 005
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Statement of comprehensive income

Quarter ended Year ended
CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Net profit 1,368 (544) (9,441) (2,125) (20,724)
Other comprehensive income
Foreign curmency translation
Forelgn currency translation movements, beforetax ©8 amo @un 6 (4,509)
Foreign exchange amounts reclassified to the income statement
fomequity an N 6 29 202
Income tax relating to foreign currency translation movements 9 (223) 22 (17)
Subtotal foreign currency translation movements, net of tax (106) (681) (2,365) (272) (4,324)
Financial investments available-for-sale
Net unrealized gains/(losses) on financial investments
available-for-sale, beforetax 35 GO w2 B (903)
Impairment charges reclassified to the
income statement from equity 2 9 B 0 47
Realized gains reclassified to the income statement from equity @ G “o9) wn_ (645)
Realized losses rediassified to the income statement fromequity L o o L B
Income tax relating to net unrealized gains/(losses) on
financial instruments available-for-sale (16) (12) 188 (54) 341
Subtotal net unrealized gains/(losses) on financial
instruments available-for-sale, net of tax 18 (58) (668) 27 (1,154)
Gashflowhedges
Effective portion of changes in fair value of derivative instruments
designated as cash flow hedges, beforetax (268) 409 188 R 2001
Net unrealized (gains)/losses reclassified to the
income statement fromequity - T =R 76 178
Income tax effects relating to cash flow hedges 101 (10) (516) 257 (520)
Subtotal changes in fair value of derivative instruments
designated as cash flow hedges (361) 45 1,652 (421) 1,659
Total other comprehensive income (450) (694) (1,381) (667) (3,818)
Total comprehensive income 918 (1,238) (10,822) (2,792) (24,542)
Total comprehensive income attibutable to minority interests 6 Qo CICH. O 7
Total comprehensive income attributable
to UBS shareholders 853 (968) (10,506) (3,276) (24,465)
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Financial information

Balance sheet

As of % change from

CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 31.12.08
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 20,899 32,744 (36)
B 46574 ................................ 64451 R (28)
Cash collateral on securities borowed 63,507 68316 122807 (%)
Reverse repurchase agreements 116,689 147902 224648  (48)
Tradlngportfolloassets ................................................................... 188037271838(31)
Trading portfolio assets pledged as collateral a1 50204 026 10
Posmvereplacementvalues ................................................................. 421694854100(51)
Financial assets designated at fair valve 10223 10989 1282 Q1)
Loane R 306828340308(10)
O SRR 81 757 ................................. 5248 .....................
Accrued|ncomeandprepaldexpenses5816 ................................. 6141 .................. (.5.).
et st T gy (.2.).
Propertyandequment6212 ................................. 6706 .................. (.7.).
Couu andmtanglbleassets .............................................................. 11008 ................................ 12935 R (15)
Deferredtaxasset58868 ................................. 8880 .................. .
et of d|sposa|groupsheld e T
Otherassets7336 ................................. 9931(26)
Total assets 1,340,538 1,476,053 2,014,815 (33)
Liabilities
Due to banks 65,166 85,548 125,628 (48)

)

Other liabilities 33,986 37,190 42,998 (21)
Total liabilities 1,291,905 1,428,797 1,974,282 (35)
Equity

Share capital 356 356 293 22
e prem|um .......................................................................... 34786 ............. 34228 ............. 25250 ................. w
Netincome recognized directly in equity, et of tax | @875 @523) @335 (12
Revalintion resone o < tepach|5|t |ons et w e B o
et ‘e'a'rh'ihgys ........................................................................ 11751 ............. 10546 .......... 14487 R (19)
Equity classified as obligation to purchase own shares @ 60 @ 9%
Treasuryshares ............................................................................ (1040) ............ (1059) ............ (31 56) ................ o
Equity attributable to UBS shareholders 41,013 39,536 32,531 26
Equity attrbutable to minority interests 780 770 8oz (5)
Total equity 48,633 47,256 40,533 20
Total liabilities and equity 1,340,538 1,476,053 2,014,815 (33)
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Statement of changes in equity

Equity classified
as obligation
to purchase

Foreign currency

CHF million Share capital Share premium Treasury shares own shares  Retained earnings translation
Balance at 31 December 2008 293 25,250 (3,156) (46) 14,487 (6,309)
B OO
Net premium/(discount) on treasury shareand
own equity derivative activity (1,268)
.... 10599
....... S
RIS
D
Equity classified as obligation to purchase
own shares — movements 44
Do e
N o
B
o comprehenswe ST y TSRS
recognized in equity (2,736) (136)
Balance at 31 December 2009 356 34,786 (1,040) (2) 11,751 (6,445)
Financial Revaluation Total equity
investments reserve from step attributable to
CHF million available-for-sale  Cash flow hedges acquisitions  UBS shareholders  Minority interests Total equity
Balance at 31 December 2008 347 1,627 38 32,531 8,002 40,533
SR, Eapifél ............................................................................. Gy s
Acqwsmon i 's'ury‘éh‘a'réé ....................................................................... (476) ........................... (476)
'Di's'p'osi{ib‘h i 's'ury‘éhé'réé ...................................................................... 2592 ........................... 2592
ot premlum/(dlscount)ontreasury e R
own equity derivative activity (1,268) (1,268)
Premium on shares issued and warrants exercised 0509 10,599
Employeeshareand R '6;'Jt'i'o'n' blaﬁs .................................................................. Sgr o1
Tax benefits from deferred compensation awards . |
Transaction costs related to share issuances, netoftax ® (87)
Ddondst AR (849) ........... (849)
Eqwt , Dassiio s 'obl‘i‘gé‘ti'dr'w'tb' pu e
own shares — movements 44 44
Drefened saa e R (.7.) .............. (.7.)
N o R S ]
Betomeal o ot o e RN (1 .3.) ............ (1 .3.)
o cdfn‘bréﬁéﬁéiVe RS y‘e‘a‘r ......................................................................................................
recognized in equity 17 (421) (3,276) 484 (2,792)
Balance at 31 December 2009 364 1,206 38 41,013 7,620 48,633
1 Includes dividend payment obligations for preferred securities.
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Financial information

Statement of changes in equity

Equity classified

as obligation

to purchase

CHF million own shares

Share capital Share premium

Treasury shares

Foreign currency
Retained earnings translation

Balance at 31 December 2007 12,433

(10,363)

35,795 (2,600)

Net premium/(discount) on treasury share
and own equity derivative activity (4,626)

Equity classified as obligation to purchase
own shares — movements 28

Total comprehensive income for the year

recognized in equity (21,292) (3,709)
Balance at 31 December 2008 293 25,250 (3,156) (46) 14,487 (6,309)
Financial Revaluation Total equity
investments reserve from attributable to

CHF million available-for-sale  Cash flow hedges  step acquisitions ~ UBS shareholders  Minority interests Total equity

Balance at 31 December 2007 1,471 (32) 38 36,875 6,951 43,826

SRR, cap|tal .............................................................................................. g e
Acqmsmon i 's'u'r'y RS (367) ................................. (367) .
Dlsposmon i suryshares ....................................................................................... 7574 ................................. 7574 .
ot premlum/(dlscount)ontre . suryshare ...........................................................................................................................
and own equity derivative activity (4,626) (4,626)
Premium on shares issued and warrants exercised 0003 20,003
Employee e g ahare optlon pIans ............................................................................ (1961) ............................... (1961)
Tax benefits from deferred compensation awards ae (176)
Transaction costs related to share issuances, netoftax 3 (423)
Ddonds R (16) .............. (361) .............. (377)
Eqwt yclas i obllgauonto . pu e
own shares — movements 28 28

Drefened aacartieg R 161 g 16 e
N o R Lo -
Betomeal s ot o SRR (141) .............. (141)
o comprehenswe S y T R
recognized in equity (1,124) 1,659 (24,465) (77) (24,542)
Balance at 31 December 2008 347 1,627 38 32,531 8,002 40,533

Preferred securities’

For the year ended

CHF million 31.12.09 31.12.08
Balance at the beginning of the year 7,381 6,381
R T ee
Redemptlons ................................................................................................................... (7) ....................
o re|gncurrency R (120) ......... 6
Balance at the end of the year 7,254 7,381

1 Represents equity attributable to minority interests. Increases and offsetting decreases of equity attributable to minority interests due to dividends are excluded from this table.
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Notes

Notes (unaudited)

Note 1 Basis of accounting

UBS AG's ("UBS") consolidated financial information (Finan-
cial Information) is prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the Interna-
tional Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and stated in Swiss
francs (CHF). The interim Financial Information is unaudited.
In preparing the interim Financial Information, the same ac-
counting principles and methods of computation are applied
as in the financial statements on 31 December 2008 and for
the year then ended except for the changes set out below
and in Note 1 of UBS’s first, second and third quarter 2009
interim financial statements.

This fourth quarter interim Financial Information should
be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements
included in UBS's annual report 2008. It is not fully in accor-
dance with IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting, as it does not
include a cash flow statement and certain explanatory notes,
which will be included in the annual financial statements
2009 to be published on 17 March 2010. For fair value mea-
surements applied at 31 December 2009, UBS provides com-
plementary information in “Note 11 Fair value of financial
instruments” and in the annual financial statements 2009 to
be published on 17 March 2010.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary
for a fair presentation of the financial position and results of
operations for the interim periods have been made.

IAS 1 (revised) Presentation of financial statements

Effective 1 January 2009, revised International Accounting
Standard (IAS) 1 affects the presentation of both owner
changes in equity and comprehensive income. UBS contin-
ues to present owner changes in equity in the “Statement of
changes in equity”, but detailed information relating to non-
owner changes in equity, such as foreign exchange trans-
lation, cash flow hedges and financial investments available-
for-sale, is now presentedin the “Statement of comprehensive
income”.

When implementing these amendments, UBS also adjust-
ed the format of its “Statement of changes in equity” and
replaced the “Statement of recognized income and ex-
pense” with a “Statement of comprehensive income”. Pre-
ferred securities issued by consolidated trusts are reported as
"Equity attributable to minority interests”, as they are equity
instruments held by third parties. As securities issued by con-
solidated trusts comprise the largest part of UBS's equity
attributable to minority interests, UBS discloses movement
information in a separate table.

IFRS 7 (revised) Financial instruments: disclosures

This standard was revised in March 2009 when the IASB
published the amendment “Improving Disclosures about Fi-
nancial Instruments”. Effective 1 January 2009, the amend-
ment requires enhanced disclosures about fair value mea-
surements and liquidity risk.

The enhanced fair value measurement disclosure require-
ments include: a fair value hierarchy (i. e. categorization of all
financial instruments into levels 1, 2 and 3 based on the rel-
evant definitions); significant transfers between level 1 and
level 2; reconciliation of level 3 instruments at the beginning
of the period to the ending balance (level 3 movement ta-
ble); level 3 profit or loss for positions still held at balance
sheet date; and sensitivity information for the total position
of level 3 instruments and the basis for the calculation of
such information.

The amended liquidity risk disclosure requirements largely
confirm the previous rules for providing maturity informa-
tion for non-derivative financial liabilities, but amend the
rules for providing maturity information for derivative finan-
cial liabilities. UBS presents maturity analysis information for
financial liabilities in its annual reports.

IFRS 8 Operating segments

IFRS 8 Operating segments is effective from 1 January 2009
onwards and replaces IAS 14 Segment Reporting. Under the
requirements of the new standard, UBS's external segment
reporting is now based on the internal reporting to the Group
Executive Board (or the “chief operating decision maker”),
which makes decisions on the allocation of resources and as-
sesses the performance of the reportable segments.

In accordance with the new UBS structure announced in
February 2009, and following the guidance of IFRS 8, UBS is
disclosing four reportable segments in 2009. These seg-
ments are the business divisions: Wealth Management &
Swiss Bank, Wealth Management Americas, Global Asset
Management and the Investment Bank. While the Corporate
Center does not meet the requirements of an operating seg-
ment, it is also shown separately. Segment information from
prior periods has been restated to conform to the require-
ments of this new standard and the interim financial report-
ing requirements.

As UBS's reportable segment operations are mainly fi-
nancial, the total interest income and expense for all re-
portable segments is presented on a net basis. Based on the
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Notes

present arrangement of revenue-sharing agreements, the
intersegment revenue for UBS is immaterial. From 2009 on-
wards, the segment assets are disclosed without the inter-
company balances and this basis is in line with the internal
reporting.

- Refer to “Note 2 Segment reporting” in this section for
more details about the basis on which the segment
information is prepared and reconciled to the amounts
presented in UBS’s income statement and balance sheet

IAS 24 Related party disclosures

In November 2009, the IASB amended IAS 24 Related party
disclosures with latest possible effective date 1 January 2011.
UBS will adopt the revised requirements early, in its annual
financial statements 2009. The revised standard amends the
definition of related parties, in particular the relationship
between UBS and associated companies of UBS's key man-
agement personnel or their close family members. Trans-
actions between UBS and associated companies of UBS key
management personnel over which UBS key management
personnel does not have control or joint control are no
longer considered related party transactions. Due to the ap-
plication of the revised guidance, related party transactions
disclosed in Note 32e of the annual financial statements
2008 will be significantly reduced.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

In November 2009, the IASB issued IFRS 9 Financial instru-
ments, which includes revised guidance on the classifica-
tion and measurement of financial assets. The publication of
IFRS 9 represents the completion of the first part of a multi-
stage project to replace IAS 39 Financial instruments: recog-
nition and measurement. Under the revised guidance, a fi-
nancial asset is to be accounted for at amortized cost only if
it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the con-
tractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
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interest on the principal amount outstanding. Non-traded
equity instruments may be accounted for at fair value through
equity, but the subsequent release of amounts booked di-
rectly to equity into the income statement is no longer per-
mitted. All other financial assets are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. UBS is currently assessing the impact
of the new standard on its financial statements. It is likely
that a number of financial assets currently accounted for at
amortized cost will be accounted for at fair value through
profit or loss under the new standard because a) their con-
tractual cash flows do not comprise solely payments of prin-
cipal and interest on the principal, and/or b) UBS does not
hold the assets with the intention to collect cash flows they
generate. The effective date for mandatory adoption is 1 Jan-
uary 2013, with early adoption permitted. UBS did not adopt
IFRS 9 for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Allocation of shared services costs in
segment disclosures

From third quarter 2009 onwards, ITI and Group Offshoring
costs managed by the Corporate Center are allocated to the
direct cost lines personnel expenses, general and administra-
tive expenses, and depreciation, in the respective business
division income statements, based on appropriate internally
determined allocation keys. In the Corporate Center income
statement, costs allocated to the business divisions are de-
ducted from the respective cost lines. In previous reports,
these costs were presented as an expense on the line Ser-
vices (to)/from other business divisions within each business
division and an offsetting corresponding amount on that line
in the Corporate Center. The new presentation format pro-
vides greater transparency by allocating shared service costs
to direct cost lines in divisional income statements. Com-
parative periods have been adjusted.

Group results and business division performance before
tax in previous periods were not impacted by this policy
change.

For the comparative 12-month period in 2008, the fol-
lowing allocations were made:



Corporate Center reallocations 2008

Wealth Wealth
Management & Management Global Asset Investment Corporate
Impact on income statement lines (CHF million) Swiss Bank Americas Management Bank Center
Personnel expenses 228 85 20 300 (633)
General and administrative expenses 328 121 28 431 (909)
Depreciation of property and equipment 163 60 15 216 (455)
Services (to)/from other business divisions (719) (267) (62) (949) 1,997

Unit-linked investment contracts

In fourth quarter 2009, UBS decided to present Wealth Man-
agement & Swiss Banking's obligations under unit-linked in-
vestment contracts under Other liabilities in order to align
the treatment with similar contracts issued by Global Asset
Management. In the past, the respective obligations of
Wealth Management & Swiss Banking have been reported
under Due to customers. UBS has retrospectively applied this
change in presentation.

The change in presentation resulted in the following
effects on the balance sheet for 1 January 2008, 31 De-
cember 2008 and 30 September 2009: a decrease of Due
to customers and a corresponding increase in amounts
due under Other liabilities on the balance sheet (unit-
linked investment contracts) of CHF 11,787 million, CHF
9,033 million and CHF 8,341 million, respectively. The
change in presentation did not impact UBS’s total liabil-
ities, income statements or earnings per share for these
periods.
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Notes

Note 2 Segment reporting

Transactions between the reportable segments are carried out at internally agreed rates or at arm’s length and are reflected
in the performance of each segment. Revenue-sharing agreements are used to allocate external customer revenues to a seg-
ment and cost-allocation agreements are used to allocate shared costs between the segments.

Wealth Wealth

Management ~ Management  Global Asset Investment Corporate
CHF million & Swiss Bank Americas  Management Bank Center UBS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
Net interest income 4,533 800 2 2,339 (1,229) 6,446
Nonmterestlncome6989474621342494 .......... : 623 ........ 17987
Income’ 11,523 5,546 2,137 4,833 394 24,433
s s(expense)/recovery ............................................ (1 33) ............. g SR (1698) ,,,,,,,,,,,, (5) ........ (1832)
Total operating income 11,390 5,550 2,137 3,135 389 22,601
Personnel expenses 5,197 4,231 996 5,568 551 16,543
Generalandadmmlstranveexpenses2017 .......... 1017 ........... 38726281996248
G ( to)/from o beiness duisions B (90) ............. IR (74) ,,,,,,,,,, ( . 47) ,,,,,,,,,, e .
Depreclatlonof propertyandequment ................................... o R o ey : 048
| mpalrm oy goodW|II ................................................... AR RIS o i AR : 1 5
Ao ofmtanglbleassets P ITIITPTPTPPETRPPRPPIOS o G G G G 20
Total operating expenses 7,480 5,518 1,698 9,216 1,250 25,162
Performance from continuing operations before tax 3,910 32 438 (6,081) (860) (2,561)
Performance from discontinued operations before tax (7) (7)
Performance before tax 3,910 32 438 (6,081) (867) (2,569)
o expe R ontlnumgoper L T B TR R ( 443)
= expe S |scont|nuedoperatlons ........................................................................................................... .
Net profit (2,125)
As of 31 December 2009
Total assets? 248,140 53,197 20,238 991,964 26,999 1,340,538
For the year ended 31 December 2008
Net interest income 5,424 938 (2) 2,007 (2,375) 5,992
Non-interest income 9989 ! 5340 2006 (23808) 3373 (2,200)
Income’ 15,413 6,278 2,905 (21,800) 998 3,792
Creditloss (expense) /recovery o) ) o @575 o (2,996)
Total operating income 15,021 6,249 2,904 (24,375) 998 796
Personnel expenses 5,430 4,271 946 5,182 433 16,262
General and administrative expenses 3295 2558 %6 380 33 10,498
Services (to)/from other business units 73 % s 4 73 0
Depreciation of property and equipment 323 1,2 44 a7 65 1,241
.I mpalrm o goodW|II ........................................................ R g G B R i
Amortlzatlonofmtanglbleassets .............................................. ey Ty o 3
Total operating expenses 9,008 7,072 1,572 9,925 979 28,555
Performance from continuing operations before tax 6,013 (823) 1,333 (34,300) 19 (27,758)
Performance from discontinued operations before tax 198 198
Performance before tax 6,013 (823) 1,333 (34,300) 217 (27,560)
o expe o ngoper o R R R R (6837)
o expe eond |scont|nuedoper o B
Net profit (20,724)

As of 31 December 2008
Total assets? 251,487 39,039 24,640 1,680,257 19,392 2,014,815

1 The total inter-segment revenues for the Group are immaterial as the majority of the revenues are allocated across the business divisions by means of revenue-sharing agreements. 2 Impairments of
intangible assets amounted to CHF 57 million for the twelve months ended 31 December 2009 (Wealth Management & Swiss Bank CHF 56 million, Wealth Management Americas CHF 1 million), includ-
ing the writedown of intangible assets in connection with actual and anticipated invested asset outflows in UBS (Bahamas) Ltd. of CHF 50 million. 3 The segment assets are based on a third-party view
and this basis is in line with the internal reporting to the management, i.e. the amounts do not include inter-company balances.
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Note 3 Net interest and trading income

Accounting standards require separate disclosure of Net
interest income and Net trading income (see the tables on this
and the next page). This required disclosure, however, does
not take into account that net interest and trading income are
generated by a range of different businesses. In many cases,
a particular business can generate both net interest and trad-
ing income. Fixed income trading activity, for example, gener-
ates both trading profits and coupon income. It is therefore
more meaningful to analyze net interest and trading income
according to the businesses that drive it. The second table

below “Breakdown by businesses” provides information that
corresponds to this view: Net income from trading businesses
includes both interest and trading income generated by the
Investment Bank, including its lending activities, and trading
income generated by the other business divisions; Net income
from interest margin businesses comprises interest income
from the loan portfolios of Wealth Management & Swiss
Bank and Wealth Management Americas; Net income from
treasury activities and other reflects all income from the
Group's centralized treasury function.

For the quarter ended % change from Year ended
CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Net interest and trading income
Net interest income 1,749 1,654 1,655 6 6 6,446 5,992
Net trading income 62 48 0132 9 (324) (25,820
Total net interest and trading income 1,688 1,802 (7,477) (6) 6,122 (19,828)
Breakdown by businesses
Net income from trading businesses' 1,025 204 (5,617) 402 382 (27,203)
Netincome from interest margin businesses 1,229 1200 1540 2 o)
Netincome from treasury activities and other (566) 308 G400 83 687 1,214
Total net interest and trading income 1,688 1,802 (7,477) 6) 6,122 (19,828)
1 Includes lending activities of the Investment Bank.
Net interest income
Interest income
Interest earned on loans and advances | 2892 3103 478 mn Gy 13,202 20,213
Interest earned on securities borrowed and reverse repurchase
agreements 317 466 2,306 (32) (86) 2,629 22,521
Interest and dividend income from trading portfolio - 1335 1393 4288 @ 69) 7150 22,397
Interest income on financial assets designated at fair valie 67 9 134 (15 o) 36 404
Interest and dividend income from financial investments
available-for-sale 70 58 26 21 169 164 145
Total 4,681 5,100 11,534 (8) (59) 23,461 65,679
Interest expense
Interest on amounts due to banks and customers | 517 78 34 . (84 3873 18,150
Interest on securities lent and repurchase agreements - 263 E1/ I 153 ) ®) 2179 16,123
Interest and dividend expense from trading portfolio m 669 1481 o1 (500 3878 9,162
Interest on financial liabilities designated at fair value 585 694 1613 (1 6 64 2855 7,298
Interest on debt issued . 823 96 208 (1 0 (59 ant 8,954
Total 2,932 3,445 9,879 (15 (70) 17,016 59,687
Net interest income 1,749 1,654 1,655 6 6 6,446 5,992

Interest includes forward points on foreign exchange swaps used to manage short-term interest rate risk on foreign currency

loans and deposits.
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Notes

Note 3 Net interest and trading income (continued)

For the quarter ended % change from Year ended

CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Net trading income'’
Investment Bank equities 257 (7) (1,418) 2,462 4,694
Investment Bank fixed income, currencies and commodities @10 (685 (52700 5 % (5455 (35040)
Other business divisons (@) g4l 44 00 2668 4,525
Net trading income (62) 148 (9,132) 99 (324) (25,820)
RS ga/ o/ osses) from fnancil piies T T B

designated at fair value? (1,379) (4,988) 16,768 72 (6,741) 44,284

1 Refer to the table “Net interest and trading income” on the previous page for the “Net income from trading businesses” (for an explanation, read the corresponding introductory comment).
2 "Financial liabilities designated at fair value” are to a large extent economically hedged with derivatives and other instruments whose change in fair value is also reported in “Net trading income”.

Refer to “Note 11 Fair value of financial instruments” for further information.

Significant impacts on net trading income

Net trading income in fourth quarter 2009 included a gain of
CHF 0.2 billion from credit valuation adjustments for mono-
line credit protection (CHF 0.5 billion gain in third quarter
2009 and CHF 2.3 billion loss in fourth quarter 2008).
Fourth quarter 2009 net trading income also included
gains of CHF 0.1 billion from the valuation of UBS's option to
acquire the SNB StabFund'’s equity (CHF 0.2 billion gain in

Note 4 Net fee and commission income

third quarter 2009 and CHF 5.2 billion total loss in fourth
quarter 2008).

A CHF 0.3 billion loss in third quarter 2009 and CHF
0.7 billion gain in fourth quarter 2008 were recorded on the
valuation of the embedded derivative component of the
MCNs issued in December 2008 and converted in August
20009.

-> Refer to the “Risk management and control” section of this

report for more information on exposure to monolines

For the quarter ended % change from Year ended

CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Equity underwriting fees 437 503 230 (13) 90 1,590 1,138
Dbt underwntlng e e e e R o e ss
Total underwriting fees 600 666 313 (10) 92 2,386 1,957
M8A and corporate finance fees o 03 333 9 G) 881 1662
Brokerage fees 13717 1507 1789 a8 @) 6217 8,209
Investment fund fees 1,03 979 1166 3 13 4000 5,583
Portfolio management and advisory fees 1459 1513 1630 @ 1) 583 7,667
Insurance-related and other fees v R g s a w4 317
Total securities trading and investment activity fees 4,762 5,040 5,255 (6) 9) 19,611 25,394
Credit-related fees and commissions

Commission income from other services 228 233 233 ) ) 878 1,010
Total fee and commission income 5,092 5,347 5,558 (5) (8) 20,827 26,677
Brokerage fees paid 321 471 332 (32) (3) 1,748 1,763
Other s o W ( 4) ........ (25) ....... 1368 ........ 1984 .
Total fee and commission expense 654 817 774 (20) (16) 3,116 3,748
Net fee and commission income 4,438 4,530 4,784 (2) (7) 17,712 22,929
*of which: net brokerage fees 1,056 1126 1458 (6) 28 4469 6,445
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Note 5 Other income

For the quarter ended % change from Year ended
CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Associates and subsidiaries
Net gains from disposals of consolidated subsidiaries' 60 (416) & % (184)
Net gains from disposals of investments in associates o o o DR 199
Ghare of et .p.r.o ol S o o . o o
Total 67 (397) (80) 133 9

Financial investments available-for-sale

Impairment charges (

Total ( 413
Net income from investments in property? 14 18 28 (22) (50) 72 88
Net gains from investment properties®> (1) T & a6y 0
b R oo Gy (41) (50) ,,,,,,,, oy e
Total other income 52 (340) 306 (83) 599 692

1 Includes foreign exchange amounts reclassified from equity upon disposal or deconsolidation of subsidiaries. Third quarter 2009 includes a loss of CHF 498 million on sale of UBS Pactual. 2 Includes
net rent received from third parties and net operating expenses. 3 Includes unrealized and realized gains from investment properties at fair value and foreclosed assets.

Note 6 Personnel expenses

For the quarter ended % change from Year ended
CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Salaries and variable compensation 2,628 3,851 1,349 (32) 95 12,801 12,207
o e g T o s s
Insurance and social security contributions 157 s 8% @ 8 851 706
Contributions to retirement plans 37 2 08 s o - 926
Other personnel expenses . us %6 633 ® 6) 1675 2,000
Total personnel expenses 3,323 4,678 2,378 (29) 40 16,543 16,262
Note 7 General and administrative expenses

For the quarter ended % change from Year ended
CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Occupancy 328 353 397 (7) (17) 1,420 1,516

Total general and administrative expenses 1,547 1,367 3,723 13 (58) 6,248 10,498
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Notes

Note 8 Earnings per share (EPS) and shares outstanding

As of or for the quarter ended % change from Year ended

31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 3Q09 4Q08 31.12.09 31.12.08
Basic earnings (CHF million)
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders 1,205 (564) (9,563) (2,736) (21,292)
~ from continuing operations - 121 (564 @2 @719 (21,442)
e dlscontlnuedoperatlons ............................. (26) .............. G R (1 7) ............ e
Diluted earnings (CHF million)
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders 1,205 (564) (9,563) (2,736) (21,292)
Less: (profit)/loss on equity derivative contracts an G ® 067) 8) G (28)
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders for
diluted EPS 1,194 (567) (9,569) (2,741) (21,320)
* from continuing operations - 1220 (567 (9588 724) (21,470)
R dlscontlnuedoperatlons ............................. (26) .............. o R (1 7) ............ e

Weighted average shares outstanding

Weighted average shares outstanding for
basic EPS 3,793,194,134 3,792,925,123 3,197,085,523 0 19 3,661,086,266 2,792,023,098

Potentially dilutive ordinary shares resulting
from unvested exchangeable shares, options

and warrants outstanding’ 27,422,092 487,449 2,273,325 754,948 1,151,556
Weighted average shares outstanding for
diluted EPS 3,820,616,226 3,793,412,572 3,199,358,848 1 19 3,661,841,214 2,793,174,654

Potential ordinary shares from unexercised
employee shares and options not considered
due to the anti-dilutive effect 0 23,579,883 27,338,524 (100) (100) 20,166,373 27,909,964

Earnings per share (CHF)

Basic 0.32 (0.15) (2.99) (0.75) (7.63)
~ from continuing operations 032 (1% @) M) (768
e oo R B R Lo,
i CREOTMEROPEM 1
~ from continuing operations 032 (1 o) 07 (169
~from discontinued operations 001) 000 001 000 005

Shares outstanding

Ordinary shares issued 3,558,112,753 3,558,104,265 2,932,580,549 0 21

Treasuryshares ..................................... 5387 e B S R
Shares outstanding 3,520,558,881 3,520,937,099 2,870,677,428 0 23

Retrospective adjustments for capital increase? 23,252,487

Mandatory o el o SRR
exchangeable shares® 273,264,461 273,300,413 605,547,748 0 (55)

Shares outstanding for EPS 3,793,823,342 3,794,237,512 3,499,477,663 0 8

1 Additional 100 million ordinary shares ("contigent share issue”) related to the SNB transaction were not dilutive for the quarters ended 31 December 2009, 30 September 2009 and 31 December 2008
and for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008, but could potentially dilute earnings per share in the future. 2 Shares outstanding increased 0.81% due to the capital increase in
June 2009. 3 31 December 2009, 30 September 2009 and 31 December 2008 include 272,651,005 shares for the mandatory convertible notes issued to two investors in March 2008. 31 December
2008 includes 332,225,913 shares for the mandatory convertible notes issued to the Swiss Confederation in December 2008. Remaining amounts related to exchangeable shares.
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Note 9 Income taxes

UBS recognized a net income tax benefit in its income purposes. In addition, it reflects tax expenses relating to op-
statement of CHF 480 million for fourth quarter 2009. This  erations in locations with taxable earnings, partially offset by
net benefit reflects a CHF 467 million increase in US tax loss  income tax provision releases.

deferred tax assets, and also a small increase in Swiss tax loss In addition, UBS recognized additional deferred tax assets
deferred tax assets, following updated forecast profit as- directly in equity of CHF 203 million in relation to Swiss tax
sumptions over the five-year horizon used for recognition losses relating to items recognized directly in equity.

Note 10 Trading portfolio
CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08

Trading portfolio assets
Debt instruments

Government and government agencies 82,129 101,372 115,696
Banke I 15024 ,,,,,,,,,, 21645 ,,,,,,,,,, 23175
fdfboréféé R i 878 ,,,,,,,,,, 54702 ,,,,,,,,,, 85991 .
Total debt instruments 139,030 177,719 224,862
Equity instruments 76,364 68,966 77,258
Precious metals and other commodities 16,864 14,576 9,934
Total trading portfolio assets 232,258 261,262 312,054

Trading portfolio liabilities
Debt instruments

Government and government agencies 26,306 31,609 34,043
Banke I 3472 ........... 3310 ........... 4354
Corporatesandother 5447 ........... 6302 .......... 10945
Total debt instruments 35,226 41,221 49,342
Equity instruments 12,243 12,274 13,089
Total trading portfolio liabilities 47,469 53,496 62,431

1 Other commodities predominantly consist of energy.

Note 11 Fair value of financial instruments

Details about fair value measurements, including valuation techniques applied and inputs used on 31 December 2009, will
be provided in the annual financial statements for 2009, which will be published on 17 March 2010.

a) Fair value hierarchy

Determination of fair values from quoted market prices or valuation techniques

31.12.09 30.9.09
CHF billion Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Trading portfolio assets 110.9 65.5 11.6 188.0 121.6 78.5 10.9 211.0
Trading portfolio assets pledged as collateral 313 123 06 a2 323 169 o 503
Positive replacement values 40 3938 38 a7 52 a7y 22 5013
Financial assets designated at fair value 08 92 03 102 08 99 03 110
Finandial investments available-forsale 743 61 14 818 506 52 12 50.0
Total assets 221.4 487.0 37.6 745.9 2125 582.4 37.6 832.5
Trading portfolio liabilities 33.5 13.6 0.4 47.5 38.2 15.1 0.2 53.5
Negative replacement values 37 3892 170 4099 a9 614 20 4873
Financial liabilities designated at fair value - 1024 103 ma7 049 79 1129
Total liabilities 37.2 505.2 27.7 570.1 43,1 581.4 29.2 653.7
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Notes

Note 11 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

b) Valuation information

Counterparty credit risk in the valuation of OTC

derivative instruments and derivatives embedded in

traded debt instruments

In order to arrive at fair value, credit valuation adjustments
(CVA) are necessary to reflect the credit risk of the counter-
party inherent in over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives trans-
actions and derivatives embedded in traded debt instru-
ments. This amount represents the estimated (risk neutral)
market value of protection required to hedge credit risk from
counterparties in UBS's OTC derivatives portfolio and deriva-
tives embedded in traded debt instruments. CVA depends
on expected future exposures, default probability and recov-
ery rate. The calculation takes into account whether collat-
eral or netting arrangements or break clauses are in place.

UBS's own credit risk in the valuations of derivative
financial liabilities (negative replacement values)

The Group applies a methodology consistent with that used
to calculate CVA. The calculation takes into account nega-
tive expected exposure profiles for the derivatives portfolio,
collaterals, netting agreements, expected future mark-to-
market movements and UBS’s credit default spreads to de-
termine the UBS counterparty exposure from the perspec-
tive of holders of UBS debt. The debit valuation adjustments
(DVA) so calculated represent the theoretical costs to coun-
terparties of hedging their UBS credit exposure or the cred-
it risk reserve that a counterparty could reasonably be ex-
pected to hold against their credit risk exposure to UBS, if
they applied the same methodology as used to calculate
UBS's CVA.

UBS'’s own credit risk in the valuations of financial
liabilities designated at fair value
The Group’s own credit changes are reflected in valuations
for those financial liabilities designated at fair value, where
the Group’s own credit risk would be considered by market
participants. They are discounted for fully collateralized
transactions and other instruments for which it is established
market practice not to include an entity-specific adjustment
for own credit. Own credit changes are calculated based on
a senior long-term debt curve (SDC) generated from ob-
served external pricing for funding associated with new se-
nior debt issued by the Group, or relevant secondary market
transactions in senior long-term UBS debt. The senior debt
curve is considered to be representative of the credit risk
which reflects the premium (or discount) that market par-
ticipants require to acquire UBS debt.

The own credit results for “Financial liabilities designated
at fair value” (predominantly issued structured products)
were as follows:
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Own credit changes

As of or for the period ended

CHF million 31.12.09' 30.9.09  31.12.08

Total changes for the quarter ended (24) (1,436) (1,616)
h of Which:' Erédit spread b.ﬁ/)./'re/ated ..... (54‘4.)” ' ( 7,33‘9.).' ' 755 .
Total changes yearto-date 2.023) (1,999 2032
Total changes life-to-date 890 1,396 2953

1 Includes the following impacts from valuation changes as of 1 October 2009: increase of “total
own credit” of CHF 483 million on a quarter-to-date, year-to-date and life-to-date basis; loss of
CHF 83 million on “own credit related to credit spread only changes”.

The for the quarter ended amounts represent the amounts
by which the financial instruments designated at fair value
have changed during the quarter. The year-to-date amount
is the amount by which the financial instruments designated
at fair value have changed during the year. The life-to-date
amount reflects the amounts by which the fair value of fi-
nancial liabilities designated at fair value has changed since
inception. Included in these amounts is the quantification of
changes in fair value attributable to changes in UBS’s credit
spread during the periods. In addition, the total own credit
changes include the credit effect of “volume changes”, i.e.
the credit effect of period changes in fair values attributable
to factors other than credit spreads, such as redemptions,
effects from time decay, changes in the value of referenced
instruments issued by third parties or, in the case of the life-
to-date amount, changes in foreign exchange rates.

Changes to the valuation of derivative financial instruments
and financial instruments designated at fair value

In fourth quarter 2009, UBS reviewed its approach to calculate
and book own credit of derivative liabilities and financial liabili-
ties designated at fair value. The following paragraphs describe
the impacts of the changes on UBS's fourth quarter results and
balance sheet as of the transition date 1 October 2009.

UBS’s net profit and net trading income have been re-
duced by CHF 6 million, made up of a charge of CHF 690
million to Corporate Center and a CHF 684 million credit to
the Investment Bank, of which CHF 483 million related to
own credit and CHF 201 million to the fixed income, curren-
cies and commodities business. Financial liabilities designated
at fair value decreased by CHF 431 million, financial assets
designated at fair value increased by CHF 154 million, nega-
tive replacement values increased by CHF 565 million, and
positive replacement values decreased by CHF 26 million.

A retrospective application of the portion of the valuation
changes attributable to 2008 would have decreased the net
loss of the Group for that year by CHF 143 million, reflecting
a gain of CHF 365 million that would have been credited to
Investment Bank and a loss of CHF 222 million that would
have been charged to Corporate Center.



Note 12 Reclassification of financial assets

In 2008 and first quarter 2009, financial assets with fair values
on their reclassification dates of CHF 26 billion and CHF 0.6
billion, respectively, were reclassified from Trading portfolio as-

Trading portfolio assets reclassified to loans

sets to Loans. No financial assets were reclassified in second,
third or fourth quarters 2009. The table below shows the car-
rying values and fair values of these financial assets.

CHF billion 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08
Carrylng value 19.9 211 24.2
e oo o 08
Pro-forma fair value gain/(loss) (0.9) (1.0) (3.4)

In fourth quarter 2009, carrying values decreased by CHF 1.2
billion mainly due to sales of CHF 1.1 billion as well as redemp-
tions of CHF 0.4 billion and, to a lesser extent, the apprecia-
tion of the Swiss franc against the US dollar (CHF 0.1 billion).
The decrease was partially offset by the accretion of interest of
CHF 0.3 billion from the amortization of the discount between
carrying values and the expected recoverable amounts.

Fair values of reclassified financial assets decreased by

Reclassified assets

CHF 1.1 billion in fourth quarter 2009, which includes a fair
value gain of CHF 0.5 billion offset by decreases of CHF 1.6
billion primarily related to sales of CHF 1.1 billion as well as
redemptions of CHF 0.4 billion and the decline of the Swiss
franc/US dollar exchange rate.

The table below provides notional values, fair values, and
carrying values by product category, as well as the ratio of
carrying value to notional value.

Ratio of carrying to

31.12.09, CHF billion Notional value Fair value Carrying value notional value
US student loan and municipal auction rate securities 9.3 8.0 8.2 88%
Monol|hé‘bfﬁ>t’éc’t’éd el e cp s s
Leveragéd TR e G e 0%
CMBS/CRE (excluding interest-only strip) 20 15 6 82%
Us ferance ke motes e g o 26
o aaots L g o 50
Total (excluding CMBS interest-only strips) 23.6 18.2 19.0 80%
CMBS interest-only strips 0.8 0.9

Total reclassified assets 23.6 19.0 19.9

1 Includes CDOs (notional value of approximately CHF 0.45 billion; carrying value and fair value of approximately CHF 0.3 billion) which are no longer hedged by CDS with monoline insurers following

the commutation of these CDS trades in prior periods.

Reclassified financial assets impacted UBS's income statement as presented in the table below.

Contribution of the reclassified assets to the income statement

For the quarter ended Year ended

CHF billion 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.09

Net interest income 0.3 0.4 1.5
it o ‘s‘('ékbéhée)/réﬁd\'/é'ry' .............................................................. oo o (o)

ot e oo 0

Impact on operating profit before tax 0.3 0.3 0.6
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Notes

Note 13 Commitments

The table below shows the maximum committed amount of commitments.

31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08
Sub- Sub- Sub-

CHF million Gross participations Net Gross  participations Net Gross  participations Net
Credit guarantees and similar
instruments J1iso (222) 10,958 11376 (267) 1109 13124 (344) 12780
Performance guarantees and
similar instruments 3,484 (582) 2,902 3,275 (348) 2,927 3,596 (446) 3,150
Documentary credits 2,406 (289) 2,117 2,210 (244) 1,966 2,979 (415) 2,564
Total commitments 17,070 (1,092) 15,977 16,861 (859) 16,002 19,699 (1,205) 18,494
Undrawn irrevocable
credit facilities 59,328 (1,793) 57,534 57,649 (1,785) 55,864 60,316 (1,920) 58,396

Note 14 Changes in organization

Sale of 56 branches in Wealth Management Americas

As disclosed in UBS's second quarter 2009 report, UBS en-
tered into an agreement to sell 56 branches in Wealth Man-
agement Americas to Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incor-
porated. The sale was completed in four separate closings
in the second half of 2009. In fourth quarter 2009, the final
15 branches were sold, resulting in no material impact on
UBS’s income statement.

Restructuring

In 2009, UBS incurred restructuring charges of CHF 791 mil-
lion, including CHF 491 million in Personnel expenses, mainly
for severance payments, CHF 256 million in General and ad-
ministrative expenses, primarily for real-estate related costs,
and CHF 45 million of depreciation and impairment losses on
property and equipment. These restructuring charges were
incurred for the most part in second quarter 2009 with re-
structuring charges of CHF 582 million, comprising CHF 320
million in Personnel expenses, CHF 230 million in General
and administrative expenses and CHF 32 million of deprecia-
tion and impairment losses on property and equipment.

Note 15 Provisions

Sale of UBS’s India Service Centre

On 30 December 2009, UBS completed the sale of its India
Service Centre (ISC) to Cognizant Technology Solutions for a
sale consideration of USD 82 million, which was paid in cash
at closing.

The net impact of the transaction on UBS’s profit before
tax was a gain of CHF 36 million in fourth quarter 2009, rec-
ognized in Other income. In addition the ISC contributed a
pre-tax profit of CHF 4 million for fourth quarter 2009.

Sale of investment in New York office building
(Post-balance sheet event)

In January 2010, UBS closed the sale of its investments in
several associated entities owning office space in New York.
A significant portion of the office space is leased by UBS
until 2018. The sales price is USD 180 million with a result-
ing gain on sale of approximately USD 173 million which
will be recognized in 2010.

CHF million 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08
Operational risks including litigation 1,110 1,131 1,688
Other T 12012 ........ 13932 ........ 1039
Total 2,311 2,524 2,727

1 Excludes contingent claims and pensions.
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Note 16 Litigation

The UBS Group operates in a legal and regulatory environ-
ment that exposes it to significant litigation risks. As a result,
UBS is involved in various disputes and legal proceedings,
including litigation, arbitration, and regulatory and criminal
investigations. Such cases are subject to many uncertainties,
and their outcome is often difficult to predict, including the
impact on operations or on the financial statements, particu-
larly in the earlier stages of a case. In certain circumstances,
to avoid the expense and distraction of legal proceedings,

UBS may, based on a cost-benefit analysis, enter into a set-

tlement even though UBS denies any wrongdoing. The

Group makes provisions for cases brought against it when,

in the opinion of management after seeking legal advice, it

is probable that a liability exists, and the amount can be rea-
sonably estimated.
Certain potentially significant legal proceedings as of

31 December 2009 are described below:

a) Municipal Bonds: In November 2006, UBS and others
received subpoenas from the US Department of Justice,
Antitrust Division, and the US Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) seeking information relating to the in-
vestment of proceeds of municipal bond issuances and
associated derivative transactions. Both investigations are
ongoing, and UBS is cooperating. In addition, various
state Attorneys General have issued subpoenas seeking
similar information. In the SEC investigation, on 4 Febru-
ary 2008, UBS received a “Wells notice” advising that the
SEC staff is considering recommending that the SEC bring
a civil action against UBS AG in connection with the bid-
ding of various financial instruments associated with mu-
nicipal securities.

b) Auction Rate Securities: UBS was the subject of an SEC
investigation and state regulatory actions relating to the
marketing and sale of auction rate securities (ARSs) to
clients, and to UBS's role and participation in ARS auc-
tions and underwriting of ARSs. UBS was also named in
several putative class actions and individual civil suits and
arbitrations. The regulatory actions and investigations
and the civil proceedings followed the disruption in the
markets for these securities and related auction failures
since mid-February 2008. On 8 August 2008, UBS en-
tered into settlements in principle with the SEC, the New
York Attorney General (NYAG) and other state agencies
represented by the North American Securities Administra-
tors Association (NASAA), whereby UBS agreed to offer
to buy back ARSs from eligible customers within certain
time periods, the last of which begins on 30 June 2010,
and to pay penalties of USD 150 million (USD 75 million
to the NYAG, USD 75 million to the other states). UBS
subsequently finalized its settlement with the State of

Massachusetts, the SEC and the NYAG, and is continuing
to finalize agreements with the other state regulators.
UBS’s settlement is largely in line with similar industry reg-
ulatory settlements. The NYAG and SEC continue to in-
vestigate individuals affiliated with UBS who traded in
ARSs or who had responsibility for disclosures.

US Cross-Border: UBS AG has been the subject of a num-
ber of governmental inquiries and investigations relating
to its cross-border private banking services to US private
clients during the years 2000-2007. On 18 February
2009, UBS AG announced that it had entered into a De-
ferred Prosecution Agreement (DPA) with the US Depart-
ment of Justice Tax Division (DOJ) and the United States
Attorney’s Office for the Southern District of Florida, and
a Consent Order with the SEC relating to these investiga-
tions. As part of the settlement agreements UBS agreed
to, among other things, (i) pay a total of USD 780 million
to the United States, (ii) complete the exit of the US cross-
border business out of non-SEC registered entities, as an-
nounced in July 2008, and (iii) implement and maintain
an effective program of internal controls with respect to
compliance with its obligations under the Qualified Inter-
mediary (Ql) Agreement with the US Internal Revenue
Service (IRS), as well as a revised legal and compliance
governance structure in order to strengthen independent
legal and compliance controls. In addition, pursuant to an
order issued by the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory
Authority (FINMA), information was transferred to the
DOJ regarding accounts of certain US clients as set forth
in the DPA who, based on evidence available to UBS, ap-
peared to have committed tax fraud or the like within the
meaning of the 1996 Swiss-US Double Taxation Treaty
(Swiss-US Treaty). Pursuant to the DPA, the DOJ agreed
that any further prosecution of UBS will be deferred for a
period of at least 18 months, subject to extension under
certain circumstances such as UBS needing more time to
complete the implementation of the exit of its US cross-
border business. If UBS satisfies all of its obligations under
the DPA, the DOJ will refrain permanently from pursuing
charges against UBS relating to the investigation of its US
cross-border business. As part of the SEC resolution, the
SEC filed a Complaint against UBS in US Federal District
Court in Washington, D.C., charging UBS with acting as
an unregistered broker-dealer and investment advisor in
connection with maintaining its US cross-border business.
Pursuant to the Consent Order, UBS did not admit or
deny the allegations in the Complaint, and consented to
the entry of a final judgment that provides, among other
things, that: (i) UBS will pay USD 200 million to the SEC
(this amount is included in, and not in addition to, the
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USD 780 million UBS is paying to the United States as
described above); and (i) UBS will complete its exit of the
US cross-border business and will be permanently en-
joined from violating the SEC registration requirements
by providing broker-dealer or investment advisory services
to US persons through UBS entities not registered with
the SEC. The District Court in Washington, D.C., entered
the final judgment on 19 March 2009.

Also on 18 February 2009, FINMA published the
results of an investigation conducted by the Swiss Federal
Banking Commission (SFBC). The SFBC concluded, among
other things, that UBS violated the requirements for prop-
er business conduct under Swiss banking law and issued
an order barring UBS from providing services to US resi-
dent private clients out of non-SEC registered entities.
Further, the SFBC ordered UBS to enhance its control
framework around its cross-border businesses, and an-
nounced that the effectiveness of such framework would
be audited.

The agreements with the DOJ and SEC did not resolve
the “John Doe” summons which the IRS served on UBS in
July 2008. In this regard, on 19 February 2009, the Civil
Tax Division of the DOJ filed a civil petition for enforce-
ment of this summons in the US Federal District Court for
the Southern District of Florida, through which it sought
an order directing UBS to produce information located in
Switzerland regarding US clients who have maintained
accounts with UBS in Switzerland without providing a
Form W-9.

On 19 August 2009, UBS executed a settlement agree-
ment with the IRS and the DOJ, to resolve the “John
Doe” summons litigation (UBS-US Settlement Agree-
ment). At the same time, the United States and Switzer-
land entered into a separate but related agreement
(Swiss-US Agreement). Among other things, these agree-
ments provide that: (i) UBS and the IRS would promptly
file a stipulation dismissing the “John Doe” summons en-
forcement action then pending in federal court in Miami,
which occurred the same day; (i) the IRS would submit a
request for information regarding accounts of US clients
maintained at UBS in Switzerland, on the basis that such
clients appear to have committed tax fraud or the like
within the meaning of the existing Swiss-US Treaty, to the
Swiss Federal Tax Administration (SFTA), which it did on
31 August 2009; (iii) UBS would send a notice to US ac-
countholders that appear to be within the scope of the
treaty request and produce to the SFTA information on
the corresponding accounts both in accordance with a
specified schedule, which UBS has done in compliance
with an order issued by the SFTA on 1 September 2009;

and (iv) UBS and the IRS agree to amend UBS’s QI Agree-
ment and applicable QI audit guidance. The IRS will, upon
execution of the amended QI Agreement and adoption of
amended QI guidance, withdraw the previously disclosed
QI Notice of Default dated 15 May 2008 served on UBS
and thereby resolve all issues relating to the alleged
breaches thereof. The UBS-US Settlement Agreement
does not call for any monetary payment by UBS.

Because UBS has complied with all of its obligations
set forth in the UBS-US Settlement Agreement required
to be completed by 31 December 2009, the IRS has with-
drawn the summons with prejudice as to all accounts not
covered by the treaty request.

Subject to UBS’s compliance with its further notifica-
tion and information processing obligations set forth in
the UBS-US Settlement Agreement, the IRS will withdraw
the “John Doe” summons with prejudice as to the re-
maining accounts — i.e. those subject to the treaty re-
quest — no later than 24 August 2010 upon the actual or
anticipated delivery to the IRS of information relating to
accounts covered by the treaty request that does not dif-
fer significantly from the expected results. Alternatively,
the summons will be withdrawn with prejudice as to the
remaining accounts if at any time on or after 1 January
2010 the IRS has received information from any source
relating to at least 10,000 accounts of US persons main-
tained at UBS in Switzerland.

On 21 January 2010, the Swiss Federal Administrative
Court ruled that the SFTA did not have a proper legal basis
to grant the IRS request for information with respect to ac-
counts of US persons who had failed to report substantial
amounts of income over an extended period, but had not
engaged in fraudulent activity within the meaning of Swiss
law. The decision does not invalidate the UBS-US Settlement
Agreement or the Swiss-US Agreement and it does not af-
fect the treaty request to the extent it is directed at accounts
in relation to which such fraudulent activity occurred. On 27
January 2010, the Federal Council announced that it will
consult with the U.S. Government about measures to en-
sure the further implementation of the Swiss-US Settlement
Agreement, and that it will request that the U.S. Govern-
ment disclose the number of UBS clients that applied to the
Voluntary Disclosure Practice.

UBS continues, as in the past, to fulfill all of its obliga-
tions under the Settlements, including, among other
things, the exit of the US cross-border business out of
non-SEC registered entities and the providing of relevant
account information to the SFTA under the treaty process.

d) Inquiries Regarding Non-US Cross-Border Businesses: Fol-

lowing the disclosure of the US cross-border matter and
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the settlements with the DOJ and the SEC, tax and regu-
latory authorities in a number of countries have request-
ed information relating to the cross-border wealth man-
agement services provided by UBS and other financial
institutions. In particular, the revenue services of Canada,
the UK and Australia have served requests upon, or made
inquiries of, UBS and other Swiss and non-Swiss financial
institutions providing cross-border wealth management
services for information relating to such services that is
located in their respective jurisdictions. UBS is cooperat-
ing with these requests strictly within the limits of finan-
cial privacy obligations under Swiss and other applicable
laws. It is premature to speculate on the outcome of any
such inquiries.

Matters Related to the Credit Crisis: UBS is responding to
a number of governmental inquiries and investigations,
and is involved in a number of litigations, arbitrations and
disputes, related to the credit crisis and in particular mort-
gage-related securities and other structured transactions
and derivatives. These matters concern, among other
things, UBS’s valuations, accounting classifications, dis-
closures, writedowns, and contractual obligations, as well
as its role as underwriter in securities offerings for other
issuers. In particular, UBS has communicated with and has
responded to inquiries by FINMA, its home country con-
solidated regulator, as well as the SEC, the Financial In-
dustry Regulatory Authority and the United States Attor-
ney's Office for the Eastern District of New York, regarding
some of these issues and others, including the role of in-
ternal control units, governance and processes around
risk control and valuation of mortgage-related instru-
ments, compliance with public disclosure rules, and the
business rationales for the launching and the reintegra-
tion of Dillon Read Capital Management. FINMA conclud-
ed its investigation in October 2008.

Claims Related to UBS Disclosure: A putative consolidated
class action has been filed against UBS and a number of
current and former directors and senior officers in the
Southern District of New York alleging securities fraud in
connection with the firm’s disclosures relating to its losses
in the subprime mortgage markets, its losses and posi-
tions in auction rate securities, and its US cross-border
business. Defendants have moved to dismiss the com-
plaint for lack of jurisdiction and for failure to state a
claim. UBS and a number of senior officers and directors
have also been sued in a putative consolidated class ac-
tion brought on behalf of holders of UBS Employee Re-
tirement Income Security Act (ERISA) retirement plans in
which there were purchases of UBS stock. UBS has moved
to dismiss the ERISA complaint for failure to state a claim.

g) Madoff: In relation to the Madoff investment fraud, UBS,

UBS (Luxembourg) SA and certain other UBS subsidi-
aries have been subject to inquiries by a number of regula-
tors, including FINMA and the Luxembourg Commission
de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (CSSF). Those inqui-
ries concerned two third party funds established under
Luxembourg law substantially all assets of which were
with Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC (BMIS),
as well as certain funds established under offshore juris-
dictions with either direct or indirect exposure to BMIS.
These funds now face severe losses. The last reported net
asset value of the two Luxembourg funds before revela-
tion of the Madoff scheme was approximately USD 1.7
billion in the aggregate. The documentation establishing
both funds identifies UBS entities in various roles includ-
ing custodian, administrator, manager, distributor and
promoter, and indicates that UBS employees serve as
board members. On 25 February 2009, the CSSF issued
a communiqué with respect to the larger of the two
funds, stating that UBS (Luxembourg) SA had failed to
comply with its due diligence responsibilities as custodian
bank. The CSSF ordered UBS (Luxembourg) SA to review
its infrastructure and procedures relating to its superviso-
ry obligations as custodian bank, but did not order it to
compensate investors. On 25 May 2009, UBS (Luxem-
bourg) SA submitted a comprehensive final report to the
CSSF, which resulted in the CSSF publishing a new com-
muniqué saying that UBS (Luxembourg) SA has provided
evidence demonstrating that it has the infrastructure and
internal organization in place in accordance with profes-
sional standards applicable to custodian banks in Luxem-
bourg. In addition, on 17 December 2009, a claim in the
amount of EUR 828 million was filed on behalf of the
larger of the two Luxembourg funds by the liquidators of
that fund against 14 defendants, including UBS entities
and individuals, Access Management Luxembourg SA,
Ernst & Young and the CSSF. A large number of alleged
beneficiaries have filed claims against UBS entities (and
non-UBS entities) for purported losses relating to the
Madoff scheme. Further, certain clients of UBS Sauerborn
(the KeyClient segment of UBS Deutschland AG) are ex-
posed to Madoff-managed positions through third party-
funds and funds administered by UBS Sauerborn.

h) City of Milan Transactions: In January 2009, the City of

Milan filed civil proceedings against UBS Limited, UBS Ita-
lia SIM Spa and three other international banks in relation
to a 2005 bond issue and associated derivatives transac-
tions entered into with the City of Milan between 2005
and 2007. The claim is to recover alleged damages in an
amount which will compensate for terms of the related
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Note 16 Litigation (continued)

derivatives which the City claims to be objectionable. In
the alternative, the City seeks to recover alleged hidden
profits alleged to have been made by the banks in the
amount of EUR 88 million (of which UBS Limited is al-
leged to have received EUR 16 million) together with fur-
ther damages of not less than EUR 150 million. The claims
are made against all of the banks on a joint and several
basis. UBS is vigorously defending the claim. In addition,
a criminal investigation by a Prosecutor in Milan has been
ongoing in relation to the same transactions. In Novem-
ber 2009, the Prosecutor filed a request for committal to

Note 17 Goodwill impairment

trial of two current UBS employees and one former UBS
employee, together with employees from other banking
institutions. The request alleges that the banks’ employ-
ees engaged in criminal conduct in order to allow the
banks to earn allegedly concealed profits on the June
2005 bond issue and related derivative transactions. The
Prosecutor also requested committal to trial of UBS Lim-
ited and the other banks in relation to the administrative
charge of failing to have in place a business organization
model to prevent crime. Preliminary court hearings are
taking place in late January and February 2010.

Introduction

As at 31 December 2009, the following four segments car-
ried goodwill: Wealth Management & Swiss Bank, Wealth
Management Americas, Global Asset Management and the
Investment Bank. For the purpose of testing goodwill for im-
pairment, UBS considers each of these segments as a sepa-
rate cash-generating unit, and determines the recoverable
amount of a segment on the basis of value in use. On the
basis of the impairment-testing methodology described be-
low, UBS concluded that the goodwill allocated to all its seg-
ments remains recoverable.

Methodology

The recoverable amount is determined using a proprietary
model based on discounted cash flows, which has been
adapted to give effect to the special features of the banking
business and its regulatory environment. The recoverable
amount is determined by estimating streams of earnings
available to shareholders in the next five years, discounted to
their present values. During the fourth quarter, the discount
rates used to calculate the present values were slightly re-
duced to reflect the improved capital basis and the realized
de-risking of the balance sheet. The annual financial state-
ments 2009, which will be published on 17 March 2010, will
include details about the discount rates applied. The termi-
nal value reflecting all periods beyond the fifth year is calcu-
lated on the basis of the forecast of fifth-year profit, the cost
of equity and the long-term growth rate. The recoverable
amount of a segment is the sum of discounted earnings
available to shareholders from the first five years and the
terminal value.

The carrying amount for each segment is determined by
a roll-forward of historic carrying amounts based on the eg-
uity attributed to UBS shareholders, as full balance sheets
are not available for the segments. For each segment the
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beginning-of-the-period balance of equity is rolled forward
by accounting for the items that affect a segment’s carrying
amount, e.qg. allocation of transactions with shareholders at
Group level, to arrive at the end-of-the-period balance.

Investment Bank/Wealth Management Americas

On 31 December 2009, the reassessment of the goodwill of
the Investment Bank and Wealth Management Americas
continued to be a key focus. Goodwill allocated to the In-
vestment Bank and Wealth Management Americas amount-
ed to CHF 3.3 billion and CHF 3.7 billion as of 31 December
2009, unchanged from 30 September 2009.

In its review of the goodwill balances as at the end of
fourth quarter 2009, UBS considered the performance out-
look of its Investment Bank and Wealth Management Amer-
icas business divisions and the underlying business opera-
tions to resolve whether the recoverable amount for this unit
covers its carrying amount, based on the methodology de-
scribed above. On this basis, UBS concluded that goodwill
allocated to the Investment Bank and Wealth Management
Americas remained recoverable on 31 December 2009. The
conclusion was reached based on the updated forecast re-
sults and the underlying assumption that the economic envi-
ronment will gradually improve over the next three years and
reach an average growth level thereafter. However, if the
conditions in the financial markets and banking industry fur-
ther deteriorate and turn out to be worse than anticipated in
UBS's performance forecasts, the goodwill carried in the In-
vestment Bank and Wealth Management Americas business
divisions might need to be impaired in future quarters.

Recognition of any impairment of goodwill would reduce
IFRS equity attributable to UBS shareholders and net profit
but it would not impact the cash flows, BIS tier 1 capital, BIS
total capital, and capital ratios of the UBS Group, as goodwill
is required to be deducted from capital under the Basel Il
capital framework.



Note 18 Currency translation rates

The following table shows the principal rates used to translate the financial information of foreign entities into Swiss francs:

Spot rate Average rate Average rate

As of For the quarter ended Year ended
31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 31.12.09 30.9.09 31.12.08 31.12.09 31.12.08
1USD 1.04 1.04 1.07 1.02 1.06 1.15 1.08 1.06
TR cae e e Cee e S
1GBP .............................................................. 167166156 ......... 167180173 ......... 170196
GOy R P S e v 0o
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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements | This report contains statements that constitute “forward-looking statements”, including but not limited to manage-
ment's outlook for UBS's financial performance and statements relating to the anticipated effect of transactions and strategic initiatives on UBS's business and future development. While these
forward-looking statements represent UBS's judgments and expectations concerning the matters described, a number of risks, uncertainties and other important factors could cause actual de-
velopments and results to differ materially from UBS's expectations. These factors include, but are not limited to: (1) future developments in the markets in which UBS operates or to which it is
exposed, including movements in securities markets, credit spreads, currency exchange rates and interest rates; (2) the effect of the current economic environment or other developments on the
financial position or creditworthiness of UBS's customers and counterparties; (3) changes in the availability of capital and funding, including any changes in UBS's credit spreads and ratings; (4)
the consequences of the recent Swiss court decision relating to the provision of certain UBS client data to the US Internal Revenue Service, including possible effects on UBS's 2009 settlements
with US authorities and on its businesses; (5) the outcome and possible consequences of pending or future actions or inquiries concerning UBS's cross-border banking business by tax or regula-
tory authorities in various other jurisdictions; (6) the degree to which UBS is successful in effecting organizational changes and implementing strategic plans, and whether those changes and
plans will have the effects intended; (7) UBS's ability to retain and attract the employees that are necessary to generate revenues and to manage, support and control its businesses; (8) possible
political, legal and regulatory developments, including the effect of more stringent capital and liquidity requirements, constraints on remuneration and the imposition of additional legal or
regulatory constraints on UBS's activities; (9) changes in accounting standards or policies, and accounting determinations affecting the recognition of gain or loss, the valuation of goodwill and
other matters; (10) limitations on the effectiveness of UBS's internal processes for risk management, risk control, measurement and modeling, and of financial models generally; (11) changes in
the size, capabilities and effectiveness of UBS's competitors; (12) the occurrence of operational failures, such as fraud, unauthorized trading and systems failures, either within UBS or within a
counterparty; and (13) technological developments. In addition, actual results could depend on other factors that we have previously indicated could adversely affect our business and financial
performance which are contained in our past and future filings and reports, including those filed with the SEC. More detailed information about those factors is set forth in documents furnished
by UBS and filings made by UBS with the SEC, including UBS's restated Annual Report on Form 20-F /A for the year ended 31 December 2008. UBS is not under any obligation to (and ex-
pressly disclaims any obligation to) update or alter its forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.

Rounding | Numbers presented throughout this report may not add up precisely to the totals provided in the tables and text. Percentages and percent changes are calculated based on
rounded figures displayed in the tables and text and may not precisely reflect the percentages and percent changes that would be derived based on figures that are not rounded.

Imprint | Publisher: UBS AG, P.O. Box, CH-8098 Zurich, Switzerland; P.O. Box, CH-4002 Basel, Switzerland | www.ubs.com | Language: English | SAP-No. 80834E-1001

© UBS 2010. The key symbol and UBS are among the registered and unregistered trademarks of UBS. All rights reserved
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Annual Report 2009

Letter to shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

At our Annual General Meeting in April 2009, we laid out
our priorities for the bank: strengthening our capital base,
reducing risk and costs and returning UBS to profitability. By
the end of 2009 we delivered on each of these objectives
and, importantly, we reported a net profit in the fourth quar-
ter. In November 2009, we set out a clear strategic direction
and redefined what UBS stands for. The achievements of
2009 and our renewed strategic focus have created a firm
basis on which to build a stronger, more profitable UBS and
to regain your trust.

The net loss attributable to UBS shareholders for 2009
was CHF 2.7 billion, a considerable reduction from the CHF
21.3 billion loss recorded in the prior year. This improvement
was due to much lower losses on residual risk positions in
the Investment Bank and reduced operating expenses for
the Group. The result for 2009 included a number of signifi-
cant items, namely an own credit loss of CHF 2.0 billion
which occurred as a result of the markets’ perception of our
improved creditworthiness, charges relating to the sale of
UBS Pactual of CHF 1.4 billion, restructuring charges of CHF
0.8 billion, and a CHF 0.3 billion gain on the mandatory con-
vertible notes converted in August 2009. Excluding these
significant items, the underlying pre-tax result for the year
was a profit of CHF 1.4 billion. The Group's net profit attrib-
utable to shareholders for the fourth quarter was CHF 1.2
billion, including a positive contribution from each of our
business divisions.

The global economy experienced one of its most difficult
years in 2009, with the financial crisis evolving into one of
the worst post-war recessions. Governments and central
banks took further action to stabilize markets and stimulate
the economy, helping to restore investor confidence world-
wide. As the economic outlook gradually improved, stock
prices began to recover, starting at the end of the first quar-
ter of 2009 and continuing into the second half of 2009.

At the end of 2009 our invested asset base was CHF
2,233 billion, broadly in line with the figure for year-
end 2008. This result reflects the strong investment perfor-
mance we delivered to our clients across our three asset
gathering business divisions, which more than offset unac-
ceptably high outflows. However, the Group’s average invest-
ed asset base for the year was down significantly, and this
was the primary driver of reduced profits in these businesses.
In Wealth Management & Swiss Bank, average invested as-
sets were 20% below the 2008 average and together with

interest margin pressure and lower client activity, led to a
25% decline in revenues. Although this was partly offset by
over CHF 1.5 billion of cost reductions, profits for 2009 fell by
35% to CHF 3.9 billion compared with 2008. Global Asset
Management reported a profit of CHF 438 million in 2009,
67% lower than in 2008 due to lower revenues on a lower
average invested asset base and a CHF 191 million net good-
will impairment charge associated with the sale of UBS Pac-
tual. Wealth Management Americas revenues fell 12% in the
year, compared with an 11% decline in average invested as-
sets. The pre-tax profit for 2009 was CHF 32 million.

In our Investment Bank, the pre-tax result for 2009 was a
loss of CHF 6.1 billion compared with a pre-tax loss of CHF
34.3 billion for 2008. The improvement reflects a significant
reduction in losses on residual risk positions.

During 2009, we laid out the steps necessary to rebuild
the bank, and reached a number of important milestones
on the bank’s road to recovery. In April, we set headcount
and cost reduction targets for 2010. By the end of 2009, we
had largely achieved these targets. Headcount was reduced
by 12,500 to reach our 65,000 target, and fixed costs were
reduced by over CHF 3 billion compared with the prior year.
We continued to reduce our risks and balance sheet, and by
the end of 2009 both were more than 30% lower than the
year before. In June, we further strengthened our capital
base through the issuance and placement of CHF 293 mil-
lion shares from authorized capital. Combined with lower
risk weighted assets, this resulted in a BIS tier 1 ratio of
15.4% at the end of 2009 compared with 11.0% one year
earlier. Our FINMA leverage ratio also improved to 3.9%
from 2.5% one year ago. In the third quarter, we reached
two significant milestones: The Swiss government exited its
investment in UBS with a profit of CHF 1.2 billion; and we
agreed to a settlement with the US tax authorities in relation
to the John Doe summons.

During the fourth quarter we set a clear strategic
direction to rebuild the firm. At our Investor Day in
November, we outlined our new strategy and the targets
we have established for ourselves. Our goals are to strength-
en our position as a leading global wealth management
business, to be a leading client-focused investment bank
and to be economically profitable in every segment, market
and business in which we operate. We aim to improve our
operating performance substantially, building toward our
medium-term target of CHF 15 billion of annual profit be-
fore tax.
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Our efforts to reposition the firm are taking place
alongside ongoing regulatory changes. Proposed chang-
es relating to capital adequacy and liquidity requirements,
efforts to mitigate the “too big to fail” risk, financial prod-
ucts regulation, compensation guidelines, or the US “Volck-
er” proposals may have profound consequences for the in-
dustry as a whole. In preparation for dealing with a future
financial crisis, relevant financial authorities will meet and
share information to ensure that adequate contingency
plans have been put into place to prevent serious domestic
or international financial instability that would have an ad-
verse impact on the real economy. We will maintain flexibil-
ity in our business model to adjust to future regulatory
change.

We are continuing to meet our obligations under the
settlement with the US Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
relating to the John Doe summons proceeding. Based upon
our compliance with the terms of the settlement, the IRS has
withdrawn the summons with respect to all accounts other
than the approximately 4,450 accounts for which the IRS
requested information under the US/Swiss tax treaty. The
recent decision by the Swiss Federal Administrative Court,
under which certain account information cannot be provid-
ed to the IRS, is a matter to be resolved by the Swiss and US
Governments as contemplated by the terms of the settle-
ment. We will continue to comply fully with our obligations,
including providing information to the Swiss Federal Tax Ad-
ministration and completing the exit of the US cross-border

business out of non-SEC registered entities. Further, we con-
tinue to recommend to our current and former US clients, to
the extent applicable to their circumstances, the disclosure
of their offshore assets to the IRS.

Outlook - In 2010, we expect to see the full effects of the
progress we have made in improving operating efficiency,
reducing risk and rebuilding and re-focusing our businesses.
We are confident the steps we are taking to reduce client
outflows in our wealth and asset management business divi-
sions will be effective, but in the immediate future we still
expect to report net outflows with some pressure on mar-
gins. We expect that the Investment Bank’s performance for
the year as a whole will improve, in part because its residual
risk positions will have a much reduced effect on results. Our
Group results are heavily dependent on market vitality, and
more favorable market conditions in January and February
2010 have benefited most of our businesses.

15 March 2010

UBS
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Kaspar Villiger Oswald J. Grlbel
Chairman of the BoD

Group Chief Executive Officer



UBS reporting at a glance

Annual publications

Annual report (SAP no. 80531)

Published in both German and English, this single volume

report provides a description of:

— UBS’s strategy, performance and responsibility

— the strategy and performance of the business divisions
and the Corporate Center

— risk and treasury management

— corporate governance and executive compensation

— financial information, including the financial statements

Review (SAP no. 80530)

The booklet contains key information on UBS's strategy
and financials. It is published in English, German, French and
[talian.

Compensation Report (SAP no. 82307)

Compensation for senior management and the Board of
Directors (executive and non-executive members) is dis-
cussed here. It is published in English and German.

Quarterly publications

Letter to shareholders

The letter provides a quarterly update from executive manage-
ment on our strategy and performance. The letter is published
in English, German, French and Italian.

Financial report (SAP no. 80834)

This report provides a detailed description of our strategy
and performance for the respective quarter. It is published in
English.

How to order reports

These reports are available in PDF format on the internet
at www.ubs.com/investors/topics in the Financial informa-
tion section. Printed copies can be ordered from the same
website by accessing the order/subscribe panel on the left-
hand side of the screen. Alternatively, they can be ordered
by quoting the SAP number and the language prefer-
ence where applicable, from UBS AG, Information Center,
P.O. Box, CH-8098 Zurich, Switzerland.
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Other sources of information

Website

The “Analysts & Investors” section at www.ubs.com/inves-
tors provides the following information on UBS: financial in-
formation (including SEC results related filings); corporate
information; UBS share price charts and data and dividend
information; the UBS event calendar and dividend informa-
tion; and the latest presentations by management for inves-
tors and financial analysts. Information on the internet is
available in English and German, with some sections in
French and Italian.

Result presentations

Our quarterly results presentations are webcast live. A play-
back of the most recent presentation is downloadable at
www.ubs.com/presentations.

Messaging service/ UBS news alert

On the www.ubs.com/newsalerts website, it is possible to
subscribe to receive news alerts about UBS via SMS or e-mail.
Messages are sent in English, German, French or Italian and it
is possible to state theme preferences for the alerts received.

Form 20-F and other submissions to the US Securities
and Exchange Commission

We file periodic reports and submit other information about
UBS to the US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).
Principal among these filings is the annual report on Form
20-F, filed pursuant to the US Securities Exchange Act of
1934.

The filing of Form 20-F is structured as a “wrap-around”
document. Most sections of the filing can be satisfied by
referring to parts of the annual report. However, there is a
small amount of additional information in Form 20-F which
is not presented elsewhere, and is particularly targeted at
readers in the US. Readers are encouraged to refer to this
additional disclosure.

Any document that we file with the SEC is available to
read and copy on the SEC’s website, www.sec.goy, or at the
SEC’s public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Room
1580, Washington, DC, 20549. Please call the SEC by dialing
1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of its
public reference room. Much of this additional information may
also be found on the UBS website at www.ubs.com/investors,
and copies of documents filed with the SEC may be obtained
from our Investor Relations team at www.ubs.com/investors.

Corporate information

The legal and commercial name of
the company is UBS AG. The com-
pany was formed on 29 June 1998,
when Union Bank of Switzerland
(founded 1862) and Swiss Bank
Corporation (founded 1872) merged
to form UBS.

UBS AG is incorporated and domi-
ciled in Switzerland and operates

under Swiss Company Law and Swiss
Federal Banking Law as an Aktien-
gesellschaft, a corporation that has
issued shares of common stock to
investors.

The addresses and telephone numbers
of our two registered offices are:
Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8001 Zurich,
Switzerland, phone +41-44-234 11 11;

and Aeschenvorstadt 1,

CH-4051 Basel, Switzerland,

phone +41-61-288 50 50.

UBS AG shares are currently listed
on the SIX Swiss Exchange, the
New York Stock Exchange and the
Tokyo Stock Exchange (TSE). We
expect to de-list our shares from the
TSE in the near future.




Contacts

Switchboards

For all general queries. Zurich +41-44-234 1111
tondon L #M207S680000
New York +1-212-821 3000
HongKong ........................ oo e

Investor Relations

UBS’s Investor Relations team supports Hotline UBS AG

!nstltutlonal, professpnal gnd rgtall New York Investor Relations

investors from our offices in Zurich < cee- e TSRO R
and New York. Fax(zurich) L rAAa23asars POBOX
www.ubs.com/investors CH-8098 Zurich, Switzerland

Media Relations

UBS's Media Relations team supports Zurich +41-44-234 8500 mediarelations@ubs.com

global media and journalists from London +44-20-7567 4714 ubs-media-relations@ubs.com

offices in Zurich, London, New York — omeee oo L L SRR
and Hong Kong. NewYork +1-212-8825857 ] mediarelations-ny@ubs.com
www.ubs.com/media Hong Kong +852-2971 8200 sh-mediarelations-ap@ubs.com

Shareholder Services

UBS Shareholder Services, a unit of the  Hotline +41-442356202 ] UBSAG
Company Secretary, s responsible for Fax +41-44-235 3154 Shareholder Services

the registration of the g|0ba| reg|5tered ........................................................................................................................
shares. F.0. Box

US Transfer Agent

For all global registered share-related Calls from the US +866-541 9689 BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
queriesinthe US. e S S TOYET DR SR SEDL TEIE TR

WWW.MelloninVestor.COm e ST T







Strategy, performance and responsibility

Information assured according to the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)

Content of the sections “Our employees” and “Corporate responsibility” has been assured by SGS Société Générale de
Surveillance SA (SGS) using the Global Reporting Initiative Sustainability Reporting Guidelines, as evidenced in the SGS
Assurance Statement on page 69. The scope of the assurance also includes text and data on the website of UBS. Both the
relevant texts in the 2009 annual report and on the website are referenced in the GRI index published on www.ubs.com/gri.




Strategy and performance

— UBS is a client-focused financial services firm that offers a strong combina-
tion of wealth management, asset management and investment banking
services on a global and regional basis.

— We aim to generate sustainable earnings, create value for our shareholders
and be economically profitable in every segment, market and business in
which we operate.

UBS key figures

As of or for the year ended
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.09 31.12.08 31.12.07

Group results

Operating income 22,601

Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders
Diluted earnings per share (CHF)' (0.75)

Key performance indicators, balance sheet and capital management?

Performance

Return on equity (RoE) (%)

Return on assets, gross (%)

Growth

o pro & grovvth R R ARt e
e money(CHF T (.1 ¥ 3) ............. Gt e
Efficiency

e e G e

Capital strength

1 ratio (%)°

FINMA leverage ratio (%)° 3.93 2.45

Balance sheet and capital management

e 1340538 ........... : 01481 G : 2 74891 ..
Equity attributable to UBS shareholders s 41,013 32531 36,875
B ratlo(%)5 .................................................................................................... L A
o nskwelghted U 206525 et 302273 ......................
s capltal5 .................................................................................................. 31798 .............. 33154 ......................
Additional information

Invested assets (CHF billion) 2,233 2,174 3,189
Personnel (full-time equivalents) 65233 77,783 83,560
Market capitalization® LYA DL 43,519 108,654
Long-term ratings

FltchLondon .......................................................................................................... D e
i odys RS NESRURUEIE HEERUBUEIE o
Standard&PoorsNewYork ............................................................................................ R SRR e

1 Refer to “Note 8 Earnings per share (EPS) and shares outstanding” in the “Financial information” section of this report. 2 For the definitions of our key performance indicators refer to the “Measure-
ment and analysis performance” section of this report. 3 Not meaningful if either the current period or the comparison period is a loss period. 4 Excludes interest and dividend income. 5 Refer to
the “Capital management” section of this report. 6 Refer to the “UBS shares in 2009" section of this report.



Our strategqic priorities

We are concentrating on:

— further strengthening our position as a leading client-
focused bank for high net worth and ultra high net
worth clients around the world;

— continuing to be a leading firm across all client segments
in Switzerland; and

— being a top tier bank in growth regions where we choose
to operate.

Re-focusing the business portfolio

We will further integrate our wealth management, asset
management and investment banking businesses to generate
more value, reflecting our commitment to comprehensively
serve our clients across all segments. The Investment Bank
will be more client focused building on its strong, less capital
intensive flow and fee businesses. We will continue to build
our onshore operations in our wealth management business,
and continue to further grow our ultra high net worth
business. Our managers within Global Asset Management are
concentrating on driving a sustained improvement in
investment performance and increasing overall efficiency.

Transforming the way we operate

Our transformation is geared towards exercising the full
potential of our strengths based on three strategic guide-
lines: reputation, integration and execution.

Our reputation is our most valuable asset and is ultimately
defined by the actions and decisions we make every

day. To restore and safeguard our reputation, we have
introduced more disciplined and effective governance
processes.

Further integration is a key factor in delivering on our
financial targets, serving our clients in a comprehensive
manner, and driving efficiencies across our businesses. This
will be achieved through a series of measures, including
new management processes, upgrading client coverage
and enhancing structures and processes for further cost and
capital efficiency.

We are committed to execution at the highest standards,
ensuring consistent high-quality delivery, and to building
a performance-oriented culture that will help to retain,
develop and attract the best talent at all levels.

Measures taken in 2009

In addition to stabilizing our financial condition, we have
already undertaken several adjustments to governance and
structures during the last few months to initiate and drive
our transformation.

Establishment of Investment Products & Services

On 21 January 2010, we announced the establishment of the
new Investment Products & Services (IPS) unit. IPS brings
together product specialists from various business divisions
involved in product development, coverage/sales support and
execution for Wealth Management & Swiss Bank clients under
one roof.

Formation of UBS Switzerland

We are the leading bank for retail and corporate clients and
a leading asset management business in Switzerland. In
2009, we have further adjusted the governance structure to
include a new executive committee: UBS Switzerland. The
integrated management team of UBS Switzerland comprises
all businesses active in Switzerland including retail, wealth
management, corporate and institutional, investment
banking and the asset management business.

Corporate Center

In 2009, we integrated our Group-wide shared service and
control functions into the Corporate Center. Our goal is

to improve effectiveness and efficiency on a sustainable
basis, provide simple service delivery models and strengthen
cost management by creating global and Group-wide
cost-cutting measures. These shared services are overseen by
the Group Chief Operating Officer. In parallel, the control
functions were centralized under the Group Chief Financial
Officer, Group Chief Risk Officer and Group General
Counsel. This new centralized organizational structure
provides a platform from which we can increase efficiency
and enhance shareholder value.

Risk management and control

Risk reduction remained a priority in 2009. As a result of our
risk reduction initiatives, we ended the year with risk
exposures commensurate with our risk capacity, although
legacy risks remain significant and are targeted for contin-
ued reduction. Effective risk management and control are
essential to our success and we have made further progress
in implementing the risk renewal program we initiated in
2008. In addition, the implementation of the settlement
agreement relating to the cross-border investigation remains
a focus of management attention.
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Strategy and structure

UBS is a client-focused financial services firm that offers a strong combination of wealth management, asset
management and investment banking services on a global and regional basis. By delivering a full range of
advice, products and services to our private, corporate and institutional clients, we aim to generate sustainable
earnings, create value for our shareholders and be economically profitable in every segment, market and

business in which we operate.

UBS business model and aspiration

UBS AG is the parent company of the UBS Group (Group).

The operational structure of the Group comprises the Cor-

porate Center and four business divisions: Wealth Manage-

ment & Swiss Bank, Wealth Management Americas, Global

Asset Management and the Investment Bank.

In aspiring to be a leading client-focused bank, we are
concentrating on:

— further strengthening our position as a leading bank for
high net worth and ultra high net worth clients around
the world;

— continuing to be a leading firm across all client segments
in Switzerland; and

— being a top tier bank in growth regions where we choose
to operate.

We aim to have a leading investment bank with a client-
centric business model that focuses on flow and advice ac-
tivities, leveraging our traditional strengths and maximizing
the creation of shareholder value by working closely in con-
junction with our wealth management and asset manage-
ment businesses.

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank focuses on delivering
comprehensive financial services to high net worth and ultra
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high net worth individuals around the world — except to those
served by Wealth Management Americas — as well as private
and corporate clients in Switzerland. We provide clients in
over 40 countries, including Switzerland, with financial ad-
vice, products and tools to fit their individual needs. UBS has
a leading position across all client segments in Switzerland.

Wealth Management Americas

Wealth Management Americas provides advice-based relation-
ships through financial advisors who deliver a fully integrated
set of products and services specifically designed to address
the needs of ultra high net worth, high net worth and core af-
fluent individuals and families. It includes the former Wealth
Management US business unit, as well as the domestic Cana-
dian business and the international business booked in the
United States.

Global Asset Management

Global Asset Management is a large-scale asset manager
with well diversified businesses across regions, capabilities
and distribution channels. It offers investment capabilities
and investment styles across all major traditional and alter-
native asset classes. These include equities, fixed income,
currency, hedge fund, real estate, infrastructure and private
equity investment capabilities that can also be combined in
multi-asset strategies.



Investment Bank

The Investment Bank provides securities and other financial
products and research in equities, fixed income, rates, for-
eign exchange and precious metals. It also provides advisory
services and access to the world’s capital markets for corpo-
rate, institutional, intermediary and alternative asset man-
agement clients.

Corporate Center
The Corporate Center seeks to ensure that the business divi-
sions operate as a coherent and effective whole by providing
and managing support and control functions for the busi-
ness divisions and the Group in such areas as risk control,
finance, legal and compliance, funding, capital and balance
sheet management, management of foreign currencies,
communication and branding, human resources, informa-
tion technology, real estate, procurement, corporate devel-
opment and service centres.
-> Refer to the “Reporting structure” and “UBS business
divisions and Corporate Center” sections of this report for
more information on our businesses

UBS competitive profile

Our business mix reflects decades of continuous develop-
ment, organic growth and acquisitions. As a leader in the
wealth management industry in terms of total invested as-
sets, we offer a combination of asset gathering (i.e. wealth
management and asset management) and investment bank-
ing services in local and regional markets. Specifically, we are
a leading wealth manager in Switzerland, Europe, and Asia
Pacific, and also in main growth markets such as the Middle
East and Latin America. In the US, we are a leading wealth

management service provider and are the biggest foreign-
owned wealth manager. Furthermore, we have the largest
ultra high net worth business globally in terms of invested
assets. Our investment bank is a strong corporate and insti-
tutional clients business, and holds leading positions in busi-
nesses such as equities, foreign exchange and money mar-
kets and advisory, adding to the attractiveness of our overall
business portfolio.

In the Asia Pacific region, we operate leading investment
banking, wealth management and asset management busi-
nesses, with CHF 214 billion of invested assets making us the
biggest foreign asset gatherer at the end of 2009.

UBS strategy

At our Investor Day in November 2009, we outlined strategic
objectives to improve financial performance and reposition
the firm for sustainable profitability in earnings and share-
holder value. We aim to achieve this by re-focusing our busi-
ness portfolio to fully capitalize on our strengths, and by
substantially transforming the way we operate.

Re-focusing the business portfolio

We will further integrate our wealth management, asset
management and investment banking businesses to gener-
ate more value, reflecting our commitment to comprehen-
sively serve our clients across all segments. The Investment
Bank will be more client focused building on its strong, less
capital intensive flow and fee businesses (e.g. cash equities,
foreign exchange and money markets, and advisory). This
will also strengthen additional components, including the
rates and credit business in fixed income, currencies and
commodities. We will continue to build our onshore opera-
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Strategy and structure

tions in our wealth management business, and continue to
further grow our ultra high net worth business. Our manag-
ers within Global Asset Management are concentrating on
driving a sustained improvement in investment performance
and increasing overall efficiency.
- Refer to the “UBS business divisions and Corporate Center”
section of this report for more information on the business
division strategies

Transforming the way we operate

Our transformation is geared towards exercising the full po-
tential of our strengths based on three strategic guidelines:
reputation, integration and execution.

Our reputation is our most valuable asset and is ultima-
tely defined by the actions and decisions we make every
day. To restore and safeguard our reputation, we have intro-
duced more disciplined and effective governance processes.

Further integration is a key factor in delivering on our fi-
nancial targets, serving our clients in a comprehensive man-
ner, and driving efficiencies across our businesses. This will
be achieved through a series of measures, including new
management processes, upgrading client coverage and en-
hancing structures and processes for further cost and capital
efficiency.

We are committed to execution at the highest standards,
ensuring consistent high-quality delivery externally and inter-
nally, and to building a performance-oriented culture that will
help to retain, develop and attract the best talent at all levels.

Measures taken
In addition to stabilizing our financial condition, we have al-
ready undertaken several adjustments towards improved

governance and structures during the last few months that
facilitate our transformation process.
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Establishment of Investment Products & Services

On 21 January 2010, we announced the establishment of the
new Investment Products & Services (IPS) unit. IPS brings to-
gether product specialists from various business divisions in-
volved in product development, coverage/sales support and
execution for Wealth Management & Swiss Bank clients un-
der one roof. By making this change, we are making product
specialists and expertise more accessible to our clients.

Formation of UBS Switzerland

We are the leading bank for retail and corporate clients and
a leading asset management business in Switzerland. In
2009, we have further adjusted the governance structure to
include a new executive committee: UBS Switzerland. The
integrated management team of UBS Switzerland comprises
all businesses active in Switzerland including retail, wealth
management, corporate and institutional, investment bank-
ing and the asset management business. The integration of
these businesses defines our commitment to the Swiss mar-
ket and will help deliver comprehensive financial advice,
products and tools to our clients.

Corporate Center

In 2009, we integrated our Group-wide shared service and
control functions into the Corporate Center. Our goal is to
improve effectiveness and efficiency on a sustainable basis,
provide simple service delivery models and strengthen cost
management by creating global and Group-wide cost-cutting
measures. These shared services are overseen by the Group
Chief Operating Officer (COO). In parallel, the control func-
tions were centralized under the Group Chief Financial Officer
(CFO), Group Chief Risk Officer (CRO) and Group General
Counsel (GC). This new centralized organizational structure
provides a platform from which we can increase efficiency
and enhance shareholder value.

-> Refer to the “Corporate Center” section of this report for
more information



Risk management and control

Risk reduction remained a priority in 2009. As a result of our
risk reduction initiatives, we ended the year with risk expo-
sures commensurate with our risk capacity, although legacy
risks remain significant and are targeted for continued reduc-
tion. Effective risk management and control are essential to
our success and we have made further progress in imple-
menting the risk renewal program we initiated in 2008. In
addition, the implementation of the settlement agreement
relating to the cross-border investigation remains a focus of
management attention

Performance measures and management

We manage our businesses based on our new key perfor-
mance indicators (KPI) framework introduced in 2009, which
is used to monitor our risk-adjusted performance and the
delivery of returns to shareholders. Senior management
compensation was adjusted accordingly to ensure that man-
agement accountability and consistency is in alignment with
long-term economic profitability.

- Refer to the “Measurement and analysis of performance”
section of this report for more information on key
performance indicators

-> Refer to the “Compensation and shareholdings” section of
this report for more information on senior management
compensation

>
=
]
w
c
o
o
v
o
g
°
c
]
]
v
c
©
£
£
o
2
T
@
o
>
=)
]
]
©
S
-]
wv



Strategy, performance and responsibility
Strategy and structure

UBS corporate governance

As mandated by Swiss banking law, UBS operates
under a strict dual board structure comprising

the Board of Directors and the Group Executive Board.
The competencies of these two bodies and other
relevant roles have been reviewed by the Board of
Directors throughout 2009, resulting in a revised
version of the “Organization Regulations of UBS AG”
which came into effect on 1 November 2009.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (BoD) is our most senior body. Under
the leadership of the Chairman, it decides on the strategy of
the Group upon recommendation of the Group Chief Exe-
cutive Officer (CEQ), exercises the ultimate supervision over
management and is responsible for the appointment and
dismissal of all Group Executive Board (GEB) members, the
Company Secretary and the Head of Group Internal Audit
as well as supervises and sets appropriate risk management
and control principles for the firm. With the exception of its
current Chairman, Kaspar Villiger, all members of the BoD
are independent.

- Refer to the “Corporate governance” section of this report

for more information about the BoD

From left: Rainer-Marc Frey Member Risk Committee Sally Bott Chair-
man Human Resources and Compensation Committee and Member Cor-
porate Responsibility Committee Ann F. Godbehere Member Audit Com-
mittee and Corporate Responsibility Committee Bruno Gehrig Member
Governance and Nominating Committee and Human Resources and Com-
pensation Committee Michel Demaré Member Audit Committee Helmut
Panke Member Human Resources and Compensation Committee and
Risk Committee Sergio Marchionne Senior Independent Director and
Member Governance and Nominating Committee Kaspar Villiger Chair-
man of the Board of Directors, Chairman Governance and Nominating
Committee and Corporate Responsibility Committee David Sidwell
Chairman Risk Committee William G. Parrett Chairman Audit Commit-
tee Axel P. Lehmann Member Risk Committee Peter R. Voser Member
Governance and Nominating Committee
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Strategy, performance and responsibility
Strategy and structure

Group Executive Board

Management of the firm is delegated by the BoD to the GEB.
Under the leadership of the Group CEO, the GEB has exe-
cutive management responsibility for the Group and its busi-
nesses. It assumes overall responsibility for the development
of the Group and business division strategies and the imple-
mentation of approved strategies.
- Refer to the “Corporate governance” section of this report
for more information about the GEB

From left: Philip J. Lofts Group Chief Risk Officer Ulrich Kérner Group
Chief Operating Officer and CEO Corporate Center John A. Fraser
Chairman and CEO Global Asset Management Markus U. Diethelm
Group General Counsel Robert Wolf Chairman and CEO, UBS Group
Americas/President Investment Bank Alexander Wilmot-Sitwell co-CEO
Investment Bank Francesco Morra CEO UBS Switzerland, Wealth Manage-
ment & Swiss Bank Jirg Zeltner CEO Wealth Management, Wealth
Management & Swiss Bank Chi-Won Yoon Chairman and CEO Asia Pa-
cific Carsten Kengeter co-CEO Investment Bank Robert J. McCann CEO |

Officer John Cryan Group Chief Financial Officer

18



Ayqisuodsai pue a>uewlopiad ‘ABarens

alﬂm—dhm._mmh_ . ”-_...._... - Id

q




Strategy, performance and responsibility
The making of UBS

The making of UBS

The firms that have come to make up today’s UBS look back
on a long and diverse history. Both the two Swiss predeces-
sor banks and PaineWebber Group Inc. (PaineWebber) came
into being in the second half of the 19th century, while S.G.
Warburg's roots go back to 1934. But it was in the 1990s
when our current identity began to form.

In the early 1990s, the two Swiss banks that came to
form the current UBS, Swiss Bank Corporation (SBC) and
Union Bank of Switzerland, were commercial banks operat-
ing mainly out of Switzerland. The two banks shared a simi-
lar vision: to become a world leader in wealth management
and a global bulge-bracket investment bank with a strong
position in global asset management, while remaining an
important commercial and retail bank in Switzerland.

Union Bank of Switzerland, the largest and best-capital-
ized Swiss bank of its time, opted to pursue a strategy of
organic growth, or expansion by internal means. In contrast,
SBC, then the third-largest Swiss bank, decided to take
another route by starting a joint venture with O’Connor, a
leading US derivatives firm that was fully acquired by SBC
in 1992. O'Connor was noted for its young, dynamic and
innovative culture, meritocracy and team orientation. It
brought state-of-the-art risk management and derivatives
technology to SBC. In 1994, SBC acquired Brinson Partners,
one of the leading US-based institutional asset management
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firms. Both the O’Connor and Brinson transactions repre-
sented fundamental steps in the development of the firm.

The next major move was in 1995, when SBC acquired S.G.
Warburg, the British merchant bank. The deal helped fill SBC's
strategic gaps in corporate finance, brokerage and research
and, most importantly, brought with it an institutional client
franchise, which is still crucial to today’s equities business.

The 1998 merger of SBC and Union Bank of Switzerland
brought together these two leading Swiss financial institu-
tions, creating a leading global wealth manager and improv-
ing the new firm’s chances of becoming a global bulge
bracket investment bank and a leading global institutional
asset manager.

Still, in order to become a truly global player in invest-
ment banking and wealth management, UBS needed to es-
tablish a significant presence in the key US market. UBS ad-
vanced toward this objective when it acquired PaineWebber
in 2000.

Since the acquisition of PaineWebber, UBS's main priority
has been to develop and grow organically. Smaller acquisi-
tions have helped to accelerate and complement the firm’s
growth. Today, UBS has significant scale in its areas of focus,
with strong positions in large, mature markets as well as a
growing presence in emerging markets.

- Refer to www.ubs.com/history for more information
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Current market climate and industry drivers

The recent crisis and its aftermath will have enduring effects on the financial services industry.

Financial crisis and global recession

The global economy experienced one of its most difficult
years in 2009. The financial crisis originated with the sub-
prime crisis in 2007-2008, and evolved into one of the
worst recessions in the post-war era. For the first time in
many decades, the world’s gross domestic product (GDP)
deflated in real terms, as both developed and emerging
economies suffered from falling international trade vol-
umes and shrinking industrial production. The sharp con-
traction in growth of the global economy resulted in a fur-
ther correction in asset prices in the early part of the year as
global stock prices plummeted to historical lows. The crisis
spread from the financial sector to other industries, leading
to a rapid rise in the unemployment rate as businesses re-
duced their employment levels to adjust to the changes in
global demand.

The adverse macroeconomic scenarios triggered by the
financial crisis pushed governments and central banks
around the world to further step up their fiscal policy efforts
during 2009. In addition to maintaining interest rates at re-
cord lows, and further enlarging the scope of so-called “un-
conventional monetary measures” such as the purchase of
distressed assets from financial institutions, the policy focus
shifted to fiscal stimulus packages to provide support to the
goods and services sector. The increase in public expendi-
ture, coupled with a drop in tax revenues as a result of the
economic decline, led to greatly increased public deficits,
particularly in the US and Europe.

In the course of the second quarter, global growth reached
record lows, and only during the summer did signs of stabili-
zation in the global economy begin to emerge, particularly
within the industrial production sector. As the economic out-
look gradually began to improve there was a recovery in
stock prices, which started by the end of first quarter of 2009
and continued in the second half of 2009, taking the yearly
gains in the global stock indexes to more than 20%. Emerg-
ing markets’ stocks — particularly in Asia — experienced the
strongest rebound as they were leading the unfolding recov-
ery. The rebound in asset prices that occurred during the year
was not restricted to stocks but also extended to the credit
security markets. Overall, the recovery in asset prices provid-
ed private and institutional investors with very good returns
compared with the losses experienced in 2008.

As the global outlook improved, the financial services in-
dustry benefited from the recovery in asset prices. Improved
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liquidity conditions in capital markets allowed financial insti-
tutions to raise capital in order to bolster funds, reinforcing
their capital positions. However, despite the overall improve-
ment observed during the year, the financial sector remained
under pressure as the lasting effects of the financial crisis
were further exacerbated by the growing impact of the
global recession on banks’ balance sheets.

Macroeconomic perspectives

The overall economic outlook of most economists for 2010 is
cautiously optimistic, as global growth returned in the second
half of 2009 and is expected to improve throughout the year.
However, caution has been expressed as this recovery appears
“abnormal” when compared with previous economic cycles.
The economic recovery seen so far remains weak when com-
pared with previous recoveries following recessions of the
magnitude experienced in 2009. In “normal” recoveries, glo-
bal growth sharply increases following the downturn, often
surpassing the pre-crisis growth rate, and then eventually falls
back to its long-term growth rate. In the current market envi-
ronment, the return to pre-crisis growth rates appears to be
taking longer to materialize, mostly as a result of deleverag-
ing in the private and corporate sectors. Secondly, the ongo-
ing economic recovery also appears to be uneven from a geo-
graphical point of view. While emerging markets are expect-
ed to show the strongest performance, growth in advanced
economies is predicted to remain low as the household and
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corporate sectors continue to repair their balance sheets. Un-
employment rates are expected to remain high and only
begin declining later during the year, as global economic re-
covery is firmly established in advanced economies.

Industry drivers

A number of drivers are expected to have a significant im-
pact on banks’ earnings and the structure of the financial
services industry in the short- to medium-term. The most rel-
evant factors are described below.

Deleveraging

The financial services industry experienced massive delever-
aging in 2009. Banks in the US and Europe continued to
decrease their balance sheets and raise capital to reinforce
their financial position. While the deleveraging process with-
in the banking sector is likely to continue for some time, and
further capital might be raised in the future as a result of
ongoing regulatory changes, it appears that financial sector
leverage level has fallen substantially from the levels reached
just before the crisis erupted. On the other hand, delever-
aging in the overall economy has only just begun. The re-
duction in household sector debt, which has already com-
menced in some countries, has been partly offset by an
increase in government debt, leaving the overall debt level
mostly unchanged. Most of the financial crises experienced
in the last few decades have typically been followed by pro-
longed deleveraging episodes involving a substantial reduc-
tion in the debt-to-GDP ratio in the private sector, the public
sector or simultaneously in both sectors.

Most past episodes of deleveraging have had a negative
impact on growth, and lower real economy returns will neg-
atively impact the profitability of the financial services indus-
try in the next few years.

Source: Thomson Reuters

Emerging markets
Emerging markets were also impacted by the global reces-
sion in 2009. Exporters of manufactured goods were hit by
falling global trade volumes and reduced imports in ad-
vanced economies. Commodity producers and exporters
were hit by falling prices as the boom in commodity prices in
the early 2000s suddenly came to an end. Economic growth
slowed markedly, and governments intervened to support
domestic demand through public expenditures and in-
creased credit supply to state-controlled and private corpo-
rations. However, due to the better shape of household and
corporation balance sheets when compared with most ad-
vanced economies as well as the fiscal and monetary policy
stimulus, emerging markets — particularly Brazil, Asia and the
Middle East — performed relatively well during the crisis.
Thanks to solid macro fundamentals, most emerging eco-
nomies were the first to emerge from the slump in the
course of the year. This performance is expected to continue
throughout 2010, with a return to sustained growth speci-
fically in Asia and other emerging markets.

Therefore, the economic crisis over the last year has been
a driving force in the economic and geographic power shift
from advanced to emerging economies which was already
well under way before the financial crisis hit the global econ-
omy. Banks that have built a significant presence in emerg-
ing markets, and serve a wide range of institutional and pri-
vate clients in those economies, may benefit if the emerging
markets’ share of global profits for the financial services in-
dustry continues to grow.

Re-regulation of the financial services industry

International organizations and national regulators have in-
creased their focus on revising the regulatory framework of
the financial services industry as conditions within the indus-
try continue to improve and short-term governmental finan-
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cial support is gradually withdrawn. The G-20 has stipulated
broad guidelines of re-regulation which are being specified
by the Financial Stability Board, the International Monetary
Fund and the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision. As
some countries are starting to implement regulatory chang-
es, others are still debating on what is the best way forward.
For instance, the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Author-
ity (FINMA) has already introduced increased capital require-
ments and liquidity constraints for the largest Swiss banks.
While the international organizations are trying to achieve
an international level playing field, there is a growing risk
that jurisdictions will implement regulations at different
times and levels of intensity. This could lead to fragmenta-
tion of the regulatory framework and disparities of condi-
tions between countries, with a risk of national ring-fencing
tendencies.

The expected significant tightening of regulatory require-
ments pertaining to the financial services industry, whether
globally coordinated or not, will likely reduce the profitability
of certain businesses. This will eventually lead to changes in
the competitive landscape of the financial services industry.
Financial institutions and advisory businesses with low capi-
tal intensity that will be faster and more efficient in adapting
themselves to the new regulatory environment are likely to
outperform in the medium-term.

Rising taxation as public deficits soar

One of the legacies of the global crisis is higher public debt
in most of the developed world. As a result of the financial
crisis, there has been a substantial transfer of private debt to
the public sector. Higher public debts are most likely to be-
come a dominant policy issue over the medium-term as gov-
ernments will have to deal with the fiscal structural adjust-
ments required to reduce the debt. The fiscal challenges that
have emerged from the financial crisis are further aggravat-
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ed by the impact of demographic changes in public finance,
which is expected to grow in most advanced economies and
in some emerging markets.

Fiscal restructuring will likely be a long process. It may be
many years before public sector debt is brought back to pre-
crisis levels. Governments will utilize a mix of measures, in-
cluding structural reforms to pension and healthcare eligibil-
ity as well as a revision of tax rates and coverage. In the
coming years, the pre-crisis trend of falling tax rates on indi-
viduals’ income will probably reverse, reducing the dispos-
able income of individuals. If this occurs, clients can be ex-
pected to become more focused on effective tax planning in
hopes of reducing their tax burden. Banks and financial insti-
tutions capable of providing this type of expertise may be
able to retain or attract more clients.

Global capital flows and offshore centers
In the pre-crisis period, offshore centers benefited from soar-
ing cross-border capital flows as they have been the financial
platforms often used by investors for global investments. One
implication of the global crisis has been a dramatic drop in
global capital flows, as investors were more averse to taking
risks and were more domestically oriented. Financial institu-
tions reduced their exposure to foreign markets proportionally
more than to their domestic markets. In the course of 2009,
global capital flows began to recover as investors gradually
increased their risk appetite, particularly in relation to assets
located in emerging markets. However, it could take many
years for global capital flows to return to pre-crisis levels.
Offshore centers are also under increasing policy pres-
sure, as governments around the world are urging for more
transparency concerning income produced on assets held by
investors abroad. Banks with an established broad presence
in onshore markets are likely to be impacted less than other
banks relying exclusively on offshore business.



Risk factors

Certain risks, including those described below, can impact
our ability to carry out our business strategies and directly
affect our business activities, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects. Because the business of a broad-
based international financial services firm such as UBS is in-
herently exposed to risks that only become apparent with
the benefit of hindsight, risks of which we are not presently
aware could also materially affect our business activities, fi-
nancial condition, results of operations and prospects. The
sequence in which the risk factors are presented below is not
indicative of their likelihood of occurrence or the potential
magnitude of their financial consequences.

Our reputation is key to the success of our business

Our reputation has been severely damaged by our very large
losses during the financial crisis and by the US cross-border
matter. This has resulted in client attrition in different parts of
our business and has negatively affected our financial perfor-
mance. Restoring our reputation is essential to maintaining
our relationships with clients, investors, regulators and the
general public, as well as with our employees. Accordingly, it
is critical to the success of our strategic plans. Reputational
damage is difficult to reverse. The process is slow and success
can be difficult to measure. We have taken what we believe
are very important steps to restore our reputation, but it is
possible that it will take longer to repair than we expect, par-
ticularly if further events were to occur that cause additional
damage to our reputation. Any failure to restore or further
damage to our reputation could have a material adverse ef-
fect on our operational results and financial condition. Even
if our reputation is restored, we may not progress quickly
enough to achieve our medium-term goals.

Regulatory changes may adversely affect our business
and ability to execute our strategic plans

In the wake of the recent financial crisis, regulators and leg-

islators are actively considering a wide range of measures

designed to address the perceived causes of the crisis and to

limit the systemic risks posed by major financial institutions.

Potential changes include:

— significantly higher regulatory capital requirements

— changes in the capital treatment of certain capital instru-
ments issued by UBS and other banks

— changes in the calculation of risk-weighted assets

— new or significantly enhanced liquidity requirements

— requirements to maintain liquidity and capital in multiple
jurisdictions where activities are conducted

— limitations on principal trading activities
— taxes and government fees that would effectively limit
balance sheet growth
— avariety of measures constraining, taxing or imposing ad-
ditional requirements relating to compensation
— requirements to adopt structural and other changes de-
signed to make major financial institutions easier to wind
down or disassemble
— outright size limitations
Notwithstanding attempts by regulators to coordinate
their efforts, the proposals differ by jurisdiction, and en-
hanced regulation may be imposed in a manner that makes
it more difficult to manage global institutions. Swiss author-
ities have expressed concern about the systemic risks posed
by its two largest banks, particularly in relation to the size of
the Swiss economy and governmental resources. This may
lead to more stringent regulations applicable to major banks
headquartered in Switzerland in comparison with those
based elsewhere. The potential regulatory and legislative de-
velopments in Switzerland and in other jurisdictions in which
we have operations may have a material adverse effect on
our ability to execute our strategic plans, on the profitability
or viability of certain business lines globally or in particular
locations, and on our ability to compete with other financial
institutions. They could also have an impact on our legal
structure or our business model.

We are exposed to possible further reduction in client
assets in our wealth management and asset manage-
ment businesses

In 2008 and 2009, we experienced substantial net outflows
of client assets in our wealth management and asset man-
agement businesses. This resulted from a number of differ-
ent factors, including our substantial losses, the damage to
our reputation, the loss of client advisors and developments
concerning our cross-border private banking business. As
some of these factors can only be addressed over an extend-
ed period of time, we may continue to experience net out-
flows of client assets. This may adversely affect the results of
our wealth management and asset management businesses.

We hold proprietary risk positions that may be
adversely affected by conditions in the financial
markets

UBS, like many other financial market participants, was se-

verely affected by the financial crisis that began in 2007. The
deterioration of financial markets since the beginning of the
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crisis was extremely severe by historical standards, and we
recorded substantial losses on fixed income trading posi-
tions, particularly in 2008 and to a lesser extent in 2009. We
have drastically reduced our risk exposures, in part due to
transfers to a fund controlled by the SNB. We do, however,
continue to hold sizeable legacy risk positions that are ex-
posed to the general systemic and counterparty risks that
were exacerbated by the financial crisis. The illiquidity of
most of these legacy risk positions is likely to make it increas-
ingly difficult to reduce our exposures to them.

During the market crisis, we incurred large losses (realized
and mark to market) on our holdings of securities related to
the US residential mortgage market. Although our exposure
to that market was reduced dramatically in 2008 and 2009,
we remain exposed to a smaller degree to such losses, most
notably through monoline-insured positions. Monoline in-
surers have been adversely affected by their exposure to US
residential mortgage-linked products, and we have recorded
large credit valuation adjustments on our claims against
them. If the financial condition of monoline insurers or their
perceived creditworthiness deteriorates further, we would
have to record further material credit valuation adjustments
on the CDSs bought from them.

The market dislocation also affected other asset classes.
In 2008 and 2009, we recorded markdowns on other assets
carried at fair value, including auction rate securities (ARS),
leveraged finance commitments, commercial mortgages in
the US and non-US mortgage-backed and asset-backed
securities (ABSs). We have a very large inventory of ARS,
which is likely to increase as a result of our partially satisfied
commitment to repurchase client-owned ARS. We hold posi-
tions related to real estate in countries other than the US,
including a very substantial Swiss mortgage portfolio, and
we could suffer losses on these positions. In addition, further
market dislocation or continued weak financial conditions
could result in further writedowns on our assets carried at
fair value or in the impairment of assets classified as or re-
classified to loans or receivables. We are also exposed to risk
in our prime brokerage, reverse repo and lombard lending
activities, as the value or liquidity of the assets against which
we provide financing may decline rapidly.

Performance in the financial services industry depends
on the economic climate

The financial services industry prospers in conditions of eco-
nomic growth, stable geopolitical conditions, capital mar-
kets that are transparent, liquid and buoyant and positive
investor sentiment. An economic downturn, inflation or a
severe financial crisis (as seen in 2008 and to a lesser extent
in 2009) can negatively affect our revenues and ultimately
our capital base.

A market downturn can be precipitated by a number of
factors, including geopolitical events, changes in monetary
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or fiscal policy, trade imbalances, natural disasters, pandem-
ics, civil unrest, war or terrorism. Because financial markets
are global and highly interconnected, even local and region-
al events can have widespread impact well beyond the coun-
tries in which they occur. A crisis could develop, regionally or
globally, as a result of disruptions in emerging markets which
are susceptible to macroeconomic and geopolitical develop-
ments, or as a result of the failure of a major market partici-
pant. As our presence and business in emerging markets in-
creases, we become more exposed to these risks. Adverse

developments of this kind have affected our businesses in a

number of ways, and may continue to have further adverse

effects on our businesses as follows:

— a general reduction in business activity and market vol-
umes would affect fees, commissions and margins from
market-making and customer-driven transactions and ac-
tivities;

— a market downturn is likely to reduce the volume and
valuations of assets we manage on behalf of clients, re-
ducing our asset- and performance-based fees;

— reduced market liquidity limits trading and arbitrage op-
portunities and impedes our ability to manage risks, im-
pacting both trading income and performance-based
fees;

— assets we own and account for as investments or trading
positions could continue to fall in value;

— impairments and defaults on credit exposures and on
trading and investment positions could increase, and loss-
es may be exacerbated by falling collateral values; and

— if individual countries impose restrictions on cross-border
payments or other exchange or capital controls, we could
suffer losses from enforced default by counterparties, be
unable to access our own assets, or be impeded in — or
prevented from — managing our risks.

The developments mentioned above can affect the per-
formance of both our business units and of UBS as a whole.
There is also a risk that the carrying value of goodwill of a
business unit might suffer impairments and deferred tax as-
sets levels may need to be adjusted.

In addition, interest rate increases triggered by central
banks may adversely affect the economy and our business
and funding costs.

We are dependent upon our risk management and
control processes to avoid or limit potential losses in
our trading and counterparty credit businesses

Controlled risk-taking is a major part of the business of a fi-
nancial services firm. Credit is an integral part of many of our
retail, wealth management and Investment Bank activities.
This includes lending, underwriting and derivatives business-
es and positions. Changes in interest rates, equity prices, for-
eign exchange levels and other market fluctuations can ad-
versely affect our earnings. Some losses from risk-taking



activities are inevitable, but to be successful over time, we

must balance the risks we take against the returns we gener-

ate. We must therefore diligently identify, assess, manage
and control our risks, not only in normal market conditions
but also as they might develop under more extreme

("stressed”) conditions, when concentrations of exposures

can lead to severe losses.

As seen during the recent market crisis, we are not always
able to prevent serious losses arising from extreme or sudden
market events that are not anticipated by our risk measures
and systems. Value-at-Risk (VaR), a statistical measure for
market risk, is derived from historical market data, and thus
by definition could not have predicted the losses seen in the
stressed conditions in the past few years. Moreover, stress
loss and concentration controls and the dimensions in which
we aggregate risk to identify potentially highly correlated ex-
posures proved to be inadequate. Notwithstanding the steps
we have taken to strengthen our risk management and con-
trol framework, we could suffer further losses in the future
if, for example:

— we do not fully identify the risks in our portfolio, in par-
ticular risk concentrations and correlated risks;

— our assessment of the risks identified or our response to
negative trends proves to be inadequate or incorrect;

— markets move in ways that are unexpected — in terms of
their speed, direction, severity or correlation — and our
ability to manage risks in the resultant environment is
therefore affected;

— third parties to whom we have credit exposure or whose
securities we hold for our own account are severely af-
fected by events not anticipated by our models, and we
accordingly suffer defaults and impairments beyond the
level implied by our risk assessment; or

— collateral or other security provided by our counterparties
proves inadequate to cover their obligations at the time
of their default.

We also manage risk on behalf of our clients in our asset
and wealth management businesses. Our performance in
these activities could be harmed by the same factors. If cli-
ents suffer losses or the performance of their assets held
with us is not in line with relevant benchmarks against which
clients assess investment performance, we may suffer re-
duced fee income and a decline in assets under manage-
ment or withdrawal of mandates.

If we decide to support a fund or another investment that
we sponsor in our asset or wealth management business
(such as the property fund to which Wealth Management &
Swiss Bank has exposure) we might, depending on the facts
and circumstances, incur charges that could increase to ma-
terial levels.

Investment positions, such as equity holdings made as a
part of strategic initiatives and seed investments made at the
inception of funds we manage, may also be affected by mar-
ket risk factors. These investments are often not liquid and

are generally intended or required to be held beyond a nor-
mal trading horizon. They are subject to a distinct control
framework. Deteriorations in the fair value of these positions
would have a negative impact on our earnings.

Valuations of certain assets rely on models. For some
of the inputs to these models there is no observable
source

Where possible, we mark our trading book assets at their
quoted market price in an active market. In the current
environment, such price information is not available for
certain instruments and we apply valuation techniques
to measure such instruments. Valuation techniques use
“market observable inputs” where available, derived from
similar assets in similar and active markets, from recent
transaction prices for comparable items or from other
observable market data. For positions of which some or
all of the reference data are not observable or have lim-
ited observability, we use valuation models with non-
market observable inputs. There is no single market stan-
dard for valuation models in this area. Such models have
inherent limitations; different assumptions and inputs
would generate different results, and these differences
could have a significant impact on our financial results.
We regularly review and update our valuation models to
incorporate all factors that market participants would
consider in setting a price, including factoring in current
market conditions. Judgment is an important component
of this process. Changes in model inputs or in the models
themselves could have a material adverse effect on our
financial results.

Credit ratings and liquidity and funding management
are critical to our ongoing performance

Moody’s Investors Service, Fitch Ratings and Standard &
Poor’s lowered our long-term credit rating several times in
2008 and 2009. Further reductions in our credit rating could
increase our funding costs, in particular with regard to fund-
ing from wholesale unsecured sources. Some of these down-
grades have required us to make additional cash payments
or post additional collateral, and additional reductions in the
credit ratings could have similar effects. Our credit ratings
also have an impact on the performance of our businesses.
Along with our capital strength and reputation, our credit
ratings contribute to maintaining client and counterparty
confidence in us.

A substantial part of our liquidity and funding require-
ments is met using short-term unsecured funding sources,
including wholesale and retail deposits and the regular issu-
ance of money market securities. The volume of these
funding sources has generally been stable, but may change
in the future due, among other things, to general market
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disruptions. Any such change could occur quickly and
without notice. We may be required to maintain sub-
stantially higher levels of liquidity than has been our usual
practice due to possible changes in regulatory require-
ments. This could have an adverse impact on the attractive-
ness of certain lines of business, particularly in the Invest-
ment Bank, and may reduce our overall ability to generate
profits.
- Refer to the “Risk and treasury management” section of
this report for more information on our approach to
liquidity and funding management

Our capital strength is important in supporting our
client franchise

Our capital position, as measured by the BIS tier 1 and total
capital ratios, is determined by (i) risk-weighted assets
(RWAS) (balance sheet, off-balance sheet and other market
and operational risk positions, measured and risk-weighted
according to regulatory criteria) and (ii) eligible capital. Both
RWAs and eligible capital are subject to change. Eligible cap-
ital, for example, could experience a reduction resulting from
financial losses, acquired goodwill or as a result of foreign
exchange movements. RWAs, on the other hand, will be
driven by our business activities and by changes in the risk
profile of these assets. They could furthermore be subject to
a change in regulatory requirements or the interpretation
thereof. For instance, substantial market volatility, a widen-
ing of credit spreads (the major driver of our VaR), a change
in regulatory treatment of certain positions, stronger foreign
currencies, increased counterparty risk or a deterioration in
the economic environment could result in a rise in RWASs or
a change in capital requirements, thereby potentially reduc-
ing our capital ratios. We are subject to regulatory capital
requirements imposed by the Swiss Financial Market Super-
visory Authority (FINMA), under which we have higher RWA
than would be the case under BIS guidelines. Forthcoming
changes in the calculation of RWAs under FINMA require-
ments are expected to increase the level of our RWAs and
therefore have an adverse effect on our capital ratios. In ad-
dition, FINMA has introduced a minimum leverage ratio
which is being progressively implemented and will be fully
applicable in 2013. Changes by FINMA in the tier 1 and total
capital requirements or in the leverage ratio requirement,
whether pertaining to the minimum levels required for large
Swiss banks or to the calculation thereof (including changes
made to implement the proposed Basel lll standards), could
have a material adverse effect on our business and ability to
execute our strategic plans or pay dividends in the future.

Operational risks may affect our business
All of our businesses are dependent on our ability to process

a large number of complex transactions across multiple and
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diverse markets in different currencies, and to comply with
the requirements of the many different legal and regulatory
regimes. Our operational risk management and control sys-
tems and processes are designed to help ensure that the
risks associated with our activities, including those arising
from process error, failed execution, unauthorized trading,
fraud, systems failure and failure of security and physical
protection, are appropriately controlled. If our internal con-
trols fail or prove ineffective in identifying and remedying
such risks, we could suffer operational failures that might
result in material losses.

Legal claims and regulatory risks and restrictions arise
in the conduct of our business

In the ordinary course of our business, we are subject to
regulatory oversight and liability risk. We are involved in a
variety of claims, disputes, legal proceedings and govern-
ment investigations in jurisdictions where we are active.
These types of proceedings expose us to substantial mone-
tary damages and legal defense costs, injunctive relief and
criminal and civil penalties, in addition to potential regula-
tory restrictions on our businesses. The outcome of these
matters cannot be predicted and they could adversely affect
our future business. We continue to be subject to govern-
ment inquiries and investigations, and are involved in a num-
ber of litigations and disputes related to the financial crisis.
These matters concern, among other things, our valuations,
accounting classifications, disclosures, investment suitability,
writedowns, underwriting and contractual obligations, as
well as our role as an underwriter in securities offerings for
other issuers.

We have been in active dialogue with our regulators
concerning remedial actions that we are taking to address
deficiencies in our risk management and control, funding
and certain other processes and systems. We will for some
time be subject to increased scrutiny by FINMA and our
other major regulators, and accordingly will be subject to
regulatory measures that might affect the implementation of
our strategic plans.

In February 2009, we entered into a Deferred Prosecution
Agreement (DPA) with the US Department of Justice (DOJ)
and a Consent Order with the US Securities and Exchange
Commission in connection with our cross-border private
banking services provided to US private clients. In addition, a
petition for enforcement of a civil summons issued by the US
Internal Revenue Service (IRS), seeking information concern-
ing our cross-border business, including records located in
Switzerland, was filed by the civil division of the DOJ. In
August 2009, we entered into a settlement agreement with
the IRS and the DOJ. Pursuant to this agreement and a re-
lated agreement between the US and Switzerland, the sum-
mons enforcement proceeding will be dismissed if certain
requirements are satisfied. It is not yet clear what effect, if



any, the recent Swiss court decision prohibiting the provision
of certain UBS client data to the IRS may have on our 2009
settlements with US authorities and our businesses.

Tax and regulatory authorities in a number of other juris-
dictions have also requested information relating to the
cross-border wealth management services provided by UBS
and other financial institutions. These governmental actions,
and our responses to them, could adversely affect the future
profitability of our international wealth management busi-
nesses.

-> Refer to “Note 21 Provisions and litigation” in the

“Financial information” section of this report for more
information on legal proceedings in which UBS is involved

We might be unable to identify or capture revenue
or competitive opportunities, or retain and attract
qualified employees

The financial services industry is characterized by intense
competition, continuous innovation, detailed (and some-
times fragmented) regulation and ongoing consolidation.
We face competition at the level of local markets and indi-
vidual business lines, and from global financial institutions
that are comparable in their size and breadth. Barriers to
entry in individual markets are being eroded by new technol-
ogy. We expect these trends to continue and competition to
increase in the future.

Our competitive strength and market position could be
eroded if we are unable to identify market trends and devel-
opments, do not respond to them by devising and imple-
menting adequate business strategies or are unable to at-
tract or retain the qualified people needed to carry them out.
The changes recently introduced in our balance sheet man-
agement, funding framework and risk management and
control, as well as possible new or enhanced regulatory re-
guirements, may constrain the revenue contribution of cer-
tain lines of business. For example, parts of the Investment
Bank’s fixed income, currencies and commodities (FICC)
business may be affected as they require substantial funding
and are capital-intensive.

Following the losses incurred in 2008, we significantly re-
duced the variable compensation granted to our employees
for that year. This and other factors adversely affected our
ability to retain and attract key employees, which in turn
negatively affected our revenues in a number of business
lines in 2009. The amount of variable compensation granted
for 2009 was higher than in 2008, but the portion of vari-

able compensation granted in the form of deferred shares
was much higher than in the past, and the percentage of
compensation deferred was higher than that of most of our
competitors. We continue to be subject to the risk that key
employees will be attracted by competitors and decide to
leave UBS, or that we may be less successful than our com-
petitors in attracting qualified employees. This risk also arises
in connection with the increasing legislation, regulation and
regulatory pressure relating to remuneration in general and
variable compensation in particular. Although this affects
many if not all of the major banks, the constraints are likely
to differ by jurisdiction and therefore less regulated com-
petitors may tend to have an advantage.

Our global presence exposes us to risks arising
from being subject to different regulatory, legal and
tax regimes, as well as from currency fluctuation

We operate in more than 50 countries, earn income and
hold assets and liabilities in many different currencies and
are subject to many different legal, tax and regulatory re-
gimes.

Our ability to execute our global strategy depends on
obtaining and maintaining local regulatory approvals. This
includes the approval of acquisitions or other transactions
and the ability to obtain and maintain the necessary licenses
to operate in local markets. Changes in local tax laws or reg-
ulations and their enforcement may affect the ability or the
willingness of our clients to do business with the bank,
or the viability of our strategies and business model. In our
financial accounts we accrue taxes, but the final effect of
taxes on earnings is only determined after the completion of
tax audits (which generally takes a number of years) or the
expiration of statutes of limitations. In addition, changes in
tax laws, judicial interpretation of tax laws or policies and
practices of tax authorities could cause the amount of taxes
ultimately paid by UBS to differ materially from the amount
accrued.

Because we prepare our accounts in Swiss francs and a
substantial portion of our assets, liabilities, assets under
management, revenues and expenses are denominated in
other currencies, changes in foreign exchange rates, par-
ticularly between the Swiss franc and the US dollar and to a
much lesser extent between the Swiss franc and the Euro
and UK sterning (US dollar income represents the major part
of our non-Swiss-franc income), have an effect on our re-
ported income and shareholders’ equity.
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Financial performance

Our performance is reported in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by

the International Accounting Standards Board. This section provides a discussion and analysis of our results
for 2009, commenting on the underlying operational performance of the business, with a focus on continuing
operations.

UBS key figures

As of or for the year ended
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.09 31.12.08 31.12.07

Group results

Operating income 22,601 796 31,721
Operan‘n‘g‘ expenses ................................................................ 25162 ,,,,,,, S 5463
Operating profit before tax (from continuing and discontinued operations) (2569) (27,560) (3,597)
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders @736 21,29 (5,247)
Diluted earnings per share (CHF)' (0.75) (7.63) (2.41)

Key performance indicators, balance sheet and capital management?

Performance

ReturnoneqU|ty(RoE)(°/o) ................................................................ (78) s oy
Reun o Wél'ghted et g . g B o6
Retor o acs 'e'té,wgross R, L oy 3
Growth

Net prdf . growth Cp SRR TR A
Netnew money (CHF billion)* (1473 260 1406
Efficiency

Costlmamento (G e o
Capital strength

Bsie i mio (e A R

FINMA‘IéVé'réQ'e' ol o5 s

Balance sheet and capital management

1,340,538 2,014,815 2,274,891
.............................................. oz 32531 36875
................................................. os T eg
.............................................. soesss s
Bt s T 31798 ,,,,,,, 33154 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,
Additional information
Invested assets (CHF billion) 2,233 2,174 3,189
Personnel (full-time equivalents) 65233 77,78 83,560
Market capitalization® 57,108 43,519 108,654
Long-term ratings
Fltch T PUEEE RREE "
Moody s Mo o a oy o
oo & ooy s oy PR R W

1 Refer to “Note 8 Earnings per share (EPS) and shares outstanding” in the “Financial information” section of this report. 2 For the definitions of our key performance indicators refer to the “Measure-
ment and analysis of performance” section of this report. 3 Not meaningful if either the current period or the comparison period is a loss period. 4 Excludes interest and dividend income. 5 Refer
to the "Capital management” section of this report. 6 Refer to the “UBS shares in 2009" section of this report.
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Measurement and analysis of performance

Key factors affecting our financial position and results
of operations in 2009

— In 2009, the net loss attributable to UBS shareholders for
2009 was CHF 2.7 billion, a considerable reduction from
the CHF 21.3 billion loss recorded in the prior year. This
improvement was due to much lower losses on residual
risk positions in the Investment Bank and reduced operat-
ing expenses for the Group. The result for 2009 included
a number of significant items, namely an own credit loss
of CHF 2.0 billion which occurred as a result of the mar-
kets' perception of our improved creditworthiness, charg-
es relating to the sale of UBS Pactual of CHF 1.4 billion,
restructuring charges of CHF 0.8 billion, and a CHF 0.3
billion gain on the mandatory convertible notes converted
in August 2009. Excluding these significant items, the un-
derlying pre-tax result for the year was a profit of CHF 1.4
billion. The Group’s net profit attributable to shareholders
for the fourth quarter was CHF 1.2 billion, including a
positive contribution from each of our business divisions.

— At the end of 2009 our invested asset base was CHF
2,233 billion, broadly in line with the figure for year-end
2008. However, the Group's average invested asset base
for the year was down significantly, and this was the pri-
mary driver of reduced profits in our asset gathering busi-
ness divisions. Net new money outflows in 2009 were
CHF 89.8 billion for Wealth Management & Swiss Bank,
compared with CHF 107.1 billion in 2008; CHF 11.6 bil-
lion for Wealth Management Americas, compared with
CHF 15.9 billion; and CHF 45.8 billion for Global Asset
Management, compared with CHF 103.0 billion.

— Atyear-end 2009, the BIS tier 1 ratio amounted to 15.4%
and the total capital ratio to 19.8%, up from 11.0% and
15.0%, respectively, on 31 December 2008. BIS risk-
weighted assets declined from CHF 302.3 billion in De-
cember 2008 to CHF 206.5 billion in December 2009,
while eligible tier 1 capital decreased from CHF 33.2 bil-
lion to CHF 31.8 billion over the same period, reflecting
the effects of losses incurred during 2009 and further
negative impacts on equity, only partially offset by the
positive effects from issues of capital instruments.

— Our total assets stood at CHF 1,341 billion on 31 Decem-
ber 2009, down CHF 674 billion (33%) from CHF 2,015
billion on 31 December 2008. This decline was due to
significant market driven reductions in replacement val-
ues (RVs) on both sides of the balance sheet.

Due to the significant improvement in our credit spreads
in 2009 compared with 2008, the Investment Bank in-
curred an own credit charge to income of CHF 2,023 mil-
lion compared with a gain of CHF 2,032 million recog-
nized in 2008.
In 2009, we experienced a net credit loss expense of CHF
1,832 million, of which CHF 1,698 million related to the
Investment Bank and CHF 133 million to Wealth Manage-
ment & Swiss Bank. Impairment charges of the Invest-
ment Bank include an impairment of CHF 425 million for
reclassified securities. In comparison, we recorded a net
credit loss expense of CHF 2,996 million in 2008.
- Refer to the “Credit risk” section of this report for more
information
We recognized a net income tax benefit of CHF 443 mil-
lion for 2009, which mainly related to an increase in de-
ferred tax assets for tax losses following updated forecast
profit assumptions over the five-year horizon used for rec-
ognition purposes. In 2008, the net income tax benefit
was CHF 6,837 million, which mainly reflected an in-
crease in deferred tax assets for tax losses.
On 16 October 2008, we reached an agreement with
the Swiss National Bank (SNB) to transfer, in one or more
sales, certain illiquid and other positions from our bal-
ance sheet to a separate fund entity owned and con-
trolled by the SNB. In December 2008, USD 16.4 billion
of positions were transferred to the fund followed by
the transfer of the remaining USD 22.2 billion of posi-
tions in March and April 2009. The purchase price was
determined by the SNB based on valuations made by
independent experts and reflected the value of these po-
sitions on 30 September 2008. The purchase price for
the overall portfolio was, in the aggregate, approximate-
ly USD 1 billion lower than the market value we assigned
to these positions on 30 September 2008. Of this USD 1
billion, USD 0.7 billion was accounted for in our results
for 2008, and the remaining balance was recognized in
the income statement in first quarter 2009. The impact
of the SNB transaction on the income statement for
2009 was a charge of CHF 115 million, which comprised
a CHF 232 million charge due to the price difference
recognized in first quarter 2009, and was offset by a net
valuation gain of CHF 117 million on our option to ac-
quire the fund’s equity.
On 18 February 2009, we announced the settlement of
the US cross-border case with the US Department of Jus-
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tice (DOJ) and the US Securities and Exchange Commis-

sion (SEC), by entering into a deferred prosecution agree-

ment with the DOJ and a consent order with the SEC. As
part of these settlement agreements, we agreed to pay

CHF 917 million (USD 780 million). This had no impact on

our 2009 results as the cost for the settlement had been

fully charged in 2008. Subsequently, on 19 August 2009,

we also announced the formal signing of a settlement

agreement with the IRS and the DOJ to resolve the “John

Doe"” summons litigation. The agreement does not call

for any payment by us. Moreover, it resolves all issues re-

lating to the alleged breaches of our Qualified Intermedi-
ary Agreement with the IRS as set forth in the Notice of

Default dated 15 May 2008.

- Refer to “Note 21 Provisions and litigation” In the
“Financial Information” section of this report for the
principal terms of this settlement agreement and the
related agreement entered into at the same time by
the governments of Switzerland and the US

On 15 April 2009, we announced cost-saving measures

to be executed throughout 2009. We consolidated all

Group-wide infrastructure and service operations in the

Corporate Center and centralized our finance, risk con-

trol, and legal and compliance functions. In addition, we

reduced the number of employees to 65,233 as of 31

December 2009 from approximately 76,200 as of the end

of March 2009. The total restructuring charge incurred in

2009 was CHF 791 million, including CHF 491 million in

Personnel expenses, mainly for severance payments, CHF

256 million in General and administrative expenses, pri-

marily for real-estate-related costs, and CHF 45 million of

depreciation and impairment losses on property and
equipment.

On 20 April 2009, we announced the agreement to sell

our Brazilian financial services business, UBS Pactual, to

BTG Investments, LP. The transaction was completed on

18 September 2009. The consideration included a combi-

nation of a cash payment and a transfer of liabilities to

BTG Investments. The cash consideration amounted to

USD 620 million, of which USD 420 million was paid at

closing, and USD 200 million plus accrued interest will be

paid 12 months after the closing. The liabilities trans-
ferred to BTG Investments consisted primarily of the pres-

ent value of the residual payment obligation of USD 1.6

billion owed to former Pactual partners, which was in-

curred when we acquired Pactual in 2006 and was due in

2011. In 2009, the overall impact of the transaction on

our profit before tax was a net charge of CHF 1,403 mil-

lion, including a goodwill impairment charge of CHF

1,123 million, a CHF 498 million pre-tax loss on the com-

pletion of the sale, and was partly offset by UBS Pactual’s

pre-tax operational profits in 2009 of CHF 218 million. In
addition, a deferred tax benefit of CHF 243 million was
recognized.

— On 25 June 2009, we placed 293,258,050 newly issued
shares from authorized capital with a small number of
large institutional investors at a price of CHF 13.00 per
share. After deducting costs associated with the place-
ment, the amount of new equity capital raised was ap-
proximately CHF 3.8 billion.

— On 19 August 2009, the Swiss Confederation announced
the conversion of its CHF 6 billion mandatory convertible
notes (MCNs). Upon conversion on 25 August 2009, we
issued 332,225,913 new shares with a nominal value of
CHF 0.10 each from existing conditional capital. The lia-
bility and the negative replacement value recorded on the
balance sheet for the principal amount and the embed-
ded derivative component of the MCNs were reclassified
to equity. The conversion of the MCNs resulted in an
overall increase in equity of CHF 6,718 million for 2009.
Prior to the conversion of the MCNs, the embedded de-
rivative component was re-measured to fair value result-
ing in a gain of CHF 341 million for 2009. In addition, the
Swiss Confederation waived its right to receive future
coupon payments on the converted MCNs for a cash
amount of approximately CHF 1.8 billion. The impact on
our income statement resulting from this waiver was not
material, but the payment reduced our BIS tier 1 capital
by CHF 1.4 billion.

Seasonal characteristics

Our main businesses do not generally show significant sea-
sonal patterns, although the Investment Bank’s revenues
have been affected in some years by the seasonal character-
istics of general financial market activity and deal flows in
investment banking. Other business divisions are only slightly
impacted by seasonal components, such as asset withdraw-
als that tend to occur in the fourth quarter and by lower cli-
ent activity levels related to the end-of-year holiday season.

Performance measures

Key performance indicators
In the beginning of 2009, we implemented a new KPI frame-
work. It focuses on key drivers of total shareholder return
(TSR), which measures the total return of a UBS share, i.e.
both the dividend yield and the capital appreciation of the
share price. This performance measure also represents the
ultimate measure of performance for shareholders.
Complementary to the TSR, the economic profit (EP) is an
internal measure which is calculated broadly by subtracting
the cost of equity from the annual net profit attributable to
shareholders. EP is only realized when the return on equity
achieved is greater than our cost of equity. In order to offset
accounting entries which distort the economic perspective,
the EP calculation is adjusted for items that do not reflect
business performance.



Group/business division key performance indicators
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Key performance indicators Definition O =& =< 0= £
Net profit growth (%) Change in net profit attributable to UBS shareholders from continuing operations
between current and comparison periods/net profit attributable to X
UBS shareholders from continuing operations of comparison period
Pre-tax profit growth (%) Change in business division performance before tax between current and comparison X X X X
periods / business division performance before tax of comparison period
Cost/income ratio (%) Operating expenses/operating income before credit loss (expense) or recovery X X X X X
Return on equity (%) Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders on a year-to-date basis (annualized as X
applicable)/ average equity attributable to UBS shareholders (year-to-date basis)
Return on attributed equity (%)  Business division performance before tax on a year-to-date basis (annualized as X
applicable)/average attributed equity (year-to-date basis)
Return on assets, gross (%) Operating income before credit loss (expense) or recovery on a year-to-date basis X X
(annualized as applicable)/average total assets (year-to-date basis)
Return on risk-weighted assets,  Operating income before credit loss (expense) or recovery on a year-to-date basis X
gross (%) (annualized as applicable)/average risk-weighted assets (year-to-date basis)
FINMA leverage ratio (%) BIS tier 1 capital/average adjusted assets as per definition by FINMA X
BIS tier 1 ratio (%) BIS tier 1 capital/BIS risk-weighted assets X
Net new money (CHF billion) Inflow of invested assets from new and existing clients less outflows from existing X X X X
clients or due to client defection
Gross margin on invested Operating income before credit loss (expense) or recovery (annualized as .
. h X X X
assets (bps) applicable)/average invested assets
Impaired lending portfolio as a % Impaired lending portfolio, gross/total lending portfolio, gross N
of total lending portfolio, gross
Average management VaR Value-at-Risk (VaR) expresses maximum potential loss measured to a 95% confidence
(1-day, 95% confidence, five level, over a 1-day time horizon and based on five years of historical data X

years of historical data)

1 For international clients only. 2 For Swiss clients only.

The Group and business divisions are now managed
based on this new KPI framework, which emphasizes risk
awareness, effective risk and capital management, sustain-
able profitability, and client focus. Both Group and business
division KPIs are used to determine variable compensation of
executives and personnel.

- Refer to the discussion of “Compensation and sharehold-
ings” in the “Corporate governance and compensation”
section of this report for more information

The Group and business division KPIs are explained in
the “Group and business division key performance indicators”
table. In 2009, we disclosed for the first time the management

VaR (1-day, 95% confidence, and five years of historical data)
for the Group and the Investment Bank. This new manage-
ment VaR methodology is an enhancement compared with
the previous management VaR (10-day, 99% confidence, and
five years of historical data) as we consider that it reflects the
way that trading risks are viewed and managed by the busi-
ness, and can be more directly compared with mark to market
revenues. All changes to this new management VaR have
been approved by FINMA. The previously reported KPI regula-
tory VaR (10-day, 99% confidence, and five years of historical
data) for the Investment Bank was replaced by the new
management VaR as of fourth quarter 2009.
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Client/invested assets reporting

We report two distinct metrics for client funds:

— The measure “client assets” encompasses all client assets
managed by or deposited with us, including custody-only
assets and assets held for purely transactional purposes.

— The measure “invested assets” is a more restrictive term
and includes all client assets managed by or deposited
with us for investment purposes.

Of the two, invested assets is our central measure and
includes, for example, discretionary and advisory wealth
management portfolios, managed institutional assets, man-
aged fund assets and wealth management securities or bro-
kerage accounts. It excludes all assets held for purely trans-
actional and custody-only purposes, as we only administer
the assets and do not offer advice on how these assets
should be invested. Non-bankable assets (for example, art
collections) and deposits from third-party banks for funding
or trading purposes are excluded from both measures.

Net new money in a reported period is the net amount
of invested assets that are entrusted to us by new and ex-
isting clients, less those withdrawn by existing clients and
clients who terminated their relationship with us. Negative
net new money means that there are more outflows than

34

inflows. Interest and dividend income from invested assets
is not counted as net new money inflow. Market and cur-
rency movements, as well as fees, commissions and inter-
est on loans charged, are excluded from net new money as
are the effects of any acquisition or divestment of a UBS
subsidiary or business. Reclassifications between invested
assets and client assets as a result of a change in the ser-
vice level delivered are treated as net new money inflows
or outflows.

When products are managed in one business division and
sold by another, they are counted in both the investment
management unit and the distribution unit. This results in
double counting within our total invested assets, as both
units provide an independent service to their respective cli-
ent, add value and generate revenues. Most double count-
ing arises when mutual funds are managed by Global Asset
Management and sold by Wealth Management & Swiss
Bank and Wealth Management Americas. The business di-
visions involved count these funds as invested assets. This
approach is in line with both finance industry practices and
our open architecture strategy, and allows us to accurately
reflect the performance of each individual business. Overall,
CHF 254 billion of invested assets were double counted in
2009 (CHF 273 billion in 2008).



Accounting and reporting structure changes

IAS 1 (revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

Effective 1 January 2009, the revised International Account-
ing Standard (IAS) 1 affected the presentation of owner
changes in equity and of comprehensive income. We contin-
ued to present owner changes in equity in the “statement of
changes in equity”, but detailed information relating to non-
owner changes in equity, such as foreign exchange trans-
lation, cash flow hedges and financial investments available-
for-sale, is presented in the “Statement of comprehensive
income”.

When implementing these amendments, we also adjust-
ed the format of our “statement of changes in equity” and
replaced the “statement of recognized income and expense”
in the financial statements of previous years with a “state-
ment of comprehensive income”. Preferred securities issued
by consolidated trusts are reported as “equity attributable to
minority interests”, as they are equity instruments held by
third parties. As these securities make up the largest part of
our equity attributable to minority interests, we disclose
movement information in a separate table.

We also re-assessed our accounting treatment of divi-
dends from trust preferred securities. In 2009, in line with
the classification of trust preferred securities as equity instru-
ments, we recognize liabilities for the full dividend payment
obligation once a coupon payment becomes mandatory, i.e.
when it is triggered by a contractually determined event. In
the income statement, the same amount is reclassified from
net profit attributable to UBS shareholders to net profit at-
tributable to minority interests.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

Effective as of 1 January 2009, we adopted IFRS 8 Operating
Segments which replaced IAS 14 Segment Reporting. Under
the requirements of the new standard, our external segment
reporting is now based on the internal management report-
ing to the GEB (or the “chief operating decision maker”),
which makes decisions on the allocation of resources and
assesses the performance of the reportable segments.

In accordance with the new structure announced in Feb-
ruary 2009, we disclosed four reportable segments. These

Accounting changes in 2010 and later

The International Accounting Stan-
dards Board (IASB) has initiated a
comprehensive project to replace IAS
39 Financial instruments: recognition
and measurement. The first phase of
this project has been completed by
issuing IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.
Phase two and three address the
classification and measurement of
financial liabilities, impairment of
financial assets at amortized cost,
hedge accounting and derecognition
of financial instruments. The IASB
plans to complete phase two and
three during 2010, although manda-
tory application is not expected before
1 January 2013.

In November 2009, the IASB issued
IFRS 9 Financial instruments, which
includes revised guidance on the
classification and measurement of

financial assets. Under the revised
guidance, a financial asset is to be
accounted for at amortized cost only
if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows,
and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified
dates to contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Non-traded equity instruments may be
accounted for at fair value through
equity, but the subsequent release of
amounts booked directly to equity into
the income statement is no longer
permitted. All other financial assets
are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. We are currently
assessing the impact of the new

standard on our financial statements.
It is likely that a number of financial
assets currently accounted for at
amortized cost will be accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss
under the new standard because a)
their contractual cash flows do not
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal, and/or
b) we do not hold the assets with the
intention to collect contractual cash
flows they generate. Certain debt
securities currently classified as
available-for-sale may satisfy the
criteria for “amortized cost” account-
ing; debt securities available-for-sale
failing these criteria will be accounted
for at fair value. The effective date for
mandatory adoption is 1 January
2013, with early adoption permitted.
We did not adopt IFRS 9 for the year
ended 31 December 2009.
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segments are the business divisions — Wealth Management
& Swiss Bank, Wealth Management Americas, Global Asset
Management and the Investment Bank. While the Corporate
Center does not meet the requirements of an operating seg-
ment, it is also shown separately. Segment information from
prior periods has been restated to conform to the require-
ments of the new standard.

As our reportable segment operations are mainly fi-
nancial, the total interest income and expense for all re-
portable segments is presented on a net basis. Based on the
present arrangement of revenue-sharing agreements, our
total intersegment revenues are immaterial. Apart from
that, the segment assets are disclosed without the inter-
company balances in line with the internal management
reporting.

- Refer to “Note 1 Summary of significant accounting
policies” and “Note 2a Segment reporting” in the “Financial
information” section of this report for more details on the
basis on which the segment information is prepared and
reconciled to the amounts presented in our income
statement and balance sheet

Allocation of Shared Services Costs in
Segment Disclosures

From 2009 onwards, Information Technology Infrastructure
and Group Offshoring costs managed by the Corporate Cen-
ter are allocated to the direct cost lines personnel expenses,
general and administrative expenses and depreciation in the
respective business division income statements, based on ap-
propriate internally determined allocation keys. In the Corpo-
rate Center income statement, costs allocated to the busi-
ness divisions are deducted from the respective cost lines. In
previous reports, these costs were presented as an expense
on the line Services (to)/from other business divisions within
each business division and an offsetting corresponding
amount on that line in the Corporate Center. The new pre-
sentation format provides greater transparency by allocating
costs of shared services and control functions managed by
the Corporate Center to direct cost lines in divisional income
statements. Comparative periods have been adjusted.

- Refer to “Note 1a33 Segment reporting” in the “Financial
information” section of this report for more information on
our general principles for allocating shared service and
control function costs managed by the Corporate Center

-> Refer to “Note 1b Changes in accounting policies,
comparability and other adjustments” in the “Financial
information” section of this report for changes to segment
disclosures due to a different presentation of ITl and Group
offshore cost allocations

Changes to the reporting structure in 2010

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank -

“Retail & Corporate” will include

Accordingly we will change the

Commencing first quarter 2010, we
will amend our internal reporting
of Wealth Management & Swiss
Bank and present in our external
financial reports two separate
business units:
“Wealth Management” will
encompass the domestic and
international wealth management
business conducted in Switzerland,
and all wealth management
businesses of our other booking
centers in Asia and Europe.

services provided to Swiss retail
private clients, small businesses, as
well as corporate and institutional

quarterly disclosure commencing first
quarter 2010 as follows:
— We will continue to provide

clients.

Corporate Center

In 2009, we integrated our Group-
wide shared service and control
functions into the Corporate Center.
Headcount and costs of the cen-
tralized functions are re-allocated

to the business divisions for which

the respective services are performed.

Corporate Center income
statement data and additional
information on www.ubs.com/
investors.

Significant items and treasury-relat-
ed income data will be explained in
the “Group results” section in our
quarterly reports, which will no
longer include a specific “Corpo-
rate Center” section.
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Income statement

For the year ended % change from
CHF million 31.12.09 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.08
Continuing operations
Interest income 23,461 65,679 109,112 (64)
Interest expense (17.016) (59687) (103,775) 71)
Net interest income 6,446 5,992 5,337 8
Credit loss (expense) /recovery (1832 (29%) @8 69
Net interest income after credit loss expense 4,614 2,996 5,099 54
Netfee and commission income 1712 299 30634 (23)
et tradmgmcome ....................................................................... (324) ,,,,,,,,,, (25820) ,,,,,,,,,,, (8353) ............... w0
Oher meome oy 4341 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (13)
Total operating income 22,601 796 31,721
Personnel expenses 16,543 16,262 25,515 2
General and administrative expenses 6248 10498 8429 (40)
Depreciation of property and equipment 1,008 241 123 (16)
Impalrm ot goodW|II .................................................................... : 123 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, wp R 5
Amortlzatlonofmtanglbleassets200 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, B R s ( 6)
Total operating expenses 25,162 28,555 35,463 (12)
Operating profit from continuing operations before tax (2,561) (27,758) (3,742) 91
o expe R (443) ,,,,,,,,,,, (6837) ,,,,,,,,,,,, 1369 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, o
Net profit from continuing operations (2,118) (20,922) (5,111) 90
Discontinued operations
Profit from discontinued operations before tax (7) 198 145
o expense ................................................................................. o e (258) ,,,,,,,,,,,,, (100)
Net profit from discontinued operations (7) 198 403
Net profit (2,125) (20,724) (4,708) 90
Net profit attributable to minority interests 610 568 539 7
fromcontlnumgoperatlons600 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e g =
P d|scont|nuedoperat|ons ............................................................. w o W R (79)
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders (2,736) (21,292) (5,247) 87
P contlnumgoperatlons ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (2719) ,,,,,,,,,, (21442) ,,,,,,,,,,, (5650) ............... 5
e dlscontlnuedoperatlons ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (1 7) ,,,,,,,,,,,,,, T oy
Performance by business division
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank 3,910 6,013 8,543 (35)
WealthManagementAmencas ................................................................. 5 (823) ,,,,,,,,,,,,,, T
GIobaIAssetManagement438 ,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1333 ,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1454 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (67)
SR (6081) ,,,,,,,,,, (34300) ,,,,,,,,,, (16669) ............... 0
Corporate e (860) ............... o 2310 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
Operating profit from continuing operations before tax (2,561) (27,758) (3,742) 91
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Strategy, performance and responsibility
Financial performance

2009

Results

In 2009, we reported a Group net loss attributable to share-
holders (“attributable loss”) of CHF 2,736 million — a loss
before tax of CHF 2,561 million from continuing operations
and a loss before tax of CHF 7 million from discontinued op-
erations. In 2008, we recorded an attributable loss of CHF
21,292 million.

Operating income

Total operating income was CHF 22,601 million in 2009, up
from CHF 796 million in 2008. Net interest income at CHF
6,446 million was up 8% compared with CHF 5,992 million
a year earlier. Net trading income was negative CHF 324 mil-
lion compared with negative CHF 25,820 million in 2008.

Net interest income includes income earned as a result of
trading activities (for example, coupon and dividend income)
as well as income from interest margin-based activities (loans
and deposits). The dividend income component of interest
income is volatile from period to period, depending on the
composition of the trading portfolio. In order to provide a
better explanation of the movements in net interest income
and net trading income, their total is analyzed below under
the relevant business activities.

In 2009, we reviewed our approach to calculating and
booking own credit of derivative liabilities and financial
liabilities designated at fair value. As of the transition date
1 January 2009, changes resulting from this review increased
our 2009 net trading income by CHF 143 million, made up
of a CHF 365 million credit to Net income from trading busi-

Net interest and trading income

nesses and a charge of CHF 222 million to Net income from
treasury activities and other.

Net income from trading businesses

Net income from trading businesses, including lending ac-
tivities of the Investment Bank, was positive CHF 382 million
for full-year 2009. This compares with negative CHF 27,203
million in the prior year, with the improvement mainly due to
lower losses on residual risk positions in the fixed income,
currencies and commodities (FICC) area of the Investment
Bank in 2009.

Trading revenues from the FICC business improved from
the previous year, due to lower losses on residual risk posi-
tions as mentioned above.

Equities trading revenues (excluding own credit) improved
from the previous year. Equity-linked revenues increased sig-
nificantly as all regions benefitted from improvements in val-
uations and liquidity. Proprietary trading revenues improved
with a strong performance recorded across all geographical
regions.

In 2009, the Investment Bank recorded a loss on own
credit from financial liabilities designated at fair value of CHF
2,023 million as our credit spread narrowed in 2009 com-
pared with a gain of CHF 2,032 million in 2008. This change
was partially impacted by the abovementioned change in
calculating and booking of own credit. The cumulative own
credit gain on existing financial liabilities designated at fair
value still held as of 31 December 2009, amounted to ap-
proximately CHF 0.9 billion. Own credit charges in future
periods can exceed the cumulative own credit gain on exist-
ing financial liabilities designated at fair value.

- Refer to “Note 27 Fair value of financial instruments” in the

“Financial information” section of this report for more
information on own credit

For the year ended % change from

CHF million 31.12.09 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.08
Net interest income 6,446 5,992 5,337 8
ot tradi‘hg'Ih'cb'nﬁe ............................................ ( .3.2.4) B (25820) . (8353) e %
Total net interest and trading income 6,122 (19,828) (3,016)

Breakdown by businesses

Net income from trading businesses’ 382 (27,203) (10,658)

Net income from interest margin businesses 5,053 6,160 6,230 (18)
Net income from treasury activities and other 687 1,214 1,412 (43)
Total net interest and trading income 6,122 (19,828) (3,016)

1 Includes lending activities of the Investment Bank.
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Net income from interest margin businesses

Net income from interest margin businesses decreased 18% to
CHF 5,053 million from CHF 6,160 million. This decrease was
primarily attributable to lower margins on loans and liabilities.

Net income from treasury activities and other

Net income from treasury activities and other was CHF 687
million compared with CHF 1,214 million driven by a net gain
of CHF 297 million (including interest expenses) on the valu-
ation of the MCNs issued in December 2008 and converted
in August 2009 and a gain of CHF 117 million on the revalu-
ation of our option to acquire the SNB StabFund’s equity. In
comparison, 2008 included an accounting gain of CHF 3,860
million related to the MCNs issued in March 2008, which was
offset by the CHF 3.4 billion negative impact of the transac-
tion with the Swiss National Bank and the abovementioned
MCNs issued in December 2008, resulting in a total gain of
CHF 0.4 billion.

Credit loss expenses

In 2009, we experienced net credit loss expenses of CHF
1,832 million, of which CHF 425 million were due to impair-
ment charges taken on reclassified securities in the Invest-
ment Bank. In comparison, we recorded net credit loss ex-
penses of CHF 2,996 million in 2008.

The Investment Bank recorded net credit loss expenses of
CHF 1,698 million for 2009, compared with net credit loss ex-
penses of CHF 2,575 million in 2008. Excluding the credit loss
expenses from reclassified securities of CHF 425 million, the net
credit loss expenses amounted to CHF 1,273 million in 2009.

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank reported net credit loss
expenses of CHF 133 million for 2009, compared with CHF
392 million in 2008. Releases of allowances against lombard
loans in 2009 contributed to this positive development.

Credit loss (expense)/recovery

- Refer to the “Risk management and control” section of this
report for more information on our risk management
approach, method of credit risk measurement and the
development of credit risk exposures

Net fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income was CHF 17,712 million,

down 23% from CHF 22,929 million. Income declined in all

major fee categories except for underwriting fees, as out-
lined below:

— Underwriting fees increased 22% to CHF 2,386 million,
driven by a 40% increase in equity underwriting fees off-
set by a 3% decrease in debt underwriting fees.

— Mergers and acquisitions and corporate finance fees fell
47% to CHF 881 million due to reduced market activity
as deal appetite remained subdued.

— Net brokerage fees fell 31% to CHF 4,469 million mainly
due to a reduction in equity trading volumes.

— Investment fund fees fell 28% to CHF 4,000 million as a
result of lower asset based fees on both own and third-
party funds.

— Portfolio management and advisory fees fell 24% to CHF
5,863 million, mainly due to the decreased average asset
base, especially in the wealth management businesses.

— Insurance-related and other fees, at CHF 264 million in
2009, decreased by 17% from a year earlier. That was
mainly due to lower commission income from insurance
products.

— Commission income from other services decreased 13%
to CHF 878 million, mainly in the wealth management
businesses.

— Other commission expense fell 31% to CHF 1,368 mil-
lion, mainly due to lower commissions paid to distribution
partners.

For the year ended % change from

CHF million 31.12.09 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.08

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank (133) (392) 30 (66)

Wealth MahégementAmeriéés 3 (29) . (2) .

Investment Bank’ - (1,698) (2,575) (266) (34)
of which: related to reclassified securities '..(425) '..(125) 40

Corporate Center h h (5) h

UBS (1,832) (2,996) (238) (39)

1 Includes credit loss expense of CHF 588 million (31.12.08: CHF 1,205 million) related to reclassified leveraged finance positions.
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Strategy, performance and responsibility
Financial performance

Net fee and commission income

For the year ended % change from

CHF million 31.12.09 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.08
Equity underwriting fees 1,590 1,138 2,564 40
Debtunderwrltlngfees e o1 1178 ....... ‘)
Total underwriting fees 2,386 1,957 3,742 22
M&A and corporate finance fees 881 1,662 2,768 (47)
'Br'okeragé‘fé'e's"” 6217 8209 102” B, (24)
Investment fund fees 4,000 5,583 742 (28)
Portfolio management and advisory fees’ 5863 7667 om0 (24)
Insurance-related and other fees 24 7. a2 (17)
Total securities trading and investment activity fees 19,611 25,394 34,020 (23)
Credit-related fees and commissions 339 273 279 24
Commission income from other services g8 1010 07 (13)
Total fee and commission income 20,827 26,677 35,316 (22)
Brokerage fees paid' 1,748 1,763 2,540 (1)
e 1368 1984 2142 ..... (31)
Total fee and commission expense 3,116 3,748 4,682 (17)
Net fee and commission income 17,712 22,929 30,634 (23)
* of which: net brokerage fees 4,469 6445 R (31)

1In 2009, we restated the amounts presented in previous periods on the lines Brokerage fees and Brokerage fees paid. Amounts previously disclosed for both lines have decreased by CHF 146 million

for the year ended 31 December 2008, and by CHF 70 million for the year ended 31 December 2007. Net fee and commission income is not affected.

were presented as separate lines in previous reports.

Other income

Other income was CHF 599 million in 2009 compared with
CHF 692 million in the previous year. 2009 includes a loss of
CHF 498 million related to the sale of UBS Pactual, foreign
exchange gains of CHF 430 million on other divestments of
subsidiaries, a gain of CHF 304 million on the buyback of
subordinated debt and impairment charges of financial in-
vestments available-for-sale of CHF 349 million.

- Refer to “Note 5 Other income” in the “Financial informa-
tion"” section of this report for more information

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses were down 12% to CHF 25,162
million in 2009 from CHF 28,555 million in 2008.

Total restructuring charges of CHF 791 million were in-
curred in 2009, including CHF 491 million in Personnel ex-
penses, mainly for severance payments, CHF 256 million
in General and administrative expenses, primarily for real-
estate related costs, and CHF 45 million of depreciation and
impairment losses on property and equipment.

Personnel expenses

Personnel expenses were CHF 16,543 million compared with
CHF 16,262 million in the previous year. Headcount reduc-
tions were partially offset by salary increases. Variable com-
pensation recognized in the income statement in 2009 was
CHF 3.0 billion. Variable compensation of CHF 3.2 billion for
2009 and brought forward from prior years will be recog-

40

2 Includes fiduciary and custodian fees, which

nized in the income statement in 2010 and later, subject to
the vesting conditions of the respective awards granted. It
includes a charge for performance (and retention) awards
that are to be granted, or are expected to be granted, in
2010 in relation to the 2009 performance year but which, as
of the balance sheet date, had in fact not been granted. The
2009 results do not include a provision for bank payroll tax
in the UK.

-> Refer to “Note 31 Equity participation and other compen-
sation plans” in the “Financial information” section of this
report for more information about deferred compensation
related to non-vested awards granted up to and including
31 December 2009

Contractors’ expenses, at CHF 275 million, were down

35% from 2008. This was due to substantial reduction of
employed contractors and a favorable foreign exchange
impact. Insurance and social security contributi